822 Bishop Street

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
P.0O. Box 3440

Honclulu, HI 96801-3440
www.alexanderbaldwin.com
Tel (808) 525-6611

Fax (B08B) 525-6052

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.

July 1, 2010

Land Use Commission
State of Hawaii

P. O. Box 2359

Honolulu, HI 96804-2359

Re: State Land Use District Boundary Amendment
Waiale Community Project

Ladies and Gentlemen;

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. is the owner in fee simple of those certain properties
located at Wailuku and Waikapu, Maui, Hawaii, identified by Tax Map Key 3-8-05: 23
and 37 and 3-8-07: 71, 101 and 104. A&B Properties, Inc. intends to develop

approximately 545 acres of said parcels for a inaster planned residential community
known as the Waiale Community Project.

Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. hereby authorizes A&B Properties, Inc. and its agents
to prepare, file, process and obtain all necessary permits and approvals relating to the

development of the Waiale Community Project, including but not limited to, a State Land
Use District Boundary Amendment.

Sincerely,

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,

W/%/

Tts SENIOR WItE RESIDENT

Tis ASST. SRETARY

EXHIBIT "1"






DESCRIPTION
PETITION AREA “A”

TAX MAP KEY: (2) 3-8-007:071, 104
AND 101 (PORTION)

All of that certain parcel of land, being all of Lot 1-B of the Kopaa Subdivision, a
portion of Lot 12-A of the Maui Lani Subdivision and portions of Grant 3152 to Henry
Cornwell and Grant 3343 to Claus Spreckels situated at Wailuku and Waikapu,
Waikapu, Island and County of Maui, State of Hawaii

Beginning at the northeasterly corner of this parcel of land, on the westerly side of
Kuihelani Highway [F. A. S. P. No. S-0380 (4)], said point being also the southeasterly
corner of Lot 11-C of the Maui Lani Development, the coordinates of said point of
beginning referred to Government Survey Triangulation Station “LUKE” 8,081.64 feet
South and 5,711.01 feet East and running by azimuths measured clockwise True
South:

1. Along the westerly side of Kuihelani Highway [F.A.S.P. No. 3-0380 (4)] on a
curve to the left with a radius of
11,562.16 feet, the chord -
azimuth and distance being:
33° 53’ 39.8" 576.30 feet;

2. 122 27 58.8” 12.00 feet along the westerly side of
Kuihelani Highway [F.A.S.P. No.
3-0380(4)],

3. Thence along same on a curve to the left with a radius of 11,574.16 feet, the
chord azimuth and distance
being:
30° 08’ 14.4” 940.69 feet;

4, 27° 48 307 367.40 feet along the westerly side of
Kuihelani Highway [F.A.S.P. No.
3-0380 (4)];

5. 117° 48 30" 20.00 feet along same;

0. 27° 48 307 200.00 feet along same;

7. 297° 48 30” 5.00 feet along same;

8, 27 48 30~ 800.00 feet along same;

9. 117° 48" 30" 35.00 feet along same;
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10.

11.

i2.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27°
297°
27°

107°

191°
101°

322°

a7°

327°

28°

118°

147°

281°

178°

48’
48’
48’

45’

45’
45’

07

14°

14°

0o’

00’

14’

45’

00’

30" 400.00 feet

30” 15.00 feet
30” 33.22 feet
722.49 feet
462.02 feet

2,615.78 feet

271.76 feet

41" 4.58 feet

41” 465.24 feet

346.45 feet

199.99 feet

417 1,104.41 feet

131.86 feet

574.79 feet

along same;
along same;
along same;

along Lot 1-C
Subdivision;

of the Kopaa

along same;
along same;

along Lot 1-B of the Kopaa

_Subdivision;

along same;

along the remainder of Grant
3152 to Henry Cornwell (T.M.K:
(2)3-8-007:071);

along same;

along the northerly side of Waiko
Road;

along same and along Lot 1-B of
the Kopaa Subdivision;

along Lot 1-B of the Kopaa
Subdivision;

along the remainder of Lot 12-C
of the Maui Lani Subdivision;

Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 1,784.00 feet, the

183°

09’

450.00 feet

chord azimuth and distance
being:

171° 04° 30"  746.40 feet;
along the remainder of Lot 12-C
of the Maui Lani Subdivision;

Thence along same on a curve to the left with a radius of 1,210.00 feet, the
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chord azimuth and distance
being:

167° 18’ 32.5” 660.58 feet;



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

237°

184~

152°

191°

185°

284°

304°

20°

S50’

26’

33’

45’

48’

00’

71.90 feet

250.00 feet
309.00 feet
704.00 fect
445.47 feet

207 2,739.12 feet

3,264.73 feet

Prepared by: A&B Properties, Inc.

LICENSED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND

SURVEYOR
Mo, LB-7533

Kahului, Maui, Hawaii

along Lot 12-B of the Maui Lani
Subdivision;

along same;

along same;

along samc;

along same;

along Lot 11-D-1-A-1-F, Lot 11-
D-1-A-1-A-1 and Lot 11-D-1-A-2
of the Maui Lani Development;
along Lot 11-D-1-A-2, Lot 11-D-
1-A-4-B, Lot 11-D-1-A-4-A and
Lot 11-C of the Maui lani
Development to the point of

beginning and containing an
Area of 422.594 Acres.

July 10, 2009

This work was prepared by me or under my supervision,

42020

13
Keil'T, Mura
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LicensedProfessional Land Surveyor
Certificate No. LS-7633
Expiration Date: 4/30/2010
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STATE LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT

PETITION AREA "A"

SCALE: { inch = 300 feat

~ BEING A PORTION OF LOT 12-A OF THE MAUI LANI
Y“;’ SUBDIVISION, LOT 1-B OF THE KOPAA SUBDIVISION NO. 2
S AND PARCEL 071 OF TAX MAP KEY: (2 3-8-007

S
Belng @ pottion of Grant 3343 to Claus Spreckals and Grant 3152 to Henry Comwall

WAIKAPU AND WAILUKU, MAUI, HAWANR

DATE: Juy B, 2006

Prepared by A& B Properfies, Inc
11 Puunane Avenus
Kahulifi, Mayl, Hewaii 8732

TWNER: pavenser & Baldutn, bnc.

This work was pepared by ma oc undar my supandglon.

4/@:;/%13

Professlonal 1and Survayor
Carlificath No. 15-7831
Explration Date: 473072010




DESCRIFTION
PETITION AREA “B”

TAX MAP KEY: (2)3-8-005:037 AND 023 (PORTION)

All of that certain parcel of land, being all of Lot 3 and a portion of Lot 4 of the Walter
K. Shenk Subdivision, being also a portion of Grant 3152 to Henry Cornwell situated
at Waikapu, Wailuku, Island and County of Maui, State of Hawaii

Beginning at the northwesterly corner of this parcel of land, on the southerly side of
Waiko Road, the coordinates of said point of beginning referred to CGovernment
Survey Triangulation Station “LUKE” being 10,411.85 feet South and 136.75 feet
East and running by azimuths measured clockwise from True South:

1. 276° 30’ 340.00 feet along the southerly side of
Waiko Road;

2. Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 1,020.00 feet, the
chord azimuth and distance
being:
287° 15° 380.51 feet;

3. 298° 0O’ 498.99 feet - along the southerly side of
Waiko Road;

4, Thence along same on a curve to the left with a radius of 730.00 feet, the chord

azimuth and distance being;
285° 45’ 309.78 feet to a point
of reverse curvature;

5. Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 2,720.00 feet, the
chord azimuth and distance
being:
276° 00’ 237.29 feet;

6. 278 30 | 469.65 fect along the southerly side of
Waiko Road:;

7. Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 1,350.00 feet, the
chord azimuth and distance
being:
285° 07 30" 311.50 feet;

8. 291° 45’ 253.29 feet along the southerly side of
Waikoe Road;

9, 287° 45’ 966.90 feet along same;
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10.

11.

12,

13.
14,
15.
16.
17.
18,
19,
20.

21.

22,
23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.

30.

Thence along same on a curve to the left with a radius of 950.00 feet, the chord

azimuth and distance being:
287° 13’ 16" 17.54 feet;

Thence along same on a curve to the right with a radius of 30.00 feet, the chord

27°

117°
27"
297°
27°
117°
27°
297°
27°

107°

118°

142°

185°

189°

163°

190°

173°

179°

1l67°

48’

48°
48’
48°
48’
48°
48’
48’
48’

o7’

45’
21
32
02’
25’
55’
16’
36’

13

307

307
30”
30”7
307
30”7
30”7
30"

30!)

1,355.35 feet

5.00 feet
200.00 feet
5.00 feet
1,100.00 feet
10.00 feet
300.00 feet
5.00 feet
412.45 feet

77.52 feet

55.17 feet
42.56 feet
67.95 feet
200.44 feet
89.55 feet
148.50 feet
183.73 feet
223.95 feet

199.83 feet
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azimuth and distance being:
337° 15’ 01" 46.34 feet;

along the westerly side of
Kuihelani Highway [F.A.S.P. No.
5-0380(4)1; :

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along the remainder of Lot 4 of
the Walter K. Shenk Subdivision
(being the remainder of Grant
3152 to Henry Cornwell);

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;

along same;



31.
32,
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40,
41.
42,
43.
44,
45.
46.
47.
48.
49,
50.
ol.
52.
53.
54.

55.

157°

124°

154°

173°

142°

113°

116°

174°

163°

148°

153°

141°

129°

150°

140°

152°

162°

149°

137°

125°

133°

163°

133°

104°

102°

11
26’
10°
20’
44’
52’
58
38’
17’
50°
15’
10°
37’
48’
37
01’
10°
24’
48’
46’
58’
28’
29
06’

35’

146.91 feet
112.05 feet

85.83 feet
197.01 feet

23.99 fect

71.52 feet
112.02 feet
198.93 feet
251.92 feet
185.28 feet
119.97 feet
140.68 fect
127.19 feet
144 58 feet
141.05 feet

63.16 feet
138.88 feet

78.67 feet

52.02 feet
119.73 feet
105.22 feet
108.03 feet
114.74 feet

83.47 feet

145.60 feet
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along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;
along same;

along same;



56, 122 54’ 88.55 feet along same;

57. 128° 2% 50.07 feet along same;
58. 145° 08’ 50.48 feet along same;
59. 155° 18 38.31 feet along same;
60. 171° 30° 32.31 feet along same;
61. 175° 517 235.74 feet along same;
62. 140° 17’ 105.18 feet along same to the point of

beginning and containing an
Area of 122,635 Acres.

Prepared by: A&B Properties, Inc. July 10, 2009
Kahului, Maui, Hawaii

This work was prepared by me or under my supervision,

7%174/%%& 4‘/ %/ 20/

®en T) Nomura

Lxcen d Professional Land Surveyo
Certificate No. LS-7633

Expiration Date: 4/30/2010
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STATE LAND USE DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT
. PETITION AREA "B"
BEING LOT 3 AND PORTION OF LOT 4 OF THE

WALTER K. SHENK SUBDIVISION
(L. U.C. A. FILE NC. 3.1348)

Belng a portion of Grant 3t52 o Henry Comwell
WAIKAPU, WNI.UkU, MAUL HAWAN
DATE:.luly §, 2008

ROTES:
1. Aznwihe and ceordinetes shown rsferred 1o Govemment Eurvey Trisnguleton . Station "LUKE".
2. Owners of edjacent properties laken from reccrda of the Real Properly Mapplng Branch.
SCALE: 1 Inch = 300 fool
R
Hatuld H edTa
DWNER: Alexandar & Bakhwin, na.
}
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Tax Map Key: (2) 3-8-005: 037 and 023 (Portlon)




STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
$3,500.00

This report {and any revisions thereto} is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Incorporated, hereby reports that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B" hereof, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawaii corporation,
as Fee Owner

This report is dated as of March 19, 2010 at 8:00 a.m.

Inquiries concerning this report
should be directed to

MONIQUE AGARPRO.

Email magarpac@tghawaii.com

Fax (80B} 521-0210

Telephone (808) 533--5610.

Refer to Order No. 201012558.

EXHIBIT "4"

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. , Page 1

235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULU, HAWAILI 95813, PH: (BOB) 533-6261



SCHEDULE B

EXCEPTIONS
1. Real Property Taxes, if any, that may be due and owing.
Tax Key: (2) 3-8-005-023 Area Assessed: 342.400 acres
-Note:- Attention is invited to the fact that the premises -

covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

2. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawaii of all mineral and
metallic mines.

3. Free flowage of Waikapu Stream as shown on Tax Map.
4. The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : ROYAL PATENT GRANT NUMBER 3152
DATED : November 18, 1945

The foregoing includes, but is not limited to, matters relating
to reservation of native rights.

5. LICENSE
TO :  MAUI ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED
DATED : December 1, 1921
RECORDED t  Liber 621 Page 428
GRANTING t rights of way over, across and along any and all of
the permanent railway lines and/or roads for
utility purposes
201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 2

235 QUEEN ST, HONOLULY, HAWALI 9581 3, PH: (808) 533-5261



SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

6. LEASE
TO :  MAUT ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED and HAWAIIAN
TELEPHONE COMPANY, now known as HAWAIIAN TELCOM,
INC.
DATED : August 5, 15960
RECORDED : Liber 3906  Page 64
LEASING + rights-of-way for utility purposes for a term of 35
years from the date hereof, and thereafter from year
to year until terminated
7. GRANT
TO :  COUNTY OF MAUT
DATED 1 September 19, 1961
RECORDED : Liber 4159 Page 172
GRANTING : a non-exclusive easement for water pipeline
purposes over Easement "G" (15 feet wide), more
particulary described therein
8. Vehicle access into and from Kahului Airport-Maalae Highway,

Federal Aid Secondary Project No. S5-0380 (4), shall be permitted
for agricultural purposes only, as contained in Deed dated August

16, 1971, recorded in Liber 7762 at Page 50 and as shown on Tax
Map.

9. Field I Pasture as shown on Tax Map.

10. 50 feet vehicle access premitted as shown on Subdivison Map dated
September 9, 1987.

11. BAny unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the
same .

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 3
235 QUEEN §T., HOMCLULU, HAWAII $66813, PH: {808) 533-6261



SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

12. Claims arising out of customary and traditional rights and
practices, including without limitation those exercised for
subsistence, cultural, religious, access or gathering purposes,

as provided for in the Hawaili Constitution or the Hawaii Revised
Statutes.

13. Matters arising out of, including any access and utility rights

in favor of the parcel (unlocated kuleana) excluded in Schedule
C.

14. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area,
encroachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeclogical study would disclose,

—-Note:- A current survey, with metes and bounds description,
should be made of said premises.

END OF SCHEDULE B

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 4

245 QUEEN 5T., HONOLULY, HAWAIl 96813, PH: (B08) 533-6261



SCHEDULE C

All of that certain parcel of land {being portion{s) of the land(s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant Number 3152 to H.
Cornwell and Royal Patent Number 4122, Land Commission Award Number
3397, Apana 3 to Puhi) situate, lying and being at Waikapu, Wailuku,
County of Maui, State of Hawaii, bearing Tax Key designation (2) 3-8-
005-023, and containing an area of 342.400 acres, more or less.

EXCEPTING AND EXCLUDING that portion of the above described parcel of
land, being an unlocated kuleana, affected by Royal Patent Number
4122, Land Commission Award Number 3397, Apana 3 to Puhi,

containing
an area of 1.65 acres, more or less.

- BEING THE PREMISES ACQUIRED BY DEED

GRANTOR : ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation
GRANTEL :  A&B-HAWAITI, INC., a Hawaii corporation

DATED : March 30, 1989, but effective as of April 1, 1989
RECORDED » Liber 23006 Page 583

END OF SCHEDULE C
201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5

235 QUEEN 5T., HONOLULU, HAWAII 85B13, PH: {(BOB) 533-6261



GENERAL NOTES

1. There is hereby omitted from any covenants, conditions and
reservations contained herein any covenant or restriction based
on race, ceolor, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial
status, marital status, disability, handicap, national origin,
ancestry, or source of income, as set forth in applicable state
or federal laws, except to the extent that said covenant or
restriction is permitted by applicable law. Lawful restrictions
under state or federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as
restrictions based on familial status.

2. Filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the
State of Hawail (Business Registration), is the merger of A&B-
HAWATII, INC., a Hawalli corporation with and into ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1993, by CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
dated January 3, 2000, recorded as Document No. 2000-003654.

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 6

235 QUEEN 8T,, HONOLULU, HAWAIJI 86813, PH: {BOB) 533-5261



GUIDELINES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and assessments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transaction is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resclutions, coples of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.

C. If an entity (corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.} is not registered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented prior to recordation.

D. If the transaction invelves a construction loan, the following is
required:

{1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prior to
recordation; or

{2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity
agreements, financial statements and other relevant information
from the owner, developer, general contracter and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon reguest from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

E. Chapter 66%, Hawaii Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for various classes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 669, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved to make additional exceptions and/or
requirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
connection with this transaction.

G. If a policy of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawali Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. Different
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon reguest from Title Guaranty
of Hawaii or on our website at www.tghawaii.com.

201012558 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 7

235 QUEEN ST., HONCLULU, HAWAH 86813, PH: (B08) 533-6261



DATE PRINTED:

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES DUE

3/25/2010

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAII INC

LEASED TO

CLASS: 5

TAX MAP KEY

DIVISION ZONE SECTICN PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.

{2) 3

8 005 023 0000

AREA ASSESSED:

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2009

342.400 AC

The records of this division show the assessed values and taxes on

the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

Installment

Tax Installment Tax
Year Amount
2009 2 322.65
2009 1 322.65
2008 2 322.65
2008 1 322.¢65

Penalty and Interest

201012558

(1 - due 8/20;

BUILDING
EXEMPTION
NET VALUE
LAND
EXEMPTION
NET VALUE

TOTAL NET VALUE

Penalty
Amount

Computed to:

2 — due 2/20)

5 0
5 0
5 0
b5 143,400 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUE
5 0
5 143,400
$ 143,400
Tax Info As Of - 9/30/2009
Interest Other Total
Amount Amount Amount
322.65 PENDING
322.65 PATD
322,65 PATID
322.65 PAID
Total Amount Due: 322.65

9/30/2009

© Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULU, HAWAINl 96813, PH: (808) 533-6261
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STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
53,500.00

This report {and any revisions thereto) is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Incorporated, hereby repcrts that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule ™B" hereof, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof 1is
vested in:

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawaii corporation,
as Fee Owner

This report is dated as of March 18, 2010 at B:00 a.m.

Inquiries concerning this report
should be directed to

MONIQUE AGARPAO.

Email magarpao@tghawaii.com

Fax (808} 521-0210

Telephone (B08) 533-5610.

Refer to Order No. 201012563,

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 1
235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULU, HAWAII 96B13, PH: (A0B) 533-6261



SCHEDULE B

EXCEPTIONS
1. Real Property Taxes, if any, that may be due and owing.
Tax Key: (2) 3-8-005-037 Area Assessed: 10.000 acres
-Note:— Attention is invited to the fact that the premises

covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

2. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawaii of all mineral and
metallic mines.

3. The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : ROYAL PATENT GRANT NUMBER 3152
DATED ©  November 18, 1545

The foregoing includes, but is not limited to, matters relating
to reservation of native rights.

4. Any unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the
same.
5. Claims arising out of customary and traditional rights and

practices, including without limitation those exercised for
subsistence, cultural, religious, access or gathering purposes,
as provided for in the Hawaii Constitution or the Hawaii Revised

Statutes.
6. Matters arising out of, including any access and utility rights
in favor of the parcel {unlocated kuleana) excluded in Schedule
C.
201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. : Page 2
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

7. Discrepancies, conflicts in beoundary lines, shortage in area,
encroachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeological study would disclose.

~-Note:- A current survey, with metes and bounds description,
should be made of said premises.

END OF SCHEDULE B

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
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SCHEDULE C

All of that certain parcel of land (being portion{s) of the land(s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant Number 3152 to H.
Cornwell and Royal Patent Number 4122, Land Commission Award Number
3397, Apana 3 to Puhi) situate, lyving and being at Waikapu, Wailuku,
County of Maui, State of Hawaii, bearing Tax Key designation (2) 3-8-
005-037, and containing an area of 10.000 acres, more or less.

EXCEPTING AND EXCLUDING that portion of the above described parcel of
land, being an unlocated kuleana, affected by Royal Patent Number

4122, Land Commission Award Number 3397, Apana 3 to Puhi, containing
an area of 1.65 acres, more or less.

BEING THE PREMISES ACQUIRED BY DEED

GRANTOR + ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawail corporation
GRANTEE :  A&B-HAWATI, TINC., a Hawaii corporation

DATED + March 30, 1989, but effective as of April 1, 1989
RECORDED : Liber 23006 Page 583

END OF SCHEDULE C

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
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GENERAL NOTES

1. There is hereby omitted from any covenants, conditions and
reservations contained herein any covenant or restriction based
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial
status, marital status, disability, handicap, national origin,
ancestry, or source of income, as set forth in applicable state
or federal laws, except to the extent that said covenant or
restriction is permitted by applicable law. Lawful restrictions
under state or federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as
restrictions based on familial status.

2. Filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the
State of Hawaii (Business Registration), is the merger of A&B-
HAWAII, INC., a Hawaili corporation with and into ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1999, by CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
dated January 3, 2000, recorded as Document No. 2000-003694.

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5
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GUIDELINES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and assessments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transaction is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resolutions, copies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.

C. If an entity {(corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.) 1s not registered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented priecr to recordation.

D. If the transaction involves a construction loan, the following is
required:

(1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prior to
recordation; or

{2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity _
agreements, financial statements and other relevant information
from the owner, developer, general contractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are availlable upon request from Title Guaranty of Hawaiil.

E. Chapter 669, Hawali Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relatiwve
to private property boundaries for wvarious classes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 669, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved to make additional exceptions and/or
requirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
connection with this transaction.

G. If a policy of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawaii Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. Different
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon regquest from Title Guaranty
of Hawaii or on our website at www.tghawaii.com.

201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawait, Inc. Page 6
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DATE PRINTED: 3/25/2010

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES DUE

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAII INC

LEASED TO H
TAX MAP KEY
DIVISION ZONE SECTION PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.
{2) 3 8 005 037 0000
CLASS: 5 AREA ASSESSED:

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2009

10.000 AC

The records of this division show the assessed values and taxes on

the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

BUILDING 5 0
EXEMETION [ 0
NET VALUE 8 0
LAND 5 5,000 AGRICULTURAL USE VALURE
EXEMPTICN 5 ’ 0
NET VALUE S 5,000
TOTAL NET VALUE S 5,000
Installment (1 — due 8/20; 2 - due 2/20) Tax Info As Of - 9/30/2009
Tax Installment Tax Penalty Interest Other Total
Year Amount Amount Amocunt Amount Amount
2008 2 75.00 75.00 PENDING
2008 1 75.00 75.00 PAID
2008 2 30.00 30.00 PAID
2008 1 30.00 30.00 PAID
Total Amount Due:z 75.00
Penalty and Interest Computed to: 9/30/2009
201012563 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 7
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STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
$3,500.00

This report (and any revisions thereto)} is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Incorporated, hereby reports that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B™ hereof, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ATLEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawali corporation,
as Fee Owner

This report is dated as of March 22, 2010 at Bz:00 a.m.

Inquiries concerning this report
should be directed to

MONIQUE AGARPAO.

Email magarpac@tghawaii.com

Fax (808) 521-0210

Telephone (808) 533-5610.

Refer to Order No. 201012570.

201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Pags 1
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SCHEDULE B
EXCEPTIONS

1. Real Property Taxes, if any, that may be due and owing.

Tax Key: (2) 3-8-007-071 Area Assessed: 5.043 acres

-Note:- Attention is invited to the fact that the premises
covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

2. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawaii of all mineral and
metallic mines.

3. The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : ROYAL PATENT GRANT NUMBER 3152
DATED v November 18, 1945

The foregoing includes, but is not limited to, matters relating
to reservation of native rights.

4, Any unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the
same.
5. Claims arising out of custeomary and traditional rights and

practices, including without limitation those exercised for
subsistence, cultural, religicus, access or gathering purposes,
as provided for in the Hawaii Constitution or the Hawaii Revised
Statutes.

6. Discrepancies, ceonflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area,
encroachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeclogical study would disclose.

END OF SCHEDULE B

201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 2
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SCHEDULE C

A1l of that certain parcel of land (being portion(s) of the land{s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant Number 3152 to H.

Cornwell)

State of Hawaii,

situate, lying and being Waikapu, Wailuku, County of Maui,
and thus bounded and described:

Beginning at a pipe at the southeasterly corner of this parcel of

land, on the northerly side
point of beginning referred
"LUKE" being 10, 652.35 feet
thence by azimuths measured

1. 118° 00"
2. 147° 14"
3. 237° 14"
4. 327°  14-
5. 28° 00
BEING THE
GRANTOR
GRANTEE
DATED
RECORDED
201012570

200.00
14" 460.00
41" 400.00
41" 465.24
346.45

of Waikapu Recad, the coordinates of said
to Government Survey Triangulation Station
south and 1,133.48 feet east and running
clockwise from true South:

feet aleong the northerly side of
Waikapu Road to a pipe:

feet along the remaining portiocn of
Grant 3152 to H. Cornwell land owned
by Alexander and Baldwin, In. to a
pipe;

feet along same to a pipe;
feet along same to a pipe;
feet along same to the point of

beginning and containing an area of
5.043 acres, more or less.

PREMISES ACQUIRED BY DEED

ATLFXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation

A&B-HAWATIT,

INC., a Hawail corporation

March 30, 1989, but effective as of April 1, 1989

Liber 23006

Page 583

END OF SCHEDULE C
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GENERAL NOTES

1. There is hereby omitted from any covenants, conditions and
reservations contained herein any covenant or restriction based
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial
status, marital status, disability, handicap, national origin,
ancestry, or source of income, as set forth in applicable state
or federal laws, except to the extent that said covenant or
restriction is permitted by applicable law. TLawful restrictions
under state or federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as
restrictions based on familial status.

2. Filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the
State of Hawaii (Business Registration}), is the merger of A&B-
HAWAITI, INC., a Hawaii corporation with and into ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1999, by CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
dated January 3, 2000, recorded as Document No. 2000-003694.

201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 4
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GUIDELINES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and assessments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transaction is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resolutions, copies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.:

C. If an entity (corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.) is not registered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented prior to recordation.

D. Xf the transaction involves a cecnstruction loan, the following is
required:

(1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prior to
recordation; or

{2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity _
agreements, financial statements and other relevant information
from the owner, developer, general contractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

E. Chapter 669%, Hawaii Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for various classes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 668, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved to make additional exceptions and/or
requirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
connection with this transactiocn.

G. If a policy of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawaii Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. Different
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty
of Hawaii or ¢on our website at www.tghawaii.com.

201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5

235 QUEEN ST., HONOLULL, HAWAII 96B13, PH: (B08) 532-6261



DATE PRINTED:

3/25/2010

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES DUE

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAII INC

LEASED TO

CLASS: 5

TAX MAP KEY

DIVISION ZONE SECTION PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.

(2) 3

8

007 071 0000

AREA ASSESSED: 5.043 AC

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2009

The records of this division show the assessed values and taxes on
the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

BUILDING 3 0
EXEMPTION S 0
NET VALUE s 0
LAND 3 100 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUE
EXEMPTION $ 0
NET VALUE 3 100
TOTAL NET VALUE $ 100
Installment (1 - due 8/20; 2 - due 2/20) Tax Info As Of - 9/30/2009
Tax Installment Tax Penalty Interest Other Total
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
2005 2 75.00 75.00 PENDING
2008 1 75.00 75.00 PAID
2008 2 30.00 30.00 PAID
2008 1 30.00 30.00 PAID
Total Amount Due: 75.00
Penalty and Interest Computed to:
201012570 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 6
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REVISED -~ 7/14/2010
report date unchanged

STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
$3,500.00

This report (and any revisions thereto) is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawail, Incorporated, hereby reports that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B" hereof, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in Schedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawaii corporation,
as Fee Owner

This report is dated as of March 31, 2010 at 8:00 a.m.

Inquiries concerning this report
should be directed to

LESLIE BALMILERO.

Fmail lbalmileroftghawaii.com
Fax (808) 521-0287

Telephone (808) 533-5869.

Refer to Order No. 201012565.

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 1
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SCHEDULE B

EXCEPTIONS
1. Real Property Taxes, 1f any, that may be due and owing.
Tax Key: {(2) 3-8-007-101 Area Assessed: 434.402 acres

Land Classification: AGRICULTURAL

—Note:~ Attention is invited to the fact that the premises

covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

2. Reservation in favor of the State of Hawail of all mineral and
metallic mines.

3. Lease of right-of-way, in favor of MAUI ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED
and GTE HAWAITAN TELEPHONE COMPANY, INCORPORATED, now known as
HAWATIAN TELCOM, INC., dated August 5, 1960, recorded in Liber
3906 at Page 64; granting rights-of-way, each twenty-five (25)
feet in width, over, acrecss and under over the land described
herein, for a term of thirty-five (35} years from the date
hereof, and thereafter form year to year until terminated.

4. GRANT
TO :  COUNTY OF MAUI
DATED : September 193, 1961
RECORDED : Liber 4159 Page 172
GRANTING : an easement over Easement "B" being more
particularly described therein
201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 2
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

5. GRANT
TO COUNTY OF MAUI
DATED December 11, 1979
RECORDED : Liber 14533 Page 152
GRANTING : an easement over Easement "17" being more
particularly described therein
6. CERTIFICATE dated June 2, 1983, recorded in Liber 17086 at Page

382 by A&B PROPERTIES, INC., a Hawaii corporation, re:
reclassification of approximately 680 acres.

7. The terms and

INSTRUMENT

DATED :

RECORDED :
PARTIES

8. The terms and
INSTRUMENT
DATED

RECORDED
PARTIES :

201012565

provisions contained in the following:

SECOND 14.04.010(E) AGREEMENT RELATING TQ FIRE
PROTECTION :

August 25, 1887

Liber 21387 Page 752

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation,
CERIZO BROTHERS, INC., a Hawaiil corporation, and

the COUNTY OF MAUI and its DEPARTMENT OF WATER
SUPPLY

provisions contained in the following:
AGREEMENT TO DEFER SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS

September 27, 1989
Liber 23854 Page 9

- ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation,

and the DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY of the County
Maui

© Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

9. Unrecorded Purchase and Exchange Agreement dated February 20,
19289, made by and between ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii
corporation and BILL MILLS, which agreement is now held by MAUI
LANI PARTNERS, a Hawail general partnership.

10. The terms and provisions contained in the following:

INSTRUMENT : SUBDIVISTON AGREEMENT (AGRICULTURAL USE}

DATED :  August 29, 1989
RECORDED : Liber 23899 Page 679
PARTIES : ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation,

and the COUNTY OF MAUI, through its Department of
Public Works

11. The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT (LARGE LOTS)
DATED : August 29, 1989
RECORDED : Liber 23899 Page 689
PARTIES : ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawali corporation,

and the COUNTY OF MAUI

12. The terms and provisions contained in the following:

INSTRUMENT : AGREEMENT RELATING TO FIRE PROTECTION

DATED : July 18, 1930
RECORDED : Document No. 90-139708
PARTIES : FRANK WEATHERFORD, doing business as MAUI SOD FARM,
and the DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY of the County of
Maui
201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 4
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

13. The terms and provisions contained in the following:

INSTRUMENT : SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT (LARGE LOTS)

DATED : March 22, 18921
RECORDED :  Document No. 91-05128¢6
PARTIES * ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawall corporation and

MAUTI LAND PARTNERS, a Hawail general partnership
and the COUNTY OF MAUI

14, GRANT
TO : COUNTY OF MAUTI, a political subdivision of the
State of Hawaii
DATED : April 30, 1991
RECORDED : Document No. 92-134141
GRANTING : a perpetual nonexclusive easement from Waikapu

Road, also known as Waiko Road to property owned by
the County of Maui known as the Waikapu Landfill
side, over and across "Easement Area" (being
Easement "D"}, for ingress and egress purposes,
said Easement Area being more particularly
described therein

15. RESTRICTION OF VEHICLE ACCESS3 RIGHTS

ALONG : Kuihelani Highway

SHOWN : on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 1992, revised May 15, 1982
and approved by the County of Maui, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 1992 (LUCA File No. 3.1539)

l6. DESIGNATION OF EASEMENT "D"

PURPOSE : for access purposes

SHOWN : on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveycr, dated March 2, 19%2, revised May 15, 19982
and approved by the County of Maul, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 1922 (LUCA File No. 3.1539)

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

17. DESIGNATION OF EASEMENT "B"

PURPOSE
SHOWN

for water line purposes

on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 1982, revised May 15, 1982
and approved by the County of Mauil, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 1992 (LUCA File No. 3.1539)

18. DESIGNATION OF EASEMENT "17"

PUORPOSE
SHOWN

for water line purposes

on Subdivision Map by Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 1992, revised May 15, 1992
and approved by the County of Maui, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 1992 (LUCA File No. 3.1539)

19. DESIGNATION OF EASEMENT "18"

PURPOSE
SHOWN

20. GRANT

TO

DATED

RECORDED
GRANTING

21. Discrepancies,

for water line purposes

on Subdivision Map by &Allen K. Watanabe, Land
Surveyor, dated March 2, 1992, revised May 15, 1892
and approved by the County of Maui, Department of
Public Works on May 22, 1992 {(LUCA File No. 3.1539)

MAUI ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED and HAWAIIAN TELCOM,
TINC.

December 15, 2003
Document No. 2006-147438
a perpetual right and easement for utility purposes

conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area,

encreachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeological study would disclose.

201012565
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

22. Any unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the

same.

23. Any lien -{or claim of lien) for services, labor or material

arising from an improvement or work related to the land described
in Schedule C herein.

END OF SCHEDULE B

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.
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SCHEDULE C

A1l of that certain parcel of land (being portion(s) of the land(s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant Number 3152 to Henry
Cornwell and Royal Patent Grant Number 3343 to Claus Spreckels)
situate, lying and being at Wailuku Commons, District of Wailuku,
Island and County of Maui, State of Hawaii, being TOT 12-A of the
"MAUI LANI SUBDIVISION" bearing Tax Key designation (2) 3-8-007-101,
and containing an area of 434.402 acres, more or less.

Said above described parcel ¢f land having been acquired by ALEXANDER
& BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation by the following Deeds:

1. By DEED of HAWATIAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, a California
corporation, dated December 31, 1826, recorded in Liber 865 Page
B; and

2. By DEED of ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation, dated

March 30, 1989, recorded in Liber 23006 at Page 583.

END OF SCHEDULE C

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 8
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GENERAL NOTES

1. The name of HAWAITAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, LTD. was
changed to ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LTD. by instrument dated January
3, 1962, recorded in Liker 4199 at Page 105.

2. The name of ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LTD. was changed to ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. by instrument dated January 2, 1962, recorded in
Liber 4191 at Page 481.

3. The name of A&B HAWAII, INC. merged with and in to ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC., by instrument dated December 31, 1999, recorded as
Document No. 2000-003694.

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 9
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GUIDELINES FOR THE TISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and assessments subsequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transaction is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resclutions, copies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.

C. If an entity (corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.) is not reglstered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented pricor to receordation.

D. If the transaction involves a construction loan, the following is
required:

(1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prier to
recordation; or

{2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity
agreements, financial statements and cother relevant information
from the owner, developer, general contractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

E. Chapter 669, Hawaii Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for various classes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 669, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right i1s reserved Lo make additicnal exceptions and/or
requirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
connection with this transaction.

G. If a policy.of title insurance is issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawaii Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. DIifferent
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty
of Hawaii or on our website at www.tghawaii.com.

201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 10
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DATE PRINTED: 7/14/2010

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES DUE

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAIT INC

LEASED TO
TAX MAP KEY
DIVISION ZONE SECTION PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.
{(2) 3 8 007 101 0000
CLASST AGRICULTURAL AREA ASSESSED: 434.402 AC

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2010

The records of this division show the assessed values and taxes on
the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

BUILDING 5 59,500
EXEMPTICN [ 0]
NET VALUE [ 59,500
LAND $ 1,684,900 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUE
EXEMPTION 5 0
NET VALUE 5 1,684,900
TOTAL NET VALUE $ 1,744,400
Installment ({1 — due 8/20; 2 - due 2/20) Tax Info As 0Of - 3/31/2010
Tax Installment Tax Penalty Interest Other Total
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
2009 2 4,299.30 4,299.30 PAID
2009 1 4,299,30 4,299 30 PAID
2008 2 3,912.30 3,912.30 PAID
2008 1 3,912.30 3,512.30 PAID
201012565 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 11
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REVISED 08/16/2010
report date unchanged

STATUS REPORT

Maximum liability limited to
$3,500.00

This report (and any revisions thereto) is issued solely for the
convenience of the titleholder, the titleholder's agent, counsel,
purchaser or mortgagee, or the person ordering it.

SCHEDULE A

Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Incorporated, hereby reports that, subject
to those matters set forth in Schedule "B" herecof, the title to the
estate or interest to the land described in 3chedule "C" hereof is
vested in:

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.,
a Hawali corporation,
as Fee Qwner

This report is dated as of August 11, 2010 at 8:00 a.m.

Inquiries concerning this report
should be directed to

MONIQUE AGARPAO.

Email magarpao@tghawallil.com

Fax (808) 521-0210

Telephone (808) 533-5610.

Refer to Order No. 201012566.

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 1
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SCHEDULE B
EXCEPTIONS

Real Property Taxes, 1f any, that may be due and owing.

Tax Key: (2) 3-8-007-104 Area Assesged: 4.070 acres

-Note:- Attention is invited to the fact that the premises
covered herein may be subject to possible rollback or
retroactive property taxes.

Reservation in favor of the State of Hawall of all mineral and
metallic mines.

The terms and provisions contained in the following:
INSTRUMENT : ROYAL PATENT GRANT NUMBER 3152

DATED : November 18, 1945

The foregoing includes, but is not limited to, matters relating
to reservation of native rights.

Any unrecorded leases and matters arising from or affecting the
same .

Claims arising out of customary and traditional rights and
practices, including without limitation those exercised for
subsistence, cultural, religiocus, access or gathering purposes,

as provided for in the Hawaii Constitution or the Hawail Revised
Statutes.

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 2
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SCHEDULE B CONTINUED

6. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area,

encroachments or any other matters which a correct survey or
archaeological study would disclose.

-Note:- A current survey, with metes and bounds description,
should be made of said premises.

7. Claims arising out of the failure to convey the land described
herein together with an easement or right of access.
-Note:- This will be deleted from the policy if such conveyance
occurs prior to the pelicy date.
END OF SCHEDULE B
201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 3
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SCHEDULE C

All of that certain parcel of land (being portion{(s) of the land(s)
described in and covered by Royal Patent Grant 3152 to Henry Cornwell)
situate, lying and being at Waikapu, Wailuku, County of Mauil, State of
Hawaii, being LOT 1-B of the "KOPAA SUBDIVISION NO. 2", bearing Tax

Key designaticon (2) 3-8-007-104 and containing an area of 4.070 acres,
more or less.

BEING THE PREMISES ACQUIRED BY DEED

GRANTOR : ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawail corporation
GRANTEE : A&B-HAWAII, INC., a Hawalil corpocration

DATED : March 30, 1989, but effective as of April 1, 1989
RECORDED : Liber 23006 Page 583

END OF SCHEDULE C

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. _ Page 4
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GENERAL NOTES

1. There i1s hereby omitted from any covenants, conditions and
reservations contained herein any covenant or restriction based
on race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial
status, marital status, disability, handicap, national origin,
ancestry, or sgource of income, as get forth in applicable state
or federal laws, except tc the extent that said covenant or
regtriction is permitted by applicable law. Lawful regtrictions
under state or federal law on the age of occupants in senior
housing or housing for older persons shall not be construed as
restrictions based on familial status.

2. Filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the
State of Hawaii (Business Registration), is the merger of A&B-
HAWAITI, INC., a Hawali corporation with and into ALEXANDER &
BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1999, by CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
dated January 3, 2000, recorded as Document No. 2000-003694.

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 5
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GUIDELINES FOR THE ISSUANCE OF INSURANCE

A. Taxes shown in Schedule B are as of the date such information is
available from the taxing authority. Evidence of payment of all
taxes and asggegsments subsgequent to such date must be provided
prior to recordation.

B. Evidence of authority regarding the execution of all documents
pertaining to the transaction is required prior to recordation.
This includes corporate resolutions, copies of partnership
agreements, powers of attorney and trust instruments.

C. If an entity {corporation, partnership, limited liability company,
etc.) 1s not registered in Hawaii, evidence of its formation and
existence under the laws where such entity is formed must be
presented pricr to recordation.

D. If the transaction involves a construction loan, the following is
required:

(1) a letter confirming that there is no construction prior to
recordation; or

(2) if there is such construction, appropriate indemnity
agreements, financial statements and other relevant information
from the owner, developer, general contractor and major sub-
contractors must be submitted to the Title Company for approval
at least one week prior to the anticipated date of recordation.

Forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty of Hawaii.

E. Chapter 669, Hawail Revised Statutes, sets forth acceptable
tolerances for discrepancies in structures or improvements relative
to private property boundaries for varicus ¢lasszes of real
property. If your survey map shows a position discrepancy that
falls within the tolerances of Chapter 669, call your title officer
as affirmative coverage may be available to insured lenders.

F. The right is reserved to make additional exceptions and/or
requirements upon examination of all documents submitted in
connection with this trangaction.

G. If a policy cof title insurance ig issued, it will exclude from
coverage all matters set forth in Schedule B of this report and in
the printed Exclusions from Coverage contained in an ALTA policy or
in the Hawali Standard Owner's Policy, as applicable. Different
forms may have different exclusions and should be reviewed. Copies
of the policy forms are available upon request from Title Guaranty
of Hawaii or on ocur websgite at www.tghawaii.com.

201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc. Page 6
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DATE PRINTED: 8/16/2010

STATEMENT OF ASSESSED VALUES AND REAL PROPERTY TAXES DUE

NAME OF OWNER: A & B - HAWAII INC
LEASED TO : SCHENK, GREG

TAX MAP KEY

DIVISION ZONE SECTION PLAT PARCEL HPR NO.

{2) 3 8 007 104 0000

CLASS: AGRICULTURAL AREA ASSESSED:

ASSESSED VALUES FOR CURRENT YEAR TAXES: 2010

4.070 AC

The records of this divisgion show the assessed values and taxes on
the property designated by Tax Key shown above are as follows:

BUILDING 3 0
EXEMPTION $ 0
NET VALUE ] 0
LAND $
EXEMPTION S 0
NET VALUE $ 100
TOTAL NET VALUE 3 100
Installment (1 - due 8/20; 2 - due 2/20) Tax Info As Of
Tax Installment Tax Penalty Interest Other
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount
2010 2 75.00
2010 1 75.00
2009 2 75.00
2009 1 75.00
2008 2 30.00
2008 1 30.00
Total Amount Due:
201012566 © Title Guaranty of Hawaii, Inc.

235 QUEEN ST., HONMOLULU, HAWAIl 96813, PH: (808) 533-8261

100 AGRICULTURAL USE VALUE

- 7/01/2010
Total

Amount
75.00 PENDING
75.00 PENDING
75.00 PAID
75.00 PATD
30.00 PATD
30.00 PAID
150.00
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Thia lundenture, dated and Lo becaome effeative the 3lst day of
Lbacember, 1925, made by npd batwean the Hawalian Gummeraisl &rd Sugar
Cozpany, & corporktion duly oryanized end exiating under snd by virtus
of the lawa of the 3tate of Celifornie, party of the first part, hersin
souetimen callad the "Grantor™, whose principal pleoe of business and
post offics adoress is Puunena, Island of Maui, Perritory of Hawaii, end
the Hewal{an Cozuercizl end Suger Company, Iimlted, @ corporation duly
orrpnized and exlating under and by virtue of the lews of the Tarritary
of Jawall, party of the sesond part, herein sometimes culled tha
"Crantee®, whose principel office and poat office addrens is im tha
Stangenwsld Bullding on Herchent Street in Honolulu, City and County of
Honolalu, in seid "erritory;

Witnessath: Whereas, the Grantor, as e sorporation foreign to the
Perritory of Hawsil, has for amny years been sngaged in cerrying onm i%s
SUMRT ﬂantnt;m and business on esid Ielend of Meui, and for economio
und pdministrative reasona ite atookholders have determined to trensefer
it ¢orporute situs to erid Territory of Hawall; and to that snd have
caugaa said Hawsllan Commerciel end Suger Company, Limited, the Orentee
hereunder, to be Incorporated in Hawaii to tmke over end garry om the
aeld busipeas and property and aesume, parform ena aischerge all debte,
liebilities, coniracie wnd other obligations in ponneation therewith:
nnd

¥herena, peid GCrantor now hes & capitel atook of ten million
dollars repressntad bty four hundrad thoussnd peid up sherse of stook of
the par value of twenty-five dollers par shure; end seid Grantes was
incorporated with en initial capital stoak of one thoussnd dollnre,
Tally paid up with funde furnished for the purpose by the Grantor,
reprecsented by forty shares of ampitml siook of the par value of twanty-
five dollers per shars, end which forty sheres will he trensferrad to
the Grentor by the holders theredf concurrantly with the axecution of
this inastrument; and the Grantes, being thersunto authorized for the
pn;-paetn horein sxpressgud, hes inorsassd itm ompital stook, on the date
heresf, to ‘ten million dollars iz order to Llasue to the Crantor thres
w pinety-nine thoussnd nine hundred sixty additionsal sherss of
wiock of said per walue, fully peid apnd non-csasssable, by way of payment
or exohangs for the oonveysnce to 1t herein @sde by the Graptor of satd
businese ll‘l.d property: it being intended that the Grantor, in heveefter
effacting 1% own disincorporstian in the State of Californis, will

L)



distribuse srld four hundred thouennd mheree of the ompital etook of
the Gjrantn among flLt.a own stookholdars, shars for share, ecoording to
their respsotive holdings of stock of ssid California corporetion:
Fow tharefors: The Grantor, aoting pursuant to and in exeoution
of the tarms of the Tesolution in this behalf peesed and mdopted by ite
atockholders on December 8, 1986, at 8 spovisl mesting regularly oslled
end noticed ta be held for the purpoee on November 17, 19E6, and on that
day regulerly edjourned to seid Sth day of Deoember, 1986, -ani 1n oonei-
daration of the trensfer to it now made of mald Torty pald up sharss of
ths ezpital stock of the Grantee, the recelpt thereof belng by 1t hereby
aoknowledgzed, and the lesue and delivery to 1t now mads by the Grantes
of pnid three hundred ninety~nine thousend nine hWundred aixty additional
pald up and non-assesesble shares of the capital stock of the Grantes,
the receint thersof being by the Grantor slasc hersby ecknowledgad, and
2180 1n consideration of the covenante hereinafter oontained on the part
of the Orantes with respect to the liabilities and cbligmtione of the
" ¢Grentsr, does hereby grent, oconvey, aasign, tronefer, sat over and
deliver untoc the Grantaee, its suocoessors and .aslgna,."a'll of the businees
propertiesn, sssete and interests of svery kind snd chareroter of eald
Gyrantor, wherever gltuete, as the ssme stand on the date hereof, as A
golng concern, (other than seid forsy shores of stock of said Mewaiian
Commeroial and Sugar Company, limited, conourrently assigned by the
holders thereof to said Orantor ue aforeesid), and including, without
prejudice to the generality of the foregelmg terme, 81l of the lands
end proparties mentioned in the schedules therecf hersundsr wyitten, sand
all othsr properties whether mentioned in pald pchedules or not, includ-
ing, in generel terme; &ll lends, tenements, heredltements, sstates,
revereions, remaindsre, eusements, rightes, privileres snd sppurtenamen,
shattels rem) anc personel, optioms, lepbehglde, licenses, and frap-
ohiea;J ell suger cene and growing orops, 611 sugerr &nd other produote
of any of its frotorise or works; sll reilways and their aqulpn;nt
ineluding engines, oera, tracke, &nd other rolling stook and eguipment;
2ll water end water righte, licensea, agreements, privileges and ot.ha;r
interests relating to water or the use thercof, snd all pumpa and pump-
ing plants end irrigation works raleting to the development, conserva-
tion, oerriage or atilization of water, inoluding walls, shaftm, tunnele.
dicchas, pipe-lines, flumos, getes, dams, ropervolrs, tenks ;nd. othar

worke and feollitisns; ell builoingm and other improvements inoluding
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mills, fagturles, warehousee, shopa, stores, hospltelse, berns, guruges,
houses, laborers’ anu ovher gquarters and ceapda, fenocee, bridges anma
ather improvemernts and fixtures of every kind; all agrioultursl, manu-
facturing and other machinery, toola, implements, applisnces and mquip-
nent or nceossums.' plows, harroms, trectors, trugcks, autog, wagons,
corts, snd other vehicles and thelr soceasmoriea; all horses, miles,
sattle enl other anlmals, and poult®y, &nd all herrasses, sediles, packs,
and atker parvphernelinr iroideat o the nae of enntaele; all hydro-
eiectrie and other plents and light and pover lines and electricml
fectinery, apparstus and supplies; all atore, house, office, hospital
fud other furniture, furnishings snd acuipment; all goods, weroes, mer-
chnnﬂear, meterisls snd supplies; ell property im the nature of or
representing tnvestments, Ineluding sheres of steek in other oorpora-
tiore {(exceot ‘szvic‘. forty skeras of stock of the Grentes corporation},
bcnds, debentures, notes, certificetes of indebtedness or deposit, and
oather forms of mecarltise or ovidences of property end incebtedness;
xll cash oo hend soc ik bopks, reserves. surplus, rents, oredits,
acgounts, aabts, wuas, clelme and demends shatsoever: and all contrreés,
agreananta, choses In wetlon tnd ather forms or kinds of property or
interasts Ip any munnar appuriepant to or comnected with any of the smld
proparty or the business of the Grantor; and inclunding also the good
will of snld buginsss; apd whather any of tha smid property, righis or
intereatd mpe nok vagtsd or contingent, tangible or intangible, in
possussion or in actlion;

To hove and to hald 21l end singular the propertiae, business and
intarests lu'.nx;ann.m. with the rents, lgsues and profites thereof, unte
the Grantee, ite gsuccegsers end assipgns, cbrolusely, moecording to the
arme titls, temure (od interest thereln as oxmed or claimeble by the
Grantor;

But sublect, neverthaless, to all ocutstanding leasea, contracta,
iloensae, agency and other egresmente, end all ather obligations of the
Grontor affecting or i any mAnner connectad with any of the enid
property or tusiness, and subject rlso to all Just olaims for umpmid
taxss, reats, or othap debts, olaime, demends or lisbilities of every
kind now sxisting &nd shich may in any mander herexftar ariss or poorue
6> bedoxno chargesble respooting or affeating mny of the ssid property

: or meid tasluess; snd provided that all rights of oreditors of the
Grantor wad all l4ena upon eny of the property hereby convsyed shall he



prasarved uniapaired.

Ani the Grantor sagrees that 1f at any time or times herenfter the
Grantee ghell deem or be sdviasd that apy other or further dseds,
sgatgnmente, transfere or essurences in the law ere nae“aar:v or dealra-
hle to vest or perfect title in the Orantes ca toc any of the property
horeby intenden to be canveyed or ssvlgned, then upon The written demam
af the Grantor {while existing as & legel entlty) or ites trustees in
dissolution while sxsreisipg thalr office shall and will, without mny
other or further consideration, make, execute and delivar to the Grentee
21l such other or further deeds, assigmments or othar instrunents and
agsvanoanin the law, or 4o such otrer things, ae may be necsugary or
approprinte to veat title to such property ccmpletely in the Grentee ae
herein aontemplated end intended.

And this Indsnturs further witnessgth; That the Grantes, in Son-
sideration of the premlees, Tor 1teslf and its Buccessors end seslgne,
does hersby aasuma, end ocovenmnt with the Grantor and its legsl revre-
sentatives eud stockholders thet it will pay, setinfy and dischargs all
taxes, debts, und other liebilities arpd ohligations of every oheractsr
for which the Grantor is now or may become liable in connestion with oy
roelating to ssid business or property, apd aleso all expendes in conneo-
tion with the disincorperation of the Grantor, snd alse that Lt will
fulfill, in the place and stesd of the Grantor, all contreots, lsasas,
Zuarantys, agency and other egreements, wnd other updertakings, shliga.
tlons and responeibilities, of every cherecter and in whatever fors
which the Crantor has sntersd into or undertaken or with respeot to wshioh
+the Crantor has or msy bscome abligated, in any manner insidental te or
oopneoted with smid businsss or property taken over by the Granise am
aforeseid;: end, elsp, thet it will and 1ts sucoewsore or assigne shill
at all times hold harmless end indemnify the Grantor end ite directors,
offioers, trustees or other legel reprassntetives iun dissclutbiocn, and
its stockholusrs, from any &nd all 11sbility or oblightion with redpest
to any of the matters aforeseid; snid that for any suoh purpose and as
often &8s gay he nscessary it will make and enter into sny seperate and
specific sgreenent, contract, bond, gusranty or egresment of indemnity,
witk vespeot to any partioulsr obligation or lishility; provided that
the Crantes may in ite own discretion put in lssue, defend mgeinet,
oompromise, liguidnte and settle eny such olaim, demind or matter of
liability.
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"he gohedules of property hereintefore mentioned are the follow-

tog:
Schedules '
%. Msin Plentatlon TMroperties. {One Page)
B. West Mail Watar System. (™™o Pagas) )
I. Rights under Welluku Exohange Deed.
I1. Yerpatual Righta of Way (other then as in 1).
111. Water Rights (other them &s in I). .

g, H. €, & S, Co. pilzhta of way ecrges U, A, Co.,ltd's Plantation

(Ons Pege)
D. Uiscellmuneous Iands pad Rights. {™wo Pages)

1. Centrel MHaul.

1I. E.aul:"nlni-

111. laheine end Keanspall.
E. Properiies not intluded in A, B, €. or L {genexrsl}. (One Page)
F. Hizmcellaneous deeds glven by H. . « §. Co. et al {Two Pages)
G. lemscs given by X. 0. & 5. Co. (lassor). {One Puga)
H. licenses anc yights of way granted by H. €. & 3. Co. to others.

{One Pege)

I. Agrasnents under which H. C. & S. Co. hes cartain rights and ohligm- ’ l
tiona.

_A (One Page)
Schedule A.

ain Plantation Propariies
1. The Almpuas of ¥ailuiu ag granted by the Hawelien Government to
Flans Soreckels by Gt. 3343,
2. The Aliupuss of Walkapu (Gt.3182 to Henry Cornwell), ue oonveyed, in
part, to Claus Spreckels by deeds recorced in 56/68 wnd 68/497, and, as
to the ramaining part, to Hawallean Commsrciel end Sugay Co. by deed !
15p/90.
3. The Portion of the Ahupuss of Talehunut, (1.C.A.5230, L.P.6140 to
Feawgamahl )}, ad conveyed, in part, to Claus Spreokels by deedo rpocrded
in BG/G8 mnd 68/437, end, 8e to the remeining part, to Haweiimn Commer- l
¢inl and Sugsr Co. by desd 152/90.

4. The Portions of the Ilis of Ows and Xalue, {L.C.A.4EO:R.P.1996 to

Fuihelen! and L.C.A.7713:23 to V.Kemamalu), es convaysd to M.C.& $.Co, !
by )94/198 and 310/200. and being comprised in part of the lends
desoridad in Pouncary Certiflosts {amued covering the I11 of Kelua, l

5. Tha Portians of the Ahupuams of Falislinui and Pulehurmi, (L.C.A.



Y184:L.7.8167 %o FKamaikaalos and 1.C.A.5830:1.P.8140 to Yoaweamahi), am
conveyed to H.G. & S. Co. by 620/393.

6. The following lends as conveyed te¢e H.C. & 8. Co. by Exchange Yeed
with Maui Agrioulturel Company Limited by 730/95 and by deed filed in
land Court:-

(a} 7.83 aores of Gt. 3565 to Falesekela Ranch Company mat Hokuule,
Fule (lot "B" in saia deed).

{b} 170.45 sores of meid Gt. 3565 (lot "L" in seid veed).

lel' 0.96 sore of Gt.5167 to H.P.Baldwin st OmBoplo (Iot "J" in
geid deed}-

(d) land a8 described in Owiner's Trensfer Certificate of Title
2927 to H.C.% S.C0., which sald land is to be gonveyed to H.C.& 5.Co.
1ltd., by deed intended to be recorded concurrently herewith.

Exnepting from the lands &5 atove deseribed the portions thersof
conveyed to:

(1} Watlwiu Suger Company by Exohange Deed 740/134 (All such por-
tions of lands as described under "1™ to "G" sbove ne ayve Wast of a
geseribed line running from Kahului Bay to Mesleen Bey).

{2} Meul Agricultural Compeny, 1imited, by deed 730/100 (Iote A,C,
F,K.I1,K,L epd K 66 shawpn on M.A.Co.Lltd.-E.C.& 8.Cc. Houndary Map of
1923).

13} Various perties by deeds ms listed In Schedule F.

Cortain portione of the mbove lands are subject to the leasee as
listed in Sohadule @ apd to the rightes of way and licenses as listed in
Schaduls H.

(4} 0ld rosdway ef Xahulul from U.5.Custom House Lot to Wharf St.
a8 canveyed by Territory of Hawaii to Kahwiul Pailroed Co. Qotober 14,
1910. 342/190. 0.49 =ore.

(5) Oustom Fouse lot-Kshului. Property of U.S.A. Aporoximetely
0.17 sore.

{6) Fuleanas not owned by H.t.& 8. €o. {1 any).

Sehedule B.

West Maui Water System (and rights inciuental theretol.
I. Rights under "Wailluku Exchange Deed"”.

A11 rights of every neturs of Haweiimn Commersial znd Sugar fo.
under ¥ho torme and provisione of that certain Exchange Deed and Agreo-
ment batween H.C.& 5. Co. and Walluku Sugar Comprny of June B3, 1%E4
{740/124), inoluding particulerly:

Soheduls 4.:
Pago
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1. 5/12 of woters of Walhee Stregm {up to capacity of New Walhee Ditoh)
2. 1/2 of the reialning watere of Walhea Stream.

3. A1l waters of South Walehu Stream ebove & certmin point.

4. C T sls surplus watara.

3. Cearteln power rights in lae Walley and eamsements therefor.

6. Parpetusl rights of way for all agueducts end worke of H.C.4 5. Bo's.
Weat Maul Water Systea.

7. Certaln waters developed by the ¥miiulu River Tunnels and perpetual
rights of way for sald tnnnals.

B. Certain honse lotes at Tallukn end Waiehu.

9. Other rights of H.C.& 5. C0. &8 aet forth in the general agresmsnt
regarding maintensnce, speration and contrel of ditches, water develgp-
ment projects, acquisitian of sdditiona) watey rights and righta of way,
water pawar rights and sundry mattars.

(This dead alqd egreement is effective to the full extent of the
interasta of 5.C.& 5. Co. ana W.5.Co. in all properties and righte
referrad to in the above liet]).

11. Parpetunl Rlghia of Way {other than s in I).

A. Rightse of way, origlnelly fea simple etripe, but now perpatual
Tishte of way by the terme of "Weiluku Exchange Deed" 740/134.

(1) From A.K.Xepoikai and fourtesn others, 81/393, s to strips of
land 1n Eailuku and Gaishu, totelling A.03 nores me ccoupied hy Sprac-
kel'c Walhea Dilteh. _

(2) From Mary Kuilisha and three others, 191/349, es to strips of
land in Wailuku totelling J.51 macre ag occufled by mald ditoh.

(3} From Fesuwal and two others, 191/350, ag %o & strip of land In
%¥alluku, 1/8 sore in aree, as anoupied by said ditoh.

B. Popetual Rights of Way sorous oF under.,

{1) L.C.A.436:R.P.4388 o Kopmu, at ¥ailukn, fran Akeans Akoloka,
193/343 {"Walluku Diteh™).

~

{2) 1.C.A.409 to Fanekaole, at Weiluku, from J.K.Kalua, 210/388,
("Wailuku Ditoch").

(3) 1.C.A.BE20:R.P.4167 to Almlau, et Usiluku, from Aulis Ah lecng,
217/64. and J.Paikeke, Z10/369, and ss to the 2.06 sores of 1.C.A.2820
from A.N.Kepolkal EE3/101, the fee of whiok is now vested in ¥.53.Co.
("Railuku Diteh").

(4) L.C.A.2629:R.P.298 to Neleipulsho, et Welluku, from Moses
Taeal1l11111, et al. 225/463.
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{Wailuku River Tunnels - No surface privileges). g:::a;}n »

(B) L.Coh457:R.P.4149 to Kawniliilil, Bt Weiluku, from M.H.Reoho-
xalolo 229/136.

(¥ailuku River Tunnela - Ho aurface privilegea).

{6) 1ot at ¥Waiehu am dascribsd in dead of Weiluku Sugar Company td
Eapobuli, April 8, 1897, From Kapohull 292/165. From Eapohuli 298/1a5.
(For Biteh).

(7) lend at Ohismui snd Ohleiki, Welshu.

From P. Goodness 291/377. (For Ditch).

(8) Ieval land at Wailuku. From M.S.lavel 521/289.

(Soreckel's Weihes Tunnel under 0.B4¢ sore in ¥Wailuku Townl.

I1X. Water Righis {other then as in I sbove).

{1) 5/12 of the water rights of L.C.A.2655:R.P.G7Z1 at Waihew as
reeervad from 350/28 {H.C.& S. {o. to £. Brewer & Co. 1ltd.).

{2) 5/12 of the water rights of 0.23 aore at Waihes, from W.Neehu.
46/465.

{3) The water rights of certain lands in Scuth Walehu mnd 8/12 of
the watsr rights of certaln iande et Valhae, from Walluku Suger Co.
785/18.

(¢) B8/if of the water righta of ocertain lends at Weihes, from
¥Walluku Suger Company 780/4%5.

Schedule C.

H.0.& 5.00. Rights of Way acroas I.A.Co's Plantation
1. Iowrie, New Heiku and Xehaka Ditchea.

Parpotual rights of way for the H.C.& §. Co's lowrie, New Haiku and
Keheka Dltches, or agquedusts, soross lands of Maui Agriculturel Co.ltd.,
end perpetusl esgements over roads and tralis in connestion therewith.
Fronm M.A.Co. Ltd. Dec. 31, 1986.

2. ¥aheks Psnstook.

Perpetual Tight of wmay from K. A, Co. Ltd. by 729/6D and B29/193.
3. Kaheke Tail-Bace Ditoh. Schedule £,

Parpetusl right of way from M. A% Co. Lta. by 729/80. Tore 1.

Schedules D.
Miscellsneous lends end Righta
I. Central Maul
1. 1.C.A.8366:R.P. 6140 to Kalun in Ili Makesks, Waihes, ares l.04
‘BOTEN.
From J. H. Trask and Paushi Trask, 97/48.

3
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enedule L.

2. Inte 2%, 30, 31, and 32 of Cemeteory of Falluku Cemetery Asscclation,
By deed of Aprll 26, lB8&.

3. Eaheka Powar Houme Iot. £.37 acres at EKaheks {portion of Ahupuss of
Hemaluapoko). By dead TE9/8D.

4. Eaheks Power House Superintendent's lot. 0.92 acre et Keheks (por-
ticn of shupuas of Felliimeile. By deed 8E9/173.

5. 0ld ¥ahulul School lot. 0.75 sore. By desd 285/814.

4. "Alexander & Heldwin, lot". 0.73 eere in Eshulni (portion of Ili of

Falus s conVeyed by Samiel Parker to Alexander and Baldwin 176/73).
By deed 201/43.

7. All irterest of H.C.& S.Co0. in such lends West of the division line

deseribed in "Wailukm Exchange Desd™ {740/124) as wers occupied by the
railway of Kahului Ballroad Compeny on June 23, 1984. {es reserved by
E.C.A 5. Co. in maild deed.)

8. Al) sem fipteries of which H.C.A 5. Co. was declared to be the
osner by Judgment daxitad May B4, 1309, in the case of H.C.& G.Co. wam.
Tareitory of H:l‘llll:

1. The sem figheries demcrited in 1.0.A.420 to FRuihelanl {Ili of
Owal mpd covering 73 merse and 1 square ghain in mrem,

2. All s ﬂ:uherxet adjoining the Alupuss of Wailuku snd extend-
ing along the sntire northerly boundary thereof from low water mark to
& line ono geogruphlce]l mile sesward tharsfrom.

9. Permizzion to aaintain elsotric powsr trenemimslon lines aorome cer-
tein Ligheays (by rasolution of Bosrd of Supesrvigors, Juns 7, 1917.})
11. ®est Unul. _

l. Option to purchage rellway th.u of way across lande owned by
¥.5.5antos within the Alspusa of Kesmsuls. By grant from R-S.:Slntol
Hsych 31, 1986.

2. The following intereets in the Ulumelu Huil lands (Gt. B974 to
E.9.A4llsn, 1.C.A.311 to F.Coswell and L.C.A.10474 to Namauu) as oonvey-
ad by Hosaa Kahispo to J. IInhoa. et al, Dec. 3, 1683.

(s} The mkare of Xupsle (by GB3/848).

{d] 10 amores of shere of Papoko (by 623/24B}.

{a} 1& mcres of share of 5. Kapaki (by 623/848}.

(d} The share of K. Knlia {by 194/143).

{s} "The alare of Fanshuna {by £00/113).

(£) 1/6 share of J. Mahoe (by 216/323}.

{g) The shars of B. Kahopuoku (by £10/361}.
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Total 4-1/% shares and B5 acres, or mpproximately 150 sares. i,

3. All interest of H.C.& S.Co. in the Ahupuas of East Kaupakulus o

{Gt. 771 to Hikisu), eaid interest conelsting of: q

Reversionary intersst in lot 40 (ares 56.53 aores) of the lxnds 7

conveyed to Territory of Haweii for homesteading purposes only by Maui F%

Railraad and Steamship cumhlny. beo. B0, 1912 (Emid lot 40 not having :

baen homeatended. i

e right to grant to Kehulul Railroad Company within & certain L3

torm Tights of way soross any portins of the lands conveyed by sald -

dead. ¥
111. lsheina pnd Kananapaldl.

1/6 undivided interest end 1/48 undivided interest in: Fj

1. 1/3 undivided intereast in 1.6.61451 to Femekshiku at Fonokohau, 3
Xeanapali . Sohodule .0

£. 11/100 sore of 1.0.A.025 to Fahiamoe at lahairna. “eo
The eald interests having been ‘acquired Yy desisfrom Mery Pulehn .
Smythe and Jamas K. Smythe, respectively, of Oot. 27, 1926, [j
B Schedule E. -
Propertiea not 1ncluded in A,B,C or D. (Genersl) L;

All other properties of every neture ownsd by H.C.& §.Co.or that

may hereafter acerue to the benefit of R..& S. Co. end particularly j
the properties acguired by or under the following deeds;: i
Prom Claus Spreckels, 76/206, 93/£35, 168/250, 196/8224 ana PQ1/155. &
from Yeikepu Sugar Company 162/90. i
Prom H.A.Beldwin, ot &l, Trustees 620/39% {FPropertiee of Kihel 2
Plantetion Company, Limited). ;
From Msui Railroad end Steamehip Company 683/248. .
Evcepting from the maid properties mich porticns thersof awm have 3
bean conveyed by deeds listed or noted hegrein. -
And excopting particularly aell portions oI the eaid properties na Schedale £ ;

ccnvayed by F.C.& S. Co. to Esst Maul Irrigation Company, Iimitved, by  Tage 1.
desd dated December 31, 1926 snd recorded just prior to this instrument.
Scheduls F.

Miscellanecus Deads Oiven by H. C. & 5. Co.
{In certain of thess dceds, H.G.& 5. Ce. hae reversionary interests

or options to purchasal.

Grantes Instrument of Iand aonveyed Araa
= of H. June 21, 1905 269/431  Puunene Sohool Lot 1.98




Crantad

Tetess, Iodge
Taul $984.

Leut.of Public
Inestruatlion
County of Hau!

T. of H,

. of H,

".5.4.

Catholle Mlasion
getihlalle Masion

J.de Andrnde

S.J.lobriga
P.Fernandez
i. Mendoss

T. of H.

Trusteos,

Inatrument of
July 11,1906 £82/408
Supt.17,1908 2£5/214

o117
July 2, 1309

land sonveyed

Mesonlo lot-Fahulul

Fahulul 3chaol lot

Tuunane Avenue

{Regerving rights of way mcrass Duunene Avenus. }

Bot.14,1910 248/1%0
(Reserving richts of

0ct.14,1310 342/203
Oct.14,1910 337/332
Dee.l14,1910 327/403
De¢.14,1910 337/40%
July 1,1910 350/31a
July 1,1910 3s50/320
Lee. 1,1910 2572/207
Dec. 1.1910 352/217
ey 31, 1312

X¥ahulul Union Chureh

T. of H.

. of H,
County of Mani
i.J.beeslbay

7. af H.

Yar. 12, 1913

Lec. 24, 191b 443/107
Iee, 10, 1916 462/284

Feb. 13, 1915 508/24
Sept.0, 1214 bD8/Z4

July ié, 1919 523/237

1. 7.Fleming, et pnl Sept.8, 1920 §76/33

F.F.Belawin
S.A.Beldwin

E. ¥, Rioe
C.L.Camphall
County of Maui
T. of H.
T.5.4-

D.T.Fleming
C. Savage
T.5.A.

Trustens, Haul
Faneral Parlcre

T. of H.
M. 1. Xunswa

Aorll 14,1920 593/461

April 14,1920 598/62
april 14,1920

June 16, 1921 605/36
wy 17, 1922 640/14

June 20,1382
{Reserving certain ri

Hov. %, 1922 )
Ear. 14, 1923

June 13, 1923

Kov. 6, 1924
Fab. 1%, 1925
April 13, 1385

Whar! Streat

Ares

0.28

1.36

14.10

1 lln

way Tor Xshului RBeilrosd Company)

Yain Sireet

At Eest Preakwater
Puunene Cemetery
Puunens Church
Tortuguese Camp lot
Portupuase Cazp ot
TPortuguese Cemp Lot
Portugness CLmp Lot
Kihel Whert Yot
ig!';\;}-:ga:,.ot {ag changed by
{Church Perish Lot
Flhei-Kamole Romd

Tonk Site-Kelua

6 Spreokelaville School Lot
9 Tortuguese Caxp Lot

Frir Bullding Iot

1l lend in "zand Hills®
Beaoh lo%-Spreckelsville
Deaoh Jat-Sprackelevillas
Beaoh lot«Sprackelaville
Eeach lat-Spreckelaville
1 Lot at Piihana-¥ailukm
5 Tew Punnene School Lat

Seaplane Bese~Eahului
¢ghtn of way)

Iand in "Sand Hills"
Heach lot-Spreckelsvilie
Range Iight lot-Eahulni

Funsral Parlot lot
land for Harbore-RKahului
On Fahlului-Walluku Road

g.12

- 1.0

0.58
0.28
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.31
0.4
0.84
0.09
0.57
G.a%7
0.48
2R.74
b.2D
4 .80
5.60
8.91
0.8
10.00
1.89

17.10
1.60
0.l18

0.88
0.06
0.8¢




Grantoe Inetrument of land ounveyed Arox
Parific Trust
Go., 1td. May 13, 1986 Kahulul lot 0.22
3. H. Fous Fob.19, 1986 Beaoh Lot-Sprookelaville 2,59
J. K. Yous Eerch 1,1986 Beach lot-Spreckelaville 0,50 §:“°"‘;"
ge 1.
5. A. Baldwin Maroh 22,1926 Beach lot-Spreckelsvilie 1.12
. of H. LDec. E1, 1985 Kahulni Schaol lat 4 .63
. of H. Leo. B2, 1926 "Standard School™ lot,
Spreckelaville 4.00
California Paoking
Carporation April 22, 1926 land at Kehului a7 .40
=, of H. April) 22, 1926 Yein Street Extension 0.7
G. R. anﬂ» E. 8.
Carter Aug. 11, 1926 Headh Lot-Spreckeleville 2.50

Migvellansous Desda Givan hy'cerum Predecessors of H. C. & 5. Co.
Claus Spreckels to Estate of J. Boardman. October 13, 1883. B6/éd.
0.43 acre lot at Kshulul {(now owned by Kemlui Railroad Co.].

5. Parker to Kahulul Ré&llroad Co. July 27, 1897.

172/160.

10,00 noras of Il1 of Kelua st Xshului (aow owned by Kahului Hanilrosd

Go.).
&. Parker to Minlster of Interior. December 30, 1885,
£.00 mores of I1{ of Owa [near Catholic Gemsteryi.
Sohedule &.
Lenses glven by ¥.C.& $. Co. {iesaor)
I. ¥amlui Townsite leass.

19/474.

T¢ Xa'mlul Railroed Company, August 10, 1907. 293/139.

Fahului Pownsite {Gross area, 219.4 anres) exeapiing tharefrom all
lands owned by third parties, landa raserved by E.C.4& §.Co. and lands

surrsniersd from the lease, the net ares under this leamse now heing

170.86 acros. (Ses Title Report Dec. 17, 1924]).
Tarm: Yo July 15, 1937,
11. Yamulul "Besoh Property" leass.
" mo Kshului Railrosd Company. April 30, 1918.
28.00 sares west of Yahulul Townsite.
Taym: To July 15, 1937, '
III. Sundry laases.
1saseos Iapd o Expire

1. Bureau of Agri- 7
culture & Forsstry E.70 sores at Yshulul De0.31,1922

£. Trustess, Alexzan-
der Settlament 3,00 adres &t Jpreck-
alavills Beach Tec,2),1588

Anrusl Rental
0

§20 & taxen




o,

20

leonee land To Expire dnnual Rental
3. 0. D Jufkin 0.92 acres st Spreck-

alaville Beach Dec.31,1928 310 & taxes
4. Trantean, lJAuna-
olu Seminary 2.36 ncres mt Spreck-

elaville Beach Dec.231,1988 330 & taxae
5. D. H. Case 0.20 nores et Spreck-

alsville Beach Dec.31,1926 $10 & taxes
6. W. A. Clark 2.50 mares nt Spreck-

aelsville Eeach Dec.31,1828 $30 & taxes
¥, ¥, B, Heller Sureckelsville Theater June 30,1929 $R40
8. R. B. Ealler Paunene Theater June 30,1989 J2&0

9. Mre. R. Isizert 1.00 scre st Hanlasa Bay Feb. £B,192% 356 & taxom
10. Standard D11

Ca. of Celifornia J.43 acras at Kahuluil Hov. BE,1945 $l1 & taxas
1l. H.J.Grant, .
Trustoe . 0.18 acre at Eehului Hay 31,1940. §1 2 taxes
1Z. Mauil Electiric
€3., Ltd. 1.70 aores on Besok Romd Nov.20,1926 $175 2 taxes
13. Maul County 22.57 meres near
Fair & Racing Ase*n. Fahalni Dec.31,1970 $1
14. Maui Country Club
nehecale G itde A 121.9 sores nesr

e 1, Spreckelaville Juna 30,1950 §l & taxey

15. S.E.7Taylor 2.00 mares Sprackals-
ville Heaoch 420 & taxos
Schedule H. '

'

o

1icansen sud Rights of Say granted by H.C.& S.Co. %0 othars.

1. Fahalui-Sailuka Paterworks snd Territory of Hawaii.
Riskts of way for water maln roross sand hills (Dad. 11, 1800} sud

for 4™ pipe line from tepk in Owa to Kehului, Ootv. 10, 1916, 44B/284.

2. Eamlul Railrowd Company. /
Porpotunl right of way for rellwsy purposes fraom spraokuluitnt to

H.A:Co. 1ta's boundary, July 31, 1915, 482/381.

v 3. Maui Toelephons Company Licsense.

llcenwe covering telephone lines on H.0.& 8. Go. property, April 11,
1918,

4. Nsui Elsotric Company, 1td. llcense,

license covaring electric power lines on H.C.&4 3. Co. proparty,
Deg. 1, 19E1.
Schedule 1.
Agrecmants under shich H.C.4 5.Co. has oertain Rights snd OQbligations.
1. Esst Naui Fnter System Agrestent betwsen H.C.& 8. Co., M.A.Co. ltd.,
ant B.H.I.Cuo.ltd., datec Dmo. 31, 1926. {Appertaining to all satters in



conneotion with the water system of the East Meu! Irrigation Co. Ltd.)
.l B. Went Maul Water System Agreemant batwesn H.C.2 5. €o. and Wailuku

Sugar Co. of June E3, 198¢, 740/13¢ (Apnertaining te all seatters in

connaction with the water mystem of the X.C.& §. Co. mnd of the F.C.4

§.00. ané %.S.Co. in common).

( 3. Agrooment regnrding salos of water by H.0.& S5.Co. to County of Maul.
Aug. 11, 1986. Term: To Aug. 31, 1981.

v 4. Gonersl Agoncy Agteezent with Alexander & Buldwiz, 1td. April B,
1903. (As revised Sept. £9, 1920, mnd Aug. 21, 1983). Term: Until cne

your after notice of tepmination.
5. Stook Pooling Agreemant between H.C.& S. Co., ot ml, and E.F.Rishop,
et al, Truateos, Merch 15, i.sn. {Podling of vtock in €. & K. 8; Rr.
Corp.} Term: To Maerch 15, 1941, ‘but termipable at any time under cer-
tain oconditionsa.

v &. Agreement between ¥.0.& S. Co. et 61, sand The Bank of Celifornia,
L. A., Fuob. 1, 192B.
7. Sugar Barketing Agrecment and Contrect between H.C. & 5. Co. and

Sugay Factore Co. Ltd., Sept. 30, 1920. Term: To date of termination

ot Oot. 5, J°SE, agreement betwean S.F.Co.,ltd. and C., & B.5.R.Corp.,

or of tha stook pooling mgreesment ne atowa noted.

8. Mclaeses Marketing Agreemsnt and Contreot botaeen ¥.C.& 5. Co, amd

Sagnyr Fagtors Co.. Lltd., Aug. 16, 1923. Taym:; o Dmo. 31, 19ES.

9. Fuel 0il Handling Agreement batueen Alexneder & Baldwin 1td., and
H.C.& 8. fo., 6t 4, Oot. 20, 192l..

10. Surplus Fowar Agrouenu with Fahulul Rellrcad Co. {(Jan. 1, 1983}

end Maui Elestrio Co..Itd. (May 17, 1526), respeotively. regaraing mle h‘m}'

of power by H.C.2 S.Co, (Each of said -nerunema being subjeoct to yuar

E\, gl [A——

pp——y [
|-~ Fr—)

to year renewal by letter).
1n witpess whereef seid parties hereto have duly executed this

.
TR

instrunent in duplicete as of the day snd ;nir first above written.
{Corporate Seal) Haweiian Commercial and Suger Company
By ¥.F.Baldwin, President

o
|-

By C.R.Hemenmay, Avmistant Secretsry
{Corporate Seal) ’ Hawaiian Commeroizl and Suger Company,
Timited

e
N

By J.Waterhouwe, Vice Prosident

[ =

By J.P.0coke, Treasurer
Tarritory of Fawaii, County of Maui, ; 8. On this 23rd day of Deosmber




i

.

ok st

A.5.1%926, before me appsareu F.E‘.Bnl;:i;:stn me personhlly known, who

being by me auly sworn qaid esy that figyf/yy¥ the Preaident respectively

of Hawsilan Commeretel sod Sugar Compeny &nd that tha seal affized to I
the foregoing inatrument L8 the sorporete seal of seid corporation and

thet suid tnetrument wee signed apd eealed in behslf of said gorpara-

tion by authority of ite Board of Direotors, and the eeid F.F.Paldwin

ascknawledged sa'd lastrument to be the frae sct and Geed of seid cor- |
poration. .

{Zotarial Seal) R. 3. Braue, lotary Tublie,

Secong Judicirl Cireuit, TPerritory of Hawail.

Territory of Tawhil |
8.
On this 3let day of lecembor, 1926, be-

fore ma appeared C. ®. Yemenway, to me personally known, who, balng by

3
fity axc County of Honolulu )

me duly sworn, did¢ sey that he is the Assietant Seoretary of the Hawaii.
An Commercial & Sugsy Company. knd that the meal affized to seid
instrument is the corporate sesl of sgid corporstion, snd thet ssld
instrument was slgned and sealed In behelf of sald corporation by author-
1ty of i:xr Boerd of Dlrectors, und guld C.E.Femenway aoknowledged sald

instrument to be thie free wot and deed of seid corporation.

Zoturiasl Seal) Jemas F. Morgan, Notary Publlo,

First Juilgial Circuit, Territary of Hewmll.

Tarritory of Hawall
BE.
On thia Ilat day of Deoember 1986, ba-

fore =me appeared J. Waterhouse ané J.P.Cooke both to me parsomnally

— T

City and County <f Honolulu

xnown, who, being by me duly aworn, 414 sy that they mere reapectively
the VTice President ani Traeasurer of the Hewsiisn Commerciasl & Sugar Co.
Itd., and that the seal effixed to said inetrument 1s the gorporante seal
of sald eoxporation, end that said instrument wes 6lgned aud sealed in
behelf of sweid corporttion by suthority of its Boerd of Direators, and

asld J. Waterhomae and J.P.Cooke acknowledged saild inatrumant to be the
froe aot and desd of said corporstion.

{Zotarial Seal) Jamas F. Morgen, Notary Publio,

1zt Judicial Cireuit, Territory of Hwwnil.

Entered of ragorc this 3rd day of January A.D.1927, at 10:18 o'clook

- - -
A.M. onu compared. Coer 0™ X ian ) Hogintrar of Conveyancen.:
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MPWA .
i;l:lem COmpletf :PhM:i} rgr-—?‘déf

DEED
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation,
with its principal place of business in Honolulu, Hawaii,
hereinafter called the "Grantor®, in consideration of the sum of
Ten Dollars ($10.00) and othexr valuable consideration to it paid
by A&B-HAWAII, INC., a Hawaii corporation, with its principal
place of business at 822 Bishop Street, Honolulu, Hawaii, and
mailing address at P. 0. Box 3440, Honoclulu, Hawaii 96801,
hereinafter called the *“Grantee", the raceipt of which is hareby

acknowledged, dJdoes hersesby grant, bargain, sell and convey unto
the Grantee, its successors end assigns:

ALL of those certain parcels of land described in
Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof,

subject, however, to the encumbrances menticned in said
Exhibit A;

AND the reversions, remainders, rents, issues and
profits thereof, together with all buildings, improvements,
tenements, rights, oasements, privileges and appurtenances
to the same belonging or appertaining or held and enjoyed
therewith, and all of the estate, right, title and interesst
of the Grantor both at law and in eguity therein and thereto;

TQ HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto the Grantee, its

Buccessors and assigns, foraver, subject to the encumbrances
mentioned in said Exhibit A;

AND the Grantor, for itself, its psuccessors and
assigns, hereby covenants with the Grantee, its Buccessors
and assigns: THAT the Grantor has good right to grant and
convey said land and premises untc the Grantee as aforesaid
and that the same are free and cleer of and from all
encumbrances made or suffered by the Grantor, except the
encumbrances mentioned in sald Exhibit A.
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IN WITNESS WHERECF, the Grantor has caused these
presents to be zecuted by its duly authorized officers this

Hoekw day of v et , 1989, but effective as of the
\ =% day of &*Qf\\ . 1989,

ALEXARDER & BALDWIN, INC.

BY -
Its SENIC T ENT

BY. ALMMZJ Q. /@L@ﬂ,ﬂ_.-————

Its  AssT, stcilera

31638

Y w‘l .
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STATE OF HAWAII )]
) B8
CITY AND COUNTY OF HOROLULU )
On this %\ day of ‘\"\“‘ft-“\-' . 1989, before me
= appeared R. K. SASAXI and _BEVERLY 1 (AREFN s to
i me personally known, whgf being by me duly sworn, did say that
L they are SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT gnd ASST, SECRETARY , respectively,
' of ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation; that the
seal affizxed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal
Y of Buch corporation and *hat such instrument was signed and
H sealed on behalf of such corporation by authority of its Board
. of Directors; and said R. K. 5A and - BEVERIY | rprepg

acknowladged such instrument to be the free act and deed of such
corporation.

: Bueflin 0 \/M#-—

Notary Public, State of Hawaii
My commission expires: &--"%M
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EXHIBIT A

FIRST:

All that certain parcel of iand situate in the City
state of Hawali., aesignated as Tax Map

and County of Honolulu,
2-1-013-001, contain .4349 acre, (a cOPY which

and made a part hereof) .

Key ing an area of
tg attached hereto
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All of those certaln parcels of land situate in the

County of Maui, State of Hawaii, designated upon the Tax Maps

for the Second Divisien,

State of Hawaii

(copies of which are

attached hereto and made a part hereof) as follows:

TAX KEY

SECOND DIVISION

2=-3-008-009
2=-4-001-004
2-4-001-006
2-4-001-010
2-4-001-019
2~-4-002-007
2-4-002-010
2~4-016-003
2=-5-001-001
2=-5=-001-002
2-5-001-008
2-5-001-009
2-5-002-001
2-5=-002-002
2-5-002-004
2-5=-002-005
2-5=002-006
2-5-002~010
2=5=002-011
2-5-003-001
2~-5-003-006
2=-5=-003—~007
2=-5=-003-008
2-5-003-009
2-5-003~010
2-5-003-012
2-5~003-017
2-5=-003-020
2-5-004-013
2=-5-004-024
2~5-004-026
2-5-004-035
2-5-004-036
2-5-004-037

AREA SHOWN

ON TAX MAP

0.7500
50.2460
5.5000
1.9190
6€.4300
129.7400
9.0000
1,068, 0000
1,983.4300
264.4900
1,815.5000
138.6000
1,942.5200
2,48B6.7860
10.3000
142,13300
2.6700
136.0300
1.2%00
316.5960
0.5200
4.8000
9.0000
538,9200
2,380.8840
0.4800
0.0670
0.1030

0, 8000
5.7000
21.1580
1.0000
683.4520
118.78%0

TAX KEY

SECOND DIVISION

AREA SHOWN
ON TAX MAP

2-5-004-038
2-5-004-039
2-5=004-043
2-5-004-045
2-5-004-046
2=-5-004-047
2-5=-004-055
2=-5-004-068
2=-5-004-069
2=-5=-004-070
2—-5-004-073
2=~5=004-074
2-5-004-079
2-5-005-002
2-5=-005-005
2-5-005-006
2=5=005=-007
2-5-005-009
2=5=005-011
2=-5-005-012
2=-5-005-~013
2~5=005~014
2-5~005-016
2=5=005-017
2~5-005-018
2~5-005-019

2-5~005-020

2—-5-~-005-021
2-5~-005-026
2-5=005-027
2—-5-005-028
2-5-005=-030
2-5-005-033

2-5-005~038

36.0000
2,524.5860
G.5000
4.6700
4.6700
0.9800
0.9200
0.4620
0.8100
1.%9200
1.5800
1.3500
4.1700
2.6100
2.2500
5.5100
0.2000
1.6700
0,.3100
9,3100
2.9400
1.0300
9.3600
32,1860
362.9500
£816.9130
1,098,8550
764.6980
0.8600
0.9000
0.4000
1.1400
1.0200
2.6100

1
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TAX KEY AREA SHOWN
_S__ECOND DIVISION ON T2AX MAP

2~-5-005-0D44 0.7500
2=5-005-046 12.5300
2-5-005-047 4.6400
2=5=005-052 0.2700
2~-5-005-053 0.8400
2~5~005=-057 23,4010
2-5-006-01% 0.6800
2-6=-001-001 3.5170
2-6—-001~004 1.0830
2~-6—-003-027 0.2220
2~-6=-005-014 0.1300
2—-6—-009-002 12.4220
2-6-009-018 0.5500
2-6—~005-019 0.6500
2-6-009-023 0.4660
2-6-010-013 0.0830
2—6-010-016 0.1320
2-6—-012-033 0.5000
2=-7-001-028 0.4440
2-7--001-046 0.0800
2=7-001-058 0.8500
2=7-002-004 225.2100
2-7-002-058B 35.2000
2-7=-003-001 159.8100
2-7=003-005 0.4400
2-7-003-011 3.1590
2-7-003-013 29.6500
2=7=-003-019 4,3200
2=7=003-030 0.1400
2-7-=003-033 19.9100
2-7=003-052 1.8400
2-7-003-055 24,8000
2=-7-003-056 10,2020
2=7-003-059 1.9500
2-7-003-081 112,3000
2=-7=003-082 6.9800
2=-7-003~0B3 18.2000
2=-7=003-084 33.0000
2=7--003-085 2,2100
2-~-7-004-001 153.5700
2=7=015=-032 0.4700
2-7-015-032 16.0000
2-7—-015-034 516.4000
2-7=-033-014 92,4790
2=-8=003=005 0.6600
2=-8-003-027 0.0700
2-B=004-014 4.6200
2-B-004-028 6.3200

TAX KEY

SECOND DIVISIDN

23006 589

AREA SHOWN
ON TAX MAP

2-8-004-034
2-8-004-057
2-8-004-058
2-8-004-055
2-B-004-062
2-8-004-063
2-H=004-064
2-8—-004=065
2-8<004-066
2=-B=006-023
2-8-006-027
2—-8-006~054
2-8=006-055
2-8=006—-056
2-8-006-057
2-8-006-058
2-8-008-001
2-§-008-008
2-8-00B~009
2--8-008-010
3=3=001-033

. 3=3-002-011

3-3-002-019
3=-3-002-020
3-4-002-045
3-4-003-020
3-4-009-002
3-4-010-001
3—-4-010-004
3~4~011-001
d=4=017-052
3—-4~018-003
3-4-021-061
3—4-033-024
3-4-033-029
3—4-038-003
3—-4-038-005
3-7-001-005
3~-7-001-007
3-7-001-010
3-7=-001-015
3~7=001-016
3-7-001-018
3-7~002-006
3~-7=002-016
3~-7-003-002
3-7-003-003
3-7-003-026

7.6000
38,2000
25.6510

2,000
11.4200
24.4090

0.1900

0.7500

8.9500

1.2000

1.1500

4.7500

0.6800

0.4500

0.5000

6.9900

163,5000
187.1000
38.5000

1.9000

1.6700

0.3600

0.2400

4.0700

0.0400

1.0800

0.5100

2.5410

0.2000

0.8500

0.3230

0.9400

0.0460

0.7060

0.1000

0.9960

0.2060

1.9800

1.3760

0.0970

0.0790

1.2830

0.0050

0.2900

0.0390

1.4230

0.4480

0.4020

ar v e



TAX KEY

SECOND DIVISION

3-7-003-027
3-7-003-028
3-7-004-001
3-7-005-003
3-7-005-011
3-7-005-023
3-7-008~006
3-7-008-008
3-7~008-017
3-7-011-001
3-7-011-006
3-7-011-011
3-7-011-013
3-7-011-019
3-7-013-001
3-8-001-001
3-8-001-003
3-8-001-004
3-8-001-005
3-8-001-006
3-8-001-007
3-8-001-009
3-8-001~010
3-8-001-011
3-8-001-012
3-8-001-014
3-B-001-015
3-8-001-017
3-8-001-023
3-8-001-024
3-8-001-033
3-8-001—135
3-B-001-197
3-B-001-198
3-8-001-192
3-8-002-008
3-8-002-009
3-8-002-010
3-8-002-070
3-8-002-084
3-8-002-085
3-8-002-087
3-8-003-001
3-8-003-002
3-8-003-003
3-8-003-004
3-8-003-005
3-8-003-006

AREA SHOWN

ON TAX MAP

0.0990
0.2850
'3.5900
2.4380
1.2300
0..0830
5.4383
1.4752
2.1109
8.4600
3,9230
0.6071
g.6270
4.4640
6.2520
10"—:‘5-3?50
65.87.9
52.3200
B4.0000
1,209.3000
906.0270
1.0000
0.2950
0.2300
0.5700
141.2460
49.68B00
4.0240
0.1700
0.5200
5.6000
172.4000
3.6530
0.3520
1.0778
0.8410
1.4900
1.5000
0.1220
0,4160
0.0350
2.4200
1,070.9300
1,533,7400
23.5200
2,606,0000
1,038.2200
5.5100

TAX KEY

SECOND DIVISION

3~B-003-007
3-8-003-020
3-8-003-021
3-8-004-001
3-8-004-002
3-8-004-020
3-8-004-022
3-8-004-023
3-8-004-~024
3-8=-005-001
3-8-005-002
3-8-005-003
3-8-005-015
3--005-017
3-8-005-01B
3-0-005=-D23

23006 590

AREA SHOWN
ON_TAX MAP

324.2600
0.3140
28,1900
2,008.6900
1,598.3350
60.2370
1,489.2000
2.0020
83.8270
489.9700
4,409.0770
432.28B70
0.1100
22,2100

T 0.0700
352 . 4000

3-8-006-001
3-8-006~002
z-8-006-002
3-8-006-007
3-8-006-011
3-8-006—-012
3~8-006-013
3-8=006-015
3-8-006-016
3-8-006-017
3-8-006-018
3-B-006-020
3-8-006-021
3-8-006-022
3-8-006-025
3-8~-006-029
3-8-006-037
3-8-006-041
3—-8=-006-050
3-5-006-051
3-8-006—066
3~8-006-069
3-8-007-015
3-8-007-016
3-g—007-017
3+<8-007-030
3-8-007-038
3-8=-007-071
_A=f=-007-101

79B.8440
748.273
1,255.2510
1.2050
0.4273
0.0900
0.1340
0.5400
0.7500
0.3700
0.5900
2.0700
0.1000
0.1400
0.3500
11.5200
0.0430
"'0.6000
0.6880
0.2640
0.4120
14.0000
0.3000
1.9200
8.5100
3.2970
4,0430
5.0430

70,5080

3-8-007~102
3-8-007-104
3-8-008-005

31.2220
4.0700
161.4470

P
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TAX KEY

SECOND DIVISION

AREA SHOWN
ON TAX MAP

3—-8-008-006
3-8-008-007
3-8-008-019
3-8~008-030
3-4-046-009
3-8-046-010
3-8-071-082

101.5480
81.6080
B6.0290

4.6250
80,9540
4.3090
1.5871

ur
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All of those certain parcels of land situate in the
County of Kauai, State of Hawaii, designated upon the Tax Maps

for the Fourth Division, State of Hawaid

TAX KEY

FOURTH DIVISION

1-8-002-001
1-8-005-011
1-8~005-014
1-9-001-005%
1-9-001-016
1-9-002-015
1-9-002-016
1-9-004-023
1=9-007-001
1-9-012-024
2=1-001~002
2-1-001=-015
2=1-001=038
2=1~-002—-001
2~1-003-011
2—-1-003-024
2~1=-003~025
2-1-003-026
2~1=-003-027
2=3-002-021
2-3-002-024
2—-3-002-045
2—-3-006-004
2-3-007~007
2=-3-007-014
2-3-~009-017
2=4=001=01¢0
2=4-001-015
2=4-006-007
2—-4-006-019
2—4--006-021
2=-4-007=-004
2—-4-007-024

AREA SHOWN
ON TAX MAP

4.5100
0.5100
2.6800
0.5300
2.9660
3.3320
0.1100
5.,9210
19.5030
1.4370
0.7500
3.7500
8.9230
25.9890
0.2300
0.3200
0.6614
1.2620
0.0680
6.7000
0.1700
1.5000
0.8600
0.0500
0.2892
2,.5500
1.0000
0.6800
0.0070
0.1800
0.1100
44 .8800
21.7400

(copies of which are
attached hereto and made a part herecof) as follows:

TAX KEY

FOURTH DIVISION

AREA SHOWN
ON TAX MAP

656

2-4-007-025
2=-4-007-026
2-4-010-008
2=5-006-001
2-5=-006-00%
2-5=-006~017
2—6~-003~003
2—-6—=003-004
2-6=003-019
2=-6-003~021
2=6--003=-023
2—-6-003-031
2—6-003-033
2—6-003-034
2—-6=-003~035
2—-6=-003-044
2-6-003-054
2=6-004-010
2—6=-004-011
2—6=-004-016
2—6—-004-017
2—-6-004-018

2—6—-004-038

2—-6-004-044
2-=6—-004-045
2-6-011-016
2~7~007-001

227.5300
2.1200
0.1140
0.3460
2.3000
0.0450
5.3000
0,0790
2.0100
0.2430
0.1160

309.9400

10.6000
34.1400
47.5700
0.3556
lo.8800
0.7510
1.4790
26.4600
0,2350
3.2380
310.6040
7.8970
10.6520
0.4710
2.1140
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SUBJECT, HOWEVER, TO, as to all of the land described
any and all encumbrances affecting the land described
above existing as of the date of this instrument.

above,

TOGETHER WITH BUT SUBJECT T0, as to all of the land

described above, any and alil leases affacting portion or

portions of the land described above existing as of the date of

+his instrument, and all rents reserved thereunder, and the

benefit of all the lessee's covenants and all rights and
xemedies of the lessor contained therein.
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Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs

...-...lt.". .

CERTIFICATE OF MERGER |
I, KATHRYN S. MATAYOSHI, Director of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of
the State of Hawaii, do hereby certify that pursuant to the Articles of Merger and Plan
of Merger of ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC., a Hawaii corporation, filed in this
Department on December 15, 1999, in accordance with the provisions of Section 415-75
of the Hawaii Rev_ised Statutes, A&B-HAWAIL INC., a Hawaii corporation, was merged

with and into ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC. on December 31, 1999, at 11:59 p.m.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto
set my hand and affixed the seal of the
Department of Commerce and Consumer
Affairs, at Honolulu, State of Hawaii, this

3™ day of January, 2000.
: =
& ﬁ L4 ﬂ

Director of Commerce and Consumer

Affairs
WiBCE 44, Py 4= Commissiober of Securities
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CERTIFICATE OF TREASURER OF THE STATE OF HAWAII OF MERCER
' of
HAWAITAR COMMERCIAL AND SUCGAR COMPANY, LIMITED
with and inco

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED
issued on Jannary 3, 1962,
——
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TN THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND REGULATION

STATE OF HAWAII

Ir. the Matter of the Merger of

HAWAIIAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR
COMPANY, LIMITED

with and into

)
}
)
)
)
%’
ALTXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED ;
)

CERTIFICATE OF TREASURER OF THE
STATE OF HAWAII OF MERGER
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I¥ THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND REGULATION

STATE OF HAWAII

T~ the Matter of the Merger of

HAWATIIAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR
COMPANY, LIMITED

with and into

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN 6K LIMITED

CERTIFICATE OF TREASURER OF THE
STATE OF HAWATI OF MERGER

_ ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED, s Hawari ecorporstien,
and HAWAITAN COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, LIMITED, & like
corporatiorn, having f:led in the (ffice of the Treasurer of
ihe State .of Hawsii for approval a Merger Agreement by _and
beiween the said ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED, and HAWATTAK
COMMERCIAL AND SUGAR COMPANY, LIMITED, dated as of December
29, 1961, together with accompanying certificates of approval,
pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of Chapter
173, Revised Laws of Hawai:r 1955, and 1t appearing therefrom
: and from the documenis con file in this office that all of the

A provisions of said Chapter 173 have been fully compl:ied with,

frgpae aab iy g

and that the Treasursr should certafy that said merger has

=

been effected i1n compliance with said Chapter 1738,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that said Merger Agreement

2]

R

L
:

Clgir e

oy

—

be and it is hereby approved;, 4 'y

AND in compliance with Section 173-11 of the Revised i

Laws of Hawaii 1855,

T
T

IT 15 HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:
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is as follows:

and Alexander & Baldwin, Limited;

{1} That the name of each constituent corparation

Hawalian Commercial and Sugar Company, Limited,

{2) That the name of the surviving corporation is as

follows-

Alexander & Baldwin, Limited;

{3) That the names of the officers and directors of

the surviving corporatiom, 4t the time of the filing of the

Merger Agreement, are as follows:

Name
J. W. Cameron

C. . Cadagan
J. T. Waterhouse

J. G. McIntesh

R. L. Kingsbury
W. E. Sheehan
H, H, Goss

R. G. Jamieson
Gorie
R. S. Waterhouse
C. G. Ruff
R. H. Cox
E. F. Major

] R N

H
¥. S. Benedict

A, F. Baldwin

Dffice
Chairgan of the Hoard

President, General
Manager and Director

Vice President and
Director

Vice P}esident and
DPirecter

Vice President

Vice P#esident and
Secretary

Vice President
Treasurer

Assistant Treasurer
Assistant Treasurer
and Director
Asgistant Treasurer
Bssistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary

.
Assistant Secretary

Director

Address
Paia, Maui

4014 Poli Hiwa Place
Honolulu, Hawaiai

3850 Reound Top Drive
Honolulu, Hawaii -

2130 Ralston Avenue
Hillsborough, Calif.

1920-92nd Street, N.E.
Bellevue, Washington

3871 014 Pali Road
Honalulu, Hawaii

4803 Kolohala Street
Honolulu, Hawaii

4809 ¥olohala Street
Honolula, Hawaii

220 Highland Avenue
Piedmont, California

2125 Keeaumoku Street
Honolulu, Hawaii

9538 Pia Street
Honolulu, Hawaii

1951 Kakela Drive
Honelulu, Hawaii

4370 Kahala Avenue
Honolqlu, Hawaix

220 Séltnn Drive
Menlo Park, Calif.

Puunene, Maui
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s ame Office Address

R. H. Baldwan Director Makawao, Maui

E. Benner, Jr. Director 4473 Aukal Avenue
Honolulu, Hawaii

A. L. Castle Director 23 Jack Lane,
Honolulu, Hawaiai

C. E. Hanson Director 1510 Ualakag Place
Honolulu, Hawzii

J. B. Hurd Director 115 Lexfard Road
Piedmnpt Calaf.

J. R. Judd Director 2490 Makiki Hezghts

Drivé

Hono l'-lu, Hawaia

R. A, Peterson Director 2130 uuiuna Place
Hnnolu'.lu, Hawaii

C. B. Wightman Director 2022 Kakela Drive
Honclulu, Hawaii
(4) That s«1d Merger Agreement and &ll necessary
certificates of approval required by said Chapter 173 were
filed 1n the office of the Treasurer of the State of Hawaii
on Tues:day,, the 2nd day of January, 1962, at }"."'zz . Mo
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here-

unte set my hand and affixed the
seal of the Treasurer’s Office of

e 3 by the State of Hawaii at Honolulu,
e 7, State of Hawaii, this &, day
e B, T of 2.

. ‘“L.H"IJ'

4

"“ “"u’
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r~ " pn

€.~

¥rorren’

PRI R, Treasurer of the
!“ ‘-‘ . ‘t‘ é’ "
44' ...' rannst® %
?m"r EL. { [ i
¢ . ‘ |
1
I { 1o ! )

satersd of Record JAN 16 1952 - /0"!’? -uouéf B

end wompared. iii!iiE lulhnuquw Sowweyaiesa.
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IN THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND REGULATION
STATE OF HAWAII
oF the Articles of gemmendoent
of
ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIMITED
Changing the Nawe of the Corporation
io
ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,
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Honolulu, Hawaii
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IN THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND REGULATION

STATE OF HAWAII
In the Matter of the Amendment
of the Articles of Association

of .-

ALFYXANDFE & BALDWIN, LIMITED
Changing the Name of the Corporation

to

boYE

ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.

CERTIFICATE OF CHANGE OF NAME

IT 15 HEREBY CERTIFIED that pursuant to and in accordance
with Section 172-20, Revised Laws of Hawaii 1955, as amended, there
has been duly filed in the Department of Treasury and Regulation
of the State of Hawa.: a verified certificate showing that at a
special meeting of the stockholders of ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, LIJITED
duly called and held for that purpose, among others, Article FIRST
of the Articles of Association of said corpora‘ion was amended by
4 vote of not less than two-thirds of all of ihe corporation’s
155ued and outstaading stoek having voting por 2r; that the
Treasurer of 1he State af Hawaii has determined that such amend-
ment 15 not in confliet with Section 172-11 of the Revised Laws
of Hawail-dess qs amenced; that by the aforesaid amendment the
namHJQf the carpoxdﬁgon has been changed from ALEXANDER & BALDJIN,
LIMIIED to” ALEXANDER'& BALDWIN, IBC; that such change of name, in
accqr@anqe with law, nhal; become effective upon the filing of

this“CE;tificate iﬁﬁfhe Bureau of Conveyances of the State of
Hawaii, ,.0 L%

Fda. T

IN. WITNESS WHEEREQF, T have hersunto sst my hand and

affired the seal of the Treasurer’s Office, State of Hawaii at
Honoluln, Hawaii, this Slge# day of January, 1962.




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009
OR

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTICN 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT QF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 000-00565
A3t ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Hawaii 99-0032630
(Btate or other jurisdiction of (L.R.5. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Na.)

822 Bishop Street
Pust Office Box 3440, Honeluly, Hawaii 96801
{Address of principal exccutive offices and zip code)

808-525-6611
(Registrant's telephone number, including aren code)

Sccuritics registered pursuant to Section 12(b} of the Aci:

Name of each exchange

Title of each class un which registered
Common Stock, without par value NYSE

Securities registered pursnant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at February 11, 2010:
41,071,571

Aggregate market value of Common Stock held by non-affiliates at June 30, 2009:
$937,803,905

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is 2 well-known seasoned issuer, a5 defined in Rute 405 of the Securities Act. Yes 8 No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15{d) of the Act. Yes O NoDBd

Tndicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required ta be filed by Section 13 or | 5(d) of the Securities Exchange Acl
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registram was required to file such reports), and {2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark whether ihe registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Webh site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursnant to Rule 405 of Regulation 5-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorler period that
the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes O No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to liem 405 of Regulation S-K is nol contained herein, and will not be
cantained, to the best of regisiant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or infnrmjation statements incorporated by reference in Part 1l of this
Form {0-K or any amendment to this Ferm 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, br a smaller reperting
company. See definition of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting, company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act,

Large accelerated filer X Acceierated filer O
Non-accelerated filer 00 (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smafler reporling company O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (a5 delined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). YesII No

Documents Incorporated By Reference
Portions of Registrant’s Proxy Statement dated March 11, 2010 (Part 11l of Form 10-K)

EXHIBIT "5"
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MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. has the responsibility for éstablishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal conirol over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company's principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes those policies and procedures that:

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of assets of the company;

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting only provides reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement presentation and preparation. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness o future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Commitiee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Infernal Control-Integrated Framework. Based
on its assessment, management believes that, as of December 31, 2009, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is effective. The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche

LLP, has issued an audit report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. That report appears on
page 58 of this Form 10-K.

Stanley M. Kuriyama : Christopher ]. Benjamin

President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

February 25, 2010 February 25, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.
Honclulu, Hawaii

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
*Company") as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009. We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Infernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effecliveness -of internal control over
financial reperting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Infernal Control Over Financial Reporting, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial siatements and an opimion on the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financtal statements
are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects,
Qur audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
fimancial statement presentation. Cur audit of internal control over financial reparting inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal
conirol over financial reporiing, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's hoard of
directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies aud procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable defail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasomable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent lintitations of internal conirol over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
niproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal coniral over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that ihe degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred fo above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decernber 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United Siates of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective intemal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in fnternal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cominission.

/ ittt LLS
Honolulu, Hawaii
February 25, 2010
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ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In millions, except per-share amounts)

Operating Revenue:
Ocean transporiation
Logistics services
Real estate leasing
Real estate sales
Agribusiness
Tolal operating revenue
Operating Costs and Expenses:
Cosi of ocean transportalion services
Cosi of logistics services
Cost of real estate sales and leasing
Cost of agribusiness goods and services
Selling, general and administrative
Total operating costs and expenses
Operating Income
Other Income and (Expense):
Gain on insurance settlement and other
Gain on consolidation of HS&TC (Note 3)
Equity in income of real estate affiliates
Impairment Joss on investment
Interest mcome
Interest expense
Income From Cbnlinuing Operations Before Income Taxes
Income taxes
Income From Continuing Operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (Note 2)
Net Income

Basic Earnings per Share of Conunon Stock:
Contiuuing cperations
Discontinued operations
Net income

Diluted Earnings per Share of Common Stock:
Continuing operalions
Discontinued operations
Net income

Weighted Average Number of Shares Quistanding:
Basic
Diluted

See notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2008 2008 2007
5 887 1,021 $§ 1,003
321 436 433
84 79 72
16 225 23
97 119 120
1,405 1,880 1,651
740 825 789
280 381 381
59 229 47
130 133 120
154 163 165
1,363 1,731 1,502
42 149 148
- 8 1
5 _— —
- 9 23
@ {2) -
- i 3
(25) {29 (19)
20 141 157
8 52 59
12 89 98
32 43 44
$ 44 132 % 142
§ 029 217 % 230
0.79 1.04 . 1.04
$ 1.08 321 § 33
5 029 215 & 227
0.79 1.04 1.03
$ 108 319 § 330
41.0 41.2 42.5
41.5 43.1

41.1



ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC;
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{In millions)

Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by aperations:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred inconie taxes
Gains on disposal of assets, net of impairment losses
Casualty gain from receipt of insurance proceeds
Gain on consolidation of HS&TC
Share based expense
Equity in income of affiliates, net of distributions

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and notes receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deferred dry-docking costs
Liability for employee henefit plans
Accounts and income taxes payable
Other liabilities

Real Estate Developments Held for Sale:
Real estate inventory sales
Expenditures for real estate inventory

Net cash provided by operations
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures for property and developments

Proceeds from disposal of income- producing property, investments and other assets

Proceeds from insurance settlement related to 2005 casualty loss
Deposits into Capital Constuction Fund
Withdrawals from Capital Construction Fund
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Payments for purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments of long-term debt and deferred financing costs
Proceeds from {payments on) short-term borrowings, net
Repurchases of capital stock
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock, net of excess tax benefit
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Net increase {decrease) for the year
Balance, begimming of year
Balance, end of year

Other Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid, nef of amounts capitalized
Income taxes paid

Non-cash Activifies:
Debt assumed in real estate purchase
Tax-deferred property sales
Tax-deferred property purchases

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per-share amount)

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts and notes receivable, less allowances of $10 for 2009 and $8 for 2008

Inventories
Real estate held for sale
Deferred income taxes
Section 1031 exchange proceeds
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets
Investments in Affiliates
Real Estate Developments
Property - net
Employee Benefit Plan Assets
Other Assets
Total

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Notes payable and current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Payroli and vacation benefils
Uninsured claims
Deferred income taxes
Accrued and other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income (axes
Employee benefit plans
Uninsured claims and other liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Commitmenis and Contingencies (Note 12)
Shareholders’ Equity

Capital stock — common stock without par value; authorized, 150 million shares ($0.75
stated value per share); outstanding, 41.0 mitlion shares in 2009 and 2008

Additianal capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Cost of treasury stock
Total shareholders’ equity
Total

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the three years ended December 31, 2009

(In millions, except per-share amounts)

Accumulated
Capital Stock Other
Issued In Treasury Compre-
Stated Additional hensive Retained
Shares  Value Shares  Cost Capital Loss Eamings Total
Balance, December 31, 2006 46.2 35 36 {11) 179 (19} 843 1,027
Net income ' — — — — — — 142 142
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax:
Defined benefit plans:
Net gain (loss) — — — — — 14 — 14
Less: Amortization of net (gain)
loss — — — — — 1 — 1
Total comprehensive income 157
Shares repurchased 0.7) (1 — — () — (28) (33)
Shares issued 0.5 — — — 8 — — 8
Share-hased compensation — — — — 17 _ _ 17
Adjustment to initially adopt
accounting for uncertain lax
positions — — — — — — 2 2
Dividends ($1.12 per share) — — — — — — {48) {48)
Balance, December 31, 2007 46.0 k1| 3.6 (11) 200 L)] 911 1,130
Net income — — — — — — 132 132
Other comprehensive income, net of
tax:
Defined benefit plans:
Net loss/prior service cost — — — — — (93) — (93}
Less: Amortization of net
loss/prior service cost — —_ — — — 1 — 1
Total comprehensive income 40
Shares repurchased (1.4) 1) — — (8) — (50) (59)
Shares issued — — — — 1 — — 1
Share-based compensation — — — — 11 — — 11
Dividends ($1.23 per share) — — — — — — {(51) (51)
Balance, December 31, 2008 44.6 33 3.6 a1 204 (96) 942 1,072
Net income — — — — — — 44 44
Other comprehensive income, net of
tax:
Defined benefit plans:
Net gain/prior service (cost) — — — — — 7 — 7
Less: Amortization of net
loss/prior service cost — — — — — 8 — 8
Total comprehensive income 59
Excess tax benefit and share
withhoiding -— — — — )] — — (3
Share-based compensation — — — — 9 — — 9
Dividends ($1.26 per share) — — — e — — (52) (52)
Balance, December 31, 2009 446 § 33 36 $ {(11) % 210 &% (81) $ 934 $ 1,085

See notes io consolidated financial statements.
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ALEXANDER & BALDWIN, INC. .
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business. Founded in 1870, Alexander & Baldwin, Inc. (“A&B" or the “Company”) is
incorporated under the Jaws of the State of Hawaii. A&B operates in five segments in three industries:
Transportation, Real Estate and Agribusiness. These industries are described below:

Transportation: The Transportation Industry consists of Ocean Transportation and Logistics
Services segments. The Ocean Transportation segment, which is conducted through Matson Navigation
Company, Inc. ("Matson"}, a wholly-owned subsidiary of A&B, is an asset-based business that derives its
revenue primarily through the carriage of containerized freight between various U.S. Pacific Coast, Hawaii,
Guam, China and other Pacific island ports. Additionally, the Ocean Transportation segment has a 35
percent interest in an entity (SSA Terminals, LLC or “SSAT") that provides terminal and stevedoring
services at U.S. Pacific Coast facilities. The Logistics Services segment,- which is conducted through
Matson Integrated Logistics, Inc. ("MIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Matson, is a non-asset based
business that is a provider of domestic and iniernational rail intermodal service (“Intermodal”), long-haul
and regional highway brokerage, specialized hauling, flat-bed and project work, less-than-truckioad,
expedited/air freight services and warehousing and distribution services (collectively “"Highway™).
Warehousing and distribution services are provided by Matson Global Distribution Services, Inc.
("MGDS”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of MIL. MGDS’s operations also include Pacific American

Services, LLC ("PACAM”), a San Francisco bay-area regional warehousing, packaging, and distribution
company.

Real Estate: The Real Estate Industry consists of two segments, both of which have operations in
Hawaii and on the U.S. Mainland. The Real Eslate Sales segment generates its revenues through the
development and sale of land and commercial and residential properties. The Real Estate Leasing segment
owns, operates and manages retail, office and industrial properties. Real estate activities are conducted
through A&B Properties, Inc. and various other wholly-owned subsidiaries of A&B.

Agribusiness: Agribusiness, which contains one segment, produces and transpors bulk raw sugar,
specialty food-grade sugars, and molasses; produces, markets, and distributes roasted coffee, green coffee
and specialty food-grade sugars; provides general trucking services, mobile equipment maintenance and
repair services, and self-service storage in Hawaii; and generates and sells, to the extent not used in the
Company's operations, electricity. In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company became the sole member in
Hawaiian Sugar & Transportation Cooperative (“HS&TC"), a cooperative that provides raw sugar
marketing and transportation services to its members, and therefore, the Company consolidated HS&TC
beginning December 1, 2009 in accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB")
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 810 related to consolidation.

FPrinciples of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Alexander &
Baldwin, Inc. and all whelly-owned and conirolled subsidiaries, after elimination of significant intercompany
amounts. Significant investments in businesses, partnerships, and limited Tiability companies in which the Company
does not have a controlling financial interest, but has the ability to exercise significant influence, are accounted for
under the equity method. A controlling financial interest is one in which the Company has a majority voting interest
or one in which the Company is the primary beneficiary that absorbs the majority of the expected losses, or receives
a majority of the expected residual returns, or both, of a variable interest entity.

Risks and Uncertainties: Factors that could adversely iinpact the Company’s operations or financial results
include, but aré not limited to, the following: unfavorable economic conditions in the U.S,, Guam, or Asian markets
that result in a further decrease in consumer confidence or market demand for the Company's services and products;
increased competition; replacement of the Company’s significant operating agreements; reduction in credit
availability; downgrade in the Company’s credit rating that affects its ability to secure adequate financing and/or
increase the cost of financing; failure to comply with restrictive financial covenants in the Comnpany’s credit
facilities; insolvency of the Company's insurance carriers: insolvency and/or failure of joint venture partner to
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perform; loss and/or insolvency of significant agents, customers, or vendors; unfavorable political conditions in
domestic or international markets; sirikes or work stoppages; increased cost of energy or labor; noncompliance with
and/or changes in laws and regulations relating to the Company’s business; unfavorable litigation or legal
proceedings or government inquiries or investigations: adverse weather conditions; changes in the legal and
regulatory environment; changes in accounting and taxation standards, including an increase in tax rates; an inability
to achieve the Company’s overall fong-term goals; an inability to protect the Company’s information systems; future

impairment charges; increased pension costs; inadequate internal controls; and giobal or regional catastrophic
events.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported. Significant estimates and assumptions are used for, but not limited to:
(i) asset impairments, (ii) legal contingencies, (iii} allowance for doubtful accounts, (iv) revenue recognition for
long-term real estate developments, (v} self-insured liabilities, (vi) pension and posiretirement estimates, and (vii)

income taxes. Future results could be materially affected if actual results differ from these estimates and
assumptions. :

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with a weighted-average
maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase. The Company carries these investmerts at cost, which
approximates fair value. Qutstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit totaled $22 million and $15 million at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and are reflected as current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and
short-term borrowings approximate their carrying values due to the short-term nature of the instruments. The
carrying amount and fair value of the Company’s long-term debt at December 31, 2009 was $471 million and $475
million, respectively and $504 million and $471 million at December 31, 2008, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: Allowance for doubtful accounts are established by management based
on estimates of collectibility. The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts, included on the consolidated

balance sheets as an offset to “Accounts and notes receivable,” for the three years ended December 31, 2009 were as
follows (in millions):

Balance at Write-offs Balance-at
Beginning of vear Expense and -Other End of Year
2007 $14 $-- $(2) $12
2008 $12 $1 $(5) $8
2009 $8 $3 (1) $10

Inventories: Sugar and coffee inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-ont basis) ar market'
value. Materials and supplies inventory are stated at the lower of cost (principally average cost) or market value.
Inventories at December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as follows (in millions):

2009 2008
Sugar and coffee inventories $ 28 £ 13
Materials and supplies inventories 15 15
Total $ 43 } 28

Dry-docking: Under U.S. Coast Guard rules, administered through the American Bureau of Shipping’s
alternative compliance program, all vessels must meet specified seaworthiness standards to remain in service.
Vessels must undergo regular inspection, monitoring and inaintenance, referred to as “dry-docking,” to maintain the
required operating certificates. These dry-docks occur on scheduled intervals ranging from two to five years,
depending on the vessel's age. Because the dry-docks enable the vessel to continue operating in compliance with
U.S. Coast Guard requiremnents and provide future economic benefits, the costs of these scheduled dry-docks are
deferred and ainortized until the next regularly scheduled dry-dock period. Routine vessel maintenance and repairs
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that do not improve or extend asset lives are charged to expense as incurred. Deferred amounts are included on the
consolidated balance sheets in non-current other assets. Amortized amounts are charged to operating expenses in the
consolidated statements of income. Changes in deferred dry-docking costs are included in the consolidated
statements of cash flows in cash flows from operating activities,

Property: Property is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Replacements, maintenance, and repairs that do not improve or
extend asset lives are charged to expense as incurred. Costs of developing coffee orchards are capitalized during the
development period and depreciated over the estimated productive lives. Upon acquiring commercial real estate that
is deemed a business, the Company records land, buildings, leases above and below market, and other intangibles
based on their fair values. Due diligence costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation: Depreciation and amortization is-computed using the straight-line methed over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives of property are as follows:

Classification Range of Life {in years)
Vessels 10 to 40
Buildings 10 to 40
Water, power and sewer systems 5to 50
Machinery and equipment 21to 35
Other property iniprovements 3to 35

Real Estate Developments: Expenditures for real estate developments are capitalized during construction
and are classified as Real Estate Developments on the consolidated balance sheets. When construction is
substantially complete, the costs are reclassified as either Real Estate Held for Sale or Property, based upon the
Company’s intent to either sell the completed asset or to hold it as an investment property, respectively. Cash flows
related to real estate developments are classified as either operating or investing activities, based upon the

Company’s intention to sell the property or to retain ownership of the property as an investment following
completion of construction.

For development projects, capitalized costs are allocated using the direct method for expenditures that are
specilfically associated with the unit being sold and the relative-sales-value method for expenditures that benefit the
entire project. Capitalized development costs typically include costs related to land acquisition, grading, roads, water
and sewage systems, landscaping, capitalized interest, aind project amenities. Direct overhead costs incurred after the
development project is substantially complete, such as utilities, maintenance, and real estate taxes, are charged to

selling, general, andl administrative expense as incurred. All indirect overhead costs are charged to selling, general,
and administrative costs as incurred.

Capitalized Interest: Interest costs incurred in conmection with significant expenditures for real estate
developments, the construction of assets, or investments in joint ventures are capitalized during the period in which
activities necessary to get the asset ready for its intended use are in progress. Capitalization of interest is
discontinued when the asset-is substantially complete and ready for its intended use. Capitalization of interest on
investments in joint ventures is recorded until the underlying investee commences its principal operations, which is
typically when the investee has other-than-ancillary revenue generation. Total interest cost incurred was $26 million,
$25 million, and $26 million in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Capitalized interest was $1 million and $7
million in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Capitalized interest in 2009 was not material.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: Long-lived assets are reviewed for possible impairment when events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. In such an evaluation, the estimated future
undiscounted cash flows generated by the asset are compared with the amount recorded for the assef to determine if
its carrying value is not recoverabie. If this review determines that the recorded value will not be recovered, the
amount recorded for the asset is reduced 1o estimated fair value. The Company has evaluated certain long-lived
assets for impairment; however, no impairment charges were recorded as a result of this process. These asset
Impairment Joss analyses are highly subjective because they require management to make assumptions and apply
considerable judgments to, among others, estiinates of the timing and amount of future cash flows, expected useful
lives of the assets, uncerfainty about future events, including changes in economic conditions, changes in operating
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performance, changes in the use of the assets, and ongoing cost of maintenance and improvements of the assets, and
thus, the accounting estimates may change from period to period. If management uses different assumptions or if
different conditions occur in future periods, the Company’s financial condition or its future operating results could
be materially impacted.

Impairment of Investments: The Company's investments in unconsolidated affiliates are reviewed for
impairment whenever there is evidence that fair value may be below carrying cost. An investment is written down
to fair value if fair value is below carrying cost and the impairment is considered other-than-temporary. In
evaluating the fair value of an investment, the Company reviews discounted projected cash flows associated with
the investment and other relevant information. In evaluating whether an impairment is other-than-temporary, the
Company considers all available information, including the length of time and extent of the impairment, the
financial condition and near-term prospects of the affiliate, the Company’s ability and intent to hold the investment
for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value, and projected industry and
economic trends, among others.

In determining the fair value of an investment and assessing whether any identified impairment is other-
than-temporary, significant estimates and considerable judgments are involved. These estimates and judgments are
based, in part, on the Company’s current and future evaluation of economic conditions in general, as well as a joint
venture’s current and future plans. These impairment calculations are highly subjective because they also require
management to make assumptions and apply judgments to, among others, estimates of the timing and amount of
future cash flows, probabilities related to various cash flow scenarios, and appropriate discount rates. Changes in
these and other assumptions could affect the projected operational results of the unconsolidated affiliates, and
accordingly, may require valuation adjustments fo the Company’s investmenis that may materially impact the
Company's financial condition or its future operating results. For example, if the current market conditions continue
to deferiorate or a joint venture's plans change, additional impairment charges may be required in future periods,
and those charges could be material.

In 2009, the Company evaluated certain investments in unconsolidated affiliates for impairment. As a
result of this process, the Company recorded an impairment loss of approximately $2.5 million related to its Ka
Milo joint venture investment. Continued weakness in the real estate sector or difficulty in obtaining or renewing
project-level financing may affect the value or feasibility of certain development projects owned by the Company or
by its joint ventures and could lead to additional impairment charges in the future.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets: Goodwill and intangibles are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets
as other non-current assets. Recorded goodwill is related fo the acquisition of logistic service entities and earnout
obligations (see Note 3}. Recorded intangible assets are related to logistic service entity acquisitions as well as the
acquisition of commercial properties. The Company reviews goodwilt for potential impairment on an annual basis,
or more frequently if indications of impairment exist. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances would indicate the carrying amount of the intangible assets may not be
recoverable, There were no impairments of goodwill or intangible assets in 2009, 2008, or 2007.

The changes in the carrying amommt of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2008 were as
follows (in miilions);

Goodwill
Balance, December 31, 2007 $ 12
Additions 14
Balance, December 31, 2008 26
Additions - 1
Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 27
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Intangible assets for the years ended December 31 included the following (in millions):

2009 2008
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amorlization
Amortized intangible assets:
Customer lists $ 12 $ (1) § 12 5 O
In-place leases 11 4 8 {2
Other 8 @ 6 (3)
Total assets $§ 3 $  (12) § 26 3 (8)

Aggregate intangible asset amnortization was $4 million, $3 million, and $2 million for 2009, 2008, and
2007, respectively. Future estimated ainortization expense related to intangibles are as follows (in millions):

Estimated
Amortization
2010 $ 4
2011 3
2012 2
2013 2
2014 1

Investment in Note Receivable: As of December 31, 2009, the Company had invested, as part of its real
estate investment strategy, $11 million in a note receivable secured by real estate. The note was classified as a non-
current asset. At acquisition, due to evidence of deterioration of credit quality, it was probable that the Company
would not be able to collect all contractually required payments. Accordingly, the note receivable was acquired at a

discount. The note receivable was recorded at cost with no valuation allowance, and no interest income is being
accrued.

1031 Exchange P}oceeds.' As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Comnpany had $61 million and $71

million, respectively, of proceeds related to qualifying 1031 tax-deferred sales. These proceeds are classified as non-
current assets on the consolidated balance sheets until reinvested in qualifying property.

Revenue Recognition. The Company has a wide range of revenue sources, including, shipping revenue,
logistics revenue, property sales, rental income, and sales of raw sugar, molasses and coffee. Before recognizing
revenue, the Company assesses the underlying terms of the transaction to ensure that recogmition meets the
requirements of relevant accounting siandards, In general, the Company recognizes revenue when persuasive

evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery of the service or product has occurred, the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Voyage Revenue Recognition: Voyage revenue is recognized ratably over the duration of a voyage based
on the relative transit time in each reporting period, commonly referred to as the percentage-of-completion method.
Voyage expenses are recognized as incurred,

Logistics Services Revenue Recognition: The revenue for logistics services includes the total amount billed
to customers for transportation services. The primary costs include purchased transportation services. Revenue and
the related purchased transportation costs are recognized based on relative transit time, commonly referred to as the
percentage-of-completion method. The Company reports revenue on a gross basis. The Company serves as principal
in transactions because it is responsible for the centractuat relationship with the customer, has latitude in
establishing prices, has discretion in supplier selection, and retains credit risk.

Real Estate Sales Revenue Recognition:  Sales are recorded when the risks and rewards of ownership have
passed to the buyers (generally on closing dates), adequate initial and continuiug investments have been received,
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and collection of remaining balances is reasonably assured. For certain development projects that have material
continuing post-closing involvement and for which total revenue and capital costs are reasonably estimable, the
Company uses the percentage-of-completion method for revenue recognition. Under this method, the amount of
revenue recognized is based on development costs that have been incurred through the reporling period as a
percentage of total expected development cost associated with the development project. This generally results in a
stabilized gross margin percentage, but requires significant judgment and estimates.

Real Estate Leasing Revenue Recogmition. Real estate leasing revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the related leases, including periods for which no rent is due (fypically referred to as “rent
holidays”). Differences between revenue recognized and amounts due under respective lease agreements are
recorded as increases or decreases, as applicable, to deferred rent receivable. Also included in rental revenue are
certain tenant relmbursements and percentage rents determined in accordance with the terms of the leases, Tncome
arising from tenant rents that are contingent upon the sales of the tenant exceeding a defined threshold are
recognized only after the contingency has been resolved (e.g., sales thresholds have been achieved).

Sugar and Coffee Revenue Recognition: Revenue from bulk raw sugar sales and coffee sales is recorded
when title to the product and risk of loss passes to third parlies (generaily this occurs when the product is shipped or
delivered to customers) and when collection is reasonably assured.

Non-voyage Ocean Transportation Costs: Depreciation, charter hire, terminal operating overhead, and
general and adminisirative expenses are charged to expense as incurred.

Agricultural Costs: Costs of growing and harvesting sugar cane are charged to the cost of inventory in the
year incurred and to cost of sales as raw sugar is sold. Costs of growing coffee, excluding orchard development
costs, are charged to inventory in the year incurred and to cost of sales as coffee is sold.

Discontinved Operations: The sales of certain income-producing assels are classified as discontinued
operations if the operations and cash flows of the assets clearly can be distinguished from the remaining assets of the
Company, if cash flows for the assets have been, or will be, eliminated from the ongoing operations of the
Company, if the Company will not have a significant continuing involvement in the operations of the assets sold,
and if the amount is considered material. Certain assets that are “held-for-sale,” based on the likelihood and
intention of selling the property within 12 months, are also treated as discontinued operations. Upon reclassification,
depreciation ceases on assets reclassified as "held-for-sale.” Sales of land and residential houses are generally
considered inventory and are not included in discontinued operations.

Employee Benefit Plans: Certain Ocean Transportation subsidiaries are members of the Pacific Maritime
Association ("PMA”") and the Hawali Stevedoring Industry Committee, which negotiate multiemployer pension
plans covering certain shoreside bargaining unit personnel. The subsidiaries directly nepotiate multiemployer
pension plans covering other bargaining unit personnel. Pension costs are accrued in accordance with contribution
rates established by the PMA, the parties to a plan or the trustees of a plan. Several trusteed, non-contributory,
single-employer defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans cover substantially all other employees.

Share-Based Compensation; The Company records compensation expense for all share-based payment
awards made to employees and directors. The Company’s various equify plans are more fully described in Note 11.

_ Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share ("EFS "} of Common Stock: Basic earnings per share is determined

by dividing net income by the weighted-average common shares outstanding during the year. The calculation of
diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of unexercised non-qualified sfock options, non-vested
common stock, and non-vested stock units, The computation of average dilutive shares outstanding excluded non-
qualified siock options to purchase 1.8 million, 1.1 million, and 0.2 million shares of commaon stock for 2009, 2008,
and 2007, respectively. These amounts were excluded because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the
average market price of the Company’s common stock for the periods presented and, therefore, the effect would be
anti-dilutive.
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The denominator used to compute basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows {in millions}:

2009 2008 2007

Denominator for basic EPS: weighted average shares outstanding : 410 41.2 42.5
Effect of dilutive securities;

Quistanding stock options, non-vested stock, and non-vested stock units 0.1 0.3 0.6
Denominator for diluted EPS: weighted average shares outstanding 41.1 41.5 43.1

On January 27, 2010, the Company granted to employees, non-gualified stock options exercisable into
422,156 shares of common stock at $33.02 per share, 68,540 shares of time-based restricted stock units, and 92,743
shares of performance-based restricted stock units. The time-based restricted stock units vests ratably over three

years and the performance-based restricted stock units vests ratably over three years, provided that the one-year
performance target is achieved.

Income Taxes: Significant judgment is required in deternining the Company’s tax liabilities in the multiple
Jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax effect of temporary
differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are adjusted to the extent necessary to reflect tax rates expected to be
in effect when the temporary differences reverse. Adjustments may be required to deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities due to changes in tax laws and audit adjustments by tax authorities. To the extent adjustments are

required in any given period, the adjustments would be included within the tax provision in the consolidated
statements of income and/or consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for iis deferred tax assets. A valuation allowance
would be established if, based on the weight of available evidence, management believes that it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of a recorded deferred tax asset would not be realized in future periods.

Restricted Nei Asseis of Subsidiaries: Matson is subject to restrictions on the transfer of net assets under
certain debt agreements. These restrictions have not had any effect on the Company’s shareholder dividend policy,
and the Company does not anticipate that these restrictions will have any impact in the future. At December 31,

2009, the amount of net assets of Matson that may not be transferred to the Company was approximately $286
million.

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company periodically uses derivative financial instruments such as
interest rate and foreign currency hedging products to mitigate risks. The Company’s use of derivative instruments is
limited to reducing its risk exposure by utilizing interest rate or currency agreements that are accounted for as
hedges. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading or other speculative purposes nor
does it use leveraged financial instruments. All derivatives are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at their
fair value. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, there were no material derivative instruments held by the Company.

Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) includes all changes in Shareholders’ Equity,
except those resulting from capital stock transactions. Accumulated other comprehensive loss principally includes

amortization of deferred pension/postretirement costs. The components of other comprehensive loss, net of taxes,
were as follows for the years ended December 31 (in millions):

2009 2008 2007
Unrealized components of benefit plans:
Pension plans $ (13 $ (90 $ 2
Postretirement plans - 1 3
Non-gualified benefii plans (6) (5 {6)
SSAT pension plan and other (2) 2 {(3)
Accumulated other comprehensive lass $ (8D $ (96) $ {4
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Environmental Costs: Environmenial exposures are recorded as a liability and charged to operating
expense when the environmental liability has been incurred and can be estimated. If the aggregate amount of the
liability and the amount and timing of cash payments for the liability are fixed or reliably determinable, the
environmental liability is discounted. An environmental liability has been incurred when both of the following
conditions have been met: (i) litigation has commenced or a claim or an assessment has been asserted, or, based on
available information, commencement of litigation or assertion of a claim or an assessment is probable, and (ii)
based on available information, it is probable that the outcome of such litigation, claim, or assessment will be
unfavorable. If a range of probable loss is determined, the Company will record the obligation at the low end of the
range unless another amount in the range better reflects the expected loss. Certain costs, however, are capitalized in
Property when the obligation is recorded, if the cost (1) extends the life, increases the capacity or improves the
safety and efficiency of property owned by the Company, {2} miligates or prevents environmental contamination
that has yet to occur and that otherwise may result from future operations or activities, or (3) is incurred or

discovered in preparing for sale property that is classified as “held—for-sale.” The amounts of capitalized
environmental costs were not material at December 31, 2009 or 2008.

Sell-Insured Liabilities: The Company is self-insured for certain losses that include, but are not limited fo,
employee health, workers’ compensation, general liability, real and personal property, and real estate construction
warranty and defect claims. When feasible, the Company obtains third-party insurance coverage to limit its exposure
to these claims. When estimating its self-insured liabilities, the Company considers a number of factors, including
historical claims experience, demographic factors, and valuations provided by independent third-parties.
Periodically, management reviews its assumptions and the valuations provided by independent third-parties to
determine the adequacy of the Company's self-insured liabilitles.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards: In October 2009, the FASB issued guidance on revenue
arrangements with multiple deliverables effective for the Company’s 2010 fiscal year, although early adoption is
permitted. The guidance revises the criteria for separating, measuring, and allocating arrangement consideration to
each deliverable in a multiple element arrangement. The guidance requires companies to allocate revenue using the
relative selling price of each deliverable, which must be estimated if there is no history of selling the deliverable on
a stand-alone basis nor third-party evidence of selling price. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2009, the FASB issued guidance to revise the approach to determine when a variable interest entity
(“VIE") should be consolidated. The new consolidation mode] for VIEs considers whether the Company has the
power to direct the activities that most significantly iinpact the VIE's economic perforinance and shares in the
significant risks and rewards of the entity. The guidance on VIEs requires companies to continually reassess VIEs to
determine if consolidation is appropriate and provide additional disclosures. The guidance is effective for the

Company in 2010. The Company is currently assessing the potential effect of this guidance on its consolidated
financial statements.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on accounting for asseis acquired and liabilities
assumed in a business combination that arise from contingencies that amend the provisions related io the imitial
recognition and measurement, subsequent measurement and disclosure of assefs and liabilities arising from
contingencies in a business combination under previously issued guidance. The revised authoritative guidance
requires that such contingencies be recognized at fair value on the acquisition date if fair value can be reasonably
estimated during the allocation period. This authoritative guidance will be effective for the Company in 2010, The
adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of
operations.

Rounding: Amounts in the consolidated financial statements and Notes are rounded to millions, but per-

share calculations and percentages were determined based on amounts before rounding. Accordingly, a recalculation
of some per-share amounts and percentages, if based on the reported data, may be slightly different.
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2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During 2009, the sales of an office/retail property on Oahu for $37.9 million, a retail shopping center in
California for $20.3 million, an office building in Arizona for $20.1 million, an industrial property on Qahu for
$13.0 million, an industrial property in California for $8.3 million, and various parcels on Maui have been classified

as discontinued operations. Additionally, a retail property on Oahu was classified as discontinued operations (the
Company sold the property in January 2010).

During 2008, the sales of two retail properties on the mainjand for $61.2 million, one mainland office
property for $20.6 million, a multi-tenant residential rental property for $12.1 million, three commercial properties
on Maui for $12.9 million, land previously leased to a telecommunications tenant on Maui for $8.1 million, several
commercial leased fee parcels on Maui for $8.1 million, and various land parcels on Maui for $2.4 million have
been classified as discontinued operations.

During 2007, the sales of land leased to a retail tenant on Oahu for approximately $46 million, five
commercial properties on Maui for approximately $42 million, a commercial property in California for

approximately -$7 million, and a commercial property on Maui sold in 2008 have been classified as discontinued
operations.

The revenue, operating profit, income tax expense and after-tax effects of these transactions for 2009, 2008,
and 2007 were as follows (in millions, except per share amounts}:

2009 2008 2007
Sales Revenue $ 110 § 125 $ 95
Leasing Revenue 3 14 $ 26 $ 35
Sales Operating Profit 3 M $ 55 $ 51
Leasing Operating Profit 3 8 $ 14 $ 20
Income Tax Expense $§ 20 $ 26 $ 27
Income from Discontinued Operations $ 32 $ 43 5 4
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 079 $ 104 3 1.04
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 0.79 $ 1.04 $ 1.03

The results of operations from these properties in prior years were reclassified from continuing operations
to discontinued operations to conform to the current year’s accounting presentation. Consistent with the Company’s
intention to reinvest the sales proceeds into new investment property, the proceeds from the sales of property treated

as discontinued operations were deposited in escrow accounts for tax-deferred reinvestment in accordance with
Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code.

kN ACQUISITIONS AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s Hawaiian Commercial & Sugar Company division and Gay & Robinson (*G&R") were
members in Hawaiian Sugar & Transportation Cooperative ("HS&TC"}, a cooperative that provides raw sugar
marketing and transportation services to its members. In the fourth quarter of 2009, G&R ceased the production of
raw sugar. As a result of G&R's cessation of raw sugar production in the fourth quarter of 2009, G&R's
membership in the cooperative terminated because a cooperative member must be an active producer. Consequently,

upon G&R's withdrawal, the Company became the sole member in HS&TC and consolidated HS&TC beginning
December 1, 2009. '

The identitiable assets and liabilities from HS&TC were recorded based upon their estimated fair values at
December 1, 2009. Approximately $5 million of identifiable assets, net of liabilities, measured at fair value, was
recorded as a grain and classified as Other Income {Expense) in the consolidated statements of income. In
consolidation, approximately $11 million of cash, $6 million in fixed assets, $8 million in inventory, $2 million in
prepaid and other assets, and $22 million in accrued and other liabilities were recorded.
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The Company consolidated the results of operations of HS&TC effective December 1, 2009. The Company
has not presented unaudited pro forma results of operations because the consolidation of HS&TC is not material to
its consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Under the terms of a supply contract between HS&TC and C&H Sugar Company, Inc. (*C&H"), C&H is
obligated to purchase, and HS&TC is obligated to sell, all of the raw sugar delivered to HS&TC by the Hawaii sugar
growers, at prices determined by the quoted domestic sugar market. Revenue from raw sugar and molasses sold to
HS&TC, prior to December 1, 2009, was $38 million, $45 million, and $53 million during 2008, 2008, and 2007,
respectively.

On August 29, 2008, Matson Global Distribution Services ("MGDS”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Matson Integrated Logistics, acquired substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Pacific
American Services, LLC ("PACAM”"), a regional, warchousing, packaging and distribution company specializing in
value-added handling of domestic, import and export goods, headquartered in Oakland, California. The acquired net

tangible assets of PACAM consisted primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses

and fixed assets, partially offset by accounts payable, and other current and long-term liabilities that MGDS
assumed, PACAM was acquired to expand the Company's warehousing and distribution service capabilities.

The purchase price was approximately $24 million in cash, including transaction costs. The total purchase
price was allocated to the tangible and intangibie assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated
fair values at the acquisition date, with the excess purchase price allocated to goodwill. Approximately $3 million
was allocated to fixed assets, $1 million was allocated to accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued
liabilities, $9 million was allocated to identifiable intangibles, principally customer relationships, and $11 million
was allocated to goodwill. Commencing with the date of the acquisition, identifiable intangibles are being amortized

to general and administrative expense over an average usefu} life of 13 years. The goodwill recorded is deductible
for tax purposes.

The results of operations of PACAM were included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements
effective August 29, 2008. The Company has not presented unaudited pro forma results of operations because the
acquisition of PACAM is not material to its consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

4. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, investments consisted principally of equity in limited liahility companies.
The Company does not have a controlling financial interest in any of these investments and, accordingly, accounts
for its investments using the equity method of accounting. Consolidated retained earnings at December 31, 2009 that
represent undistributed earnings of investments in affiliates was approximately $32 million. Dividends and
distributions from unconsolidated affiliates totaled $8 million, $30 million, and $36 million for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

The Company’s investments in affiliates are summarized, by industry, as follows {in millions):

2009 2008
Invesiment in Unconsolidated Affiliated Companies:
Real Estate and Other $ 195 § 164
Transportation 47 44
Total Investments $ 242 $ 208
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Operating results include the Company’s proportionate share of net income from its equity method
investments. A summary of financial information for the Company’s equity method investments by industry at
December 31 is as follows (in millions):

2009 2008
Real Estate Transportation Real Estate Transportation
Current assets £ 48 $ 60 $§ 61 $ 46
Noncurrent assets 554 118 497 113
Total assets $ 602 $ 178 § 558 $ 159
Current labilities $ 97 $ 29 $ 61 $ 35
Noncurrent liabilities 111 26 148 11
Total Liabilities $ 208 $ 55 $ 209 $ 46
Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Real Estate:
Operating revenue $§ 14 $ 73 $ 13z
Operating costs and expenses g 47 20
Operating income 5 5 $ 26 § 42
Income from continuing operations $ 1 $ 22 $ 38
Net income $ 1 £ 22 $ 38
Transportation:
Operating revenue § 476 $ 505 § 518
Operaling costs and expenses 470 a02 494
Operaling income ' $ 6 $ 3 $ 25
Income from continuing operations* $ 20 $ 13 $ 3z
Net income $ 20 $ 13 $ 32

* Includes eamings from equity method investments held by the investee,

Real Estate: At December 31, 2009, the Company and its real estate subsidiaries had investments in various
Joint ventures that operate and/or develop real estate. The Company does not have a controlling financial inferest in
any of these veniures and, accordingly, accounts for its invesimenis in the real estate ventures using the equity
method of accounting. A summary of the Company's principal investments is as follows:

a) Kukui'ula: In April 2002, the Company entered into a joint venture with DMB Communities
I, an affiliate of DMB Associates, Inc., an Arizona-based developer of master-planned
communities ("DMB”), for the development of Kukui'ula, a 1,000-acre master planned resort
residential community located in Poipu, Kauai, planned for approximately 1,000 to 1,200
high-end residential units. The capital contributed by A&B to the joint venture, including the
value of land initially contributed, was $138 million as of December 31, 2009, and DMB has
contributed $161 million. The Company has a 50-percent voting inferest in the venture.

b) Kai Malu at Wailea: In April 2004, the Company entered into a joint venture with Armstrong
Builders, Ltd. for development of the 25-acre MF-8 parcel at Wailea into 150 duplex units.
Sales commenced in 2006, with 135 units closed as of year end. As of December 31, 2009, six

of the remaining 15 units have been leased. The Company has a 50-percent voting interest in
the venture.
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e

Ka Milo at Mauna Lani: In April 2004, the Company entered into a joint venture with
Brookfield Homes Hawaii Inc. to develop a 30.5-acre residential parcel in the Mauna Lani
Resort an the island of Hawaii. A total of 27 units were constructed in 2007 and 2008 and, as
of year-end 2009, 20 units had closed. In December 2009, the project’s construction loan,
with a year-end balance of $15.8 million, matured. The venture is negotiating with the Iender
to refinance the loan (see Note 12). Due to market conditions, the Company recorded an
impairment loss of approximately $2.5 million in December 2009. Construction of the

remaining units in the project has been deferred until a new business plan is evaluated for the -

future construction of the remaining units. The Company has a 50-percent voting interest in
the venture.

Crossroads Plaza: In June 2004, the Company entered into a joint venture with Intertex
Hasley, LLC, for the development of a 56,000-square-foot mixed-use neighborhood retail
center on 6.5 acres of commercial-zoned Iand in Valencia, California. The property was
acquired in August 2004 and construction of the center was completed in 2008. In August
2009, a $12 million construction loan held by the veniure matured, The joint venture is
currently negotiating with the lender to extend the maturity date of the loan (see Note 12). As
of December 31, 2009, occupancy was 85 percent. The Company has a 50-percent voting
interest in the venture.

Bridgeport Marketplace: In July 2005, the Company entered into a joint venture with Intertex
Bridgeport Marketpiace, LLC for the development of a 27.8 acres in Valencia, California.
Construction of the center was completed in 2009 and is 95 percent leased. The Company has
a 50-percent voting interest in the venture,

Waiawa: In August 2006, the Company entered into a joint venture with an affiliate of
Geniry Investment Properties, for the development of a 1,000-acre inaster-planned primary
residential community (530 residential-zoned acres) in Central Qahu. In the second half of
2009, the master development agreement for the Waiawa lands between Kamehameha
Schools and Gentry was terminated. However, because the joint venture has fee simple
ownership, or the right to acquire at no cost, approximately 58 acres of developable land, in
addition to 125 acres of gulch land required for the major project land bridge and road leading
to the project, the venture and the Company continue to evaluate their options for the
development of this master-planned community. The Company has a 50-percent voting
interest in the venture.

Bakersfield: In November 2006, the Company entered into a joint venture with Intertex P&
Retail, LLC, for the planned development of a 575,000 square-foot retail center on a 57.3-acre
commercial parcel in Bakersfield, California. The parcel was acquired in November 2008.
Development plans remain on hold due to current economic conditions. The Company has a
50-percent voting interest in the venture,

Kukai'ula Village: In August 2007, the Company entered into a joint venture with DMB
Kukui'ula Village LLC for the development of Kukui'ula Village, a planned 91,700 square-
foot commercial center located at the entrance of the Kukui'ula project. Construction on
83,600 square feet commenced in 2008, was completed in March 2009, and the center opened
for business in August 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the center was 56 percent Ieased. The
Company has a 50-percent voting interest in the venture.

Santa Barbara Ranch: In November 2007, the Company entered info a joint venture with
Vintage Communities, LLC (*Vintage”), a residential developer headquartered in Newport
Beach, California. Vintage and its affiliates intend to develop 1,040 acres for an exclusive
large-lot subdivision, located 12 miles north of the City of Santa Barbara. The joint venture
owns approximately 22 acres in the prgject. In 2008, due to the deterjoration in the local real
estate market, the Company recorded a $3 million impairment ioss. Additionally, in 2008,
because the Company declined to provide any further equity funding, Vintage and its affiliate
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had the option to purchase the Company’s investment for $15 million plus a 12 percent
preferred return (“Preferred Return”). Since Vintage and its affiliate failed to exercise this
option, the Company, in iis sole discretion, has the right to cause the jomt venture to sell
certain Santa Barbara land parcels to satisfy the Company’s investment basis plus the
Preferred Return. The Company continues to evaluate alternatives to maximize the value of
the venture’s assets that serve as collateral for the repayment of its investment. The Company
has a 50-percent voting interest in the venture,

j) Palmdale Trade & Commerce Center: In December 2007, the Company entered into a joint
venture with Intertex Palmdale Trade & Commerce Center LLC, for the planned development
of a 315,000 square-foot mixed-use commercial office and light industrial condominium
complex on 18.2 acres in Palmdale, California, located 80 miles northeast of Los Angeles and
25 miles northeast of Valencla. The parcel was contributed to the venture in 2008.
Development plans were placed on hold due to current market conditions, although the

venture is continuing with water infrastructure work. The Company has a 50-percent vofing
interest in the venture. :

Transportation; Matson owns a 35-percent membership interest in an LLC with SSA Marine Inc., named
SSA Terminals, LI.C ("SSAT"), which provides stevedoring and terminal services at five terminals in three West
Coast ports to the Company and other shipping lines. Matson accounts for s interest in SSAT under the equity
method of accounting. The “Cost of transportation services” included approximately $135 million, $145 million, and
$150 million for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respeclively, paid to this unconsolidaied affiliate for terminal services,

The Company’s equity in earnings of its unconsolidated transportation affiliate of $6 million, $5 million,
and $11 million for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, were included on the consolidated statemenis of income
with costs of transportation services because the affiliate is integrally related to the Company’s Ocean
Transportation segment, providing all terminal services to Matson on the U.S. West Coast.

3. PROPERTY

Property on the consolidated balance sheets includes the following (in millions):

2009 2008

Vessels $ 1,216 $ 1,209
Machinery and equipment 609 596
Buildings ' 507 522
Land 165 146
Water, power and sewer systems 119 115
Other property improvements 99 112

Total 2715 2,700
Less accumulated depreciation and amorlization (1,179) {1,110}

Property — net $ 1,536 $ 1,590

6. CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION FUND

Matson is party to an agreement with the United States government that established a Capital Construction
Fund (*CCF") under provisions of the Merchant Marine Aci, 1936, as amended. The agreement has ‘program
objeclives for the acquisition, construction, or reconstruction of vessels and for repayment of existing vessel
indebtedness. Deposits to the CCF are limited by certain applicable earnings. Such deposits are tax deductions in the
year made; however, they are taxable, with interest payable from the year of deposit, if withdrawn for general
corporate purposes ot other non-qualified purposes, or upon termination of the agreement. Qualified withdrawals for
investment in vessels and cerfain related equipment do not give rise to a current tax liability, but reduce the
depreciable bases of the vessels or other assets for income tax purposes.
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Amounts deposited into the CCF are a preference item for calculating federal alternative minimum taxable
income. Deposits not committed for qualified purposes within 25 years from the date of deposit will be treated as
non-qualified withdrawals over the subsequent five years.

Under the terms of the CCF agreement, Matson may designate certain qualified earnings as “accrued
deposits” or may designate, as obligations of the CCF, qualified withdrawals to reimburse qualified expenditures
initially made with operating funds. Such accrued deposits to, and withdrawals from, the CCF are reflected on the
consolidated balance sheets either as obligations of the Company’s current assets or as receivables from the CCF. At

December 31, 2008, Matson has accrued a $4.4 million withdrawal from the CCF and a $4.4 million deposit to the

CCPF, reflecting a zero net balance in the consolidated balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2009, there was no CCF deposit balance. As of December 31, 2008, the halance on
deposit in the CCF totaled $0.1 million.

7. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following (in millions}:

2009 2008
Revolving Credit loans, (0.68% for 2009 and 1.16% for 2008) $ 34 $ 135
Title XI Bonds:
5.27%, payable through 2029 14 46
5.34%, payable through 2028 42 44
Term Loans:
6.90%, payable through 2020 100 -
4.79%, payable through 2020 73 81
5.55%, payable through 2017 50 50
5.53%, payable through 2016 50 50
4.10%, payable through 2012 25 30
5.56%, payable through 2016 25 25
6.20%, payable through 2013 11 il
6.38%, payable through 2017 8 8
7.42%, payable through 2010 3 ]
4.31%, payable through 2010 ) 3 6
5.88%, payable through 2014 3 3
7.55%, payable through 2009 -- 7
7.57%, payable through 2009 - 2
Total debt 471 504
Less current portion (65) (52)
Long-term debt $ 406 3 452

Long-term Debt Maturities: At December 31, 2009, debt maturities during the next five years and
thereafter are $65 million in 2010, $27 million in 2011, $39 miilion in 2012, $40 million in 2013, $48 million in
2014 and $252 million thereafter.

Revolving Credit Facilities: The Company has two revolving senior credit facilities with six commercial
banks that expire in December 2011. The revolving credit facilities provide for an aggregate commitment of $325
million, which consists of $225 million and $100 miilion facilities for A&B and Matson, respectively. Amounts
drawn under the facilities bear interest at London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR”) plus a spread ranging fram
0.225 percent to 0.475 percent based on the Company's S&P rating. The agreement contains certain restrictive
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covenants, the most significant of which requires the maintenance of minimum shareholders’ equity levels,
minimum unencumbered properfy investment values, and a maximum ratio of debt to earnings before interest,
depreciation, amortization and taxes. At December 31, 2009, $34 million was outstanding and classified as current,

$10 million in letters of credit had been issued against the facility, and $281 .million remained available for
borrowing.

Matson has a $105 million secured reducing revolving credit agreement with DnB NOR Bank ASA and
ING Bank N.V. that expires in June 2015, The maximum amount that can be outstanding on the facility declines in
eight annual commitment reductions of $10.5 million each, commencing in June 2007. The incremental horrowing
rate for the facility is 0.225 percent over LIBOR through June 2010. For the remaining term, the incremental
borrowing rate is 0.300 percent over LIBOR. The agreement contains certain restrictive covenants, the most
significant of which requires the maintenance of minimum net worth levels, minimum working capital levels, and
maximum ratio of long-term debt to net worth. At December 31, 2009, no amount was outstanding and
approximately $74 million remained available for borrowing.

The Company has a replenishing $400 million three-year unsecured note purchase and private shelf
agreement with Prudential Investment Management, Inc. and its affiliaies (collectively, “Prudential”) under which
the Company may issue notes in an aggregate amount up to $400 million, less the sum of al} principal amounts then
outstanding on any notes issued by the Company or any of its subsidiaries to Prudential and the amount of any notes
that are commitied under the note purchase agreement. The Prudential agreement contains certain restrictive
covenants that are substantially the same as the covenants contained in the aggregate $325 million revolving senior
credit facilities. In 2009, the Company borrowed $100 million at 6.9% with a final maturity in March 2020. The
ability to draw additional amounts under the Prudential facility expires on April 19, 2012 and borrowings under the
shelf facility bear inferest at rates that are determined at the time of the borrowing. At December 31, 2009,
approximately $71 million was available under the facility.

The unused borrowing capacity under all revolving credit and term facilities as of December 31, 2009
tofaled $426 million,

Title XT Bonds. In August 2004, Matson partially financed the delivery of the MV Maunawili with
$55 million of 5.27 percent fixed-rate, 25-year term, U.S. government Guaranteed Ship Financing Bonds, more

commonly known as Tifle XI bonds. These bonds, which are secured by the MV Maunawili, are payable in $1.1
million senriannual payments.

In September 2003, Matson partially financed the delivery of the MV Manukas with $55 million of 5.34

percent fixed-rate, 25-year term, Title X bonds. These bonds, which are secured by the MV Manukai, are payable in
$1.1 million semiannual payments.

Vessel Secured Term Debt: Matson has an Amended and Restated Note Agreement with The Prudential
Insurance Company of America and Pruco Life Insurance for $120 million. Included in the agreement are Series A
and Series B notes. Series A represents a $15 million note and Series B represents 15-year term notes totaling $105
million. Both series are secured by the MV Manulani. The Series A note carries interest at 4:31 percent with $3

million currently outstanding. The Series B notes carry interest at 4.79 percent with $73 million currently
ouistanding,

Real Estate Secured Term Debt: In June 2005, A&B Properties, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, assumed $11.4 miltion of secured debt in connection with the purchase of an office building in Phoenix,

Arizona. This term loan, with an outstanding amount of $11 million at December 31, 2009, carries interest at §.2
percent and matures in October 2013,

In December 2008, A&B Properties, Inc. assumed approximately $13 imnillion of secured debt, with a fair
value of $11 million at the time of acquisition, under two notes in connection with the purchase of the Midstate 99
Distribution Center in Visalia, California. At December 31, 2009, the notes had outstanding amounts of $8 miltion

and $3 million, and carry interest at 6.38 percent and 5.88 percent, respectively. The $9 million note matures in
August 2017 and the $4 million note matures in April 2014.
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8. LEASES

The Company as Lessee; Principal non-cancelable operating leases include land, office and terminal
facilities, containers and equipment, leased for periods that expire through 2036, Management expects that, in the
normal course of business, most operating leases will be renewed or replaced by other similar Jeases. Rental expense
under operating leases totaled $30 million, $31 million, and $32 million for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Rental expense for operating leases that provide for future escalations are accounted for on a straight-line basis.
Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2009 were as follows {in
millions):

Operating
Leases

2010 3 14
2011 13
2012 12
2013 12
2014 11
Thereafter 25
Total minimum lease payments $ 87

In addition to the future minimum Jease payments above, the Company has an operating lease for terminal
facilities in Honolulu that includes a minimum annual commitment, which is calculated by the lessor based on
capital improvements by the lessor and an allocation of lessor operating expenses. The Company’s payments of
volume-based charges to the lessor must meet or exceed the minimum annual commitment. The Company’s
volume-based payments to the lessor were approximately $16 million in 2009, $16 million in 2008, and $17 million
in 2007, and there were no minimum annual guarantee payments in any year.

The Company as Lessor: The Company leases land, buildings, and land improvements under operating
leases. The historical cost of, and accumulated depreciation on, leased property at December 31, 2009 and 2008
were as follows {in miflions):

2009 2008
Leased property - real estate $ 694 $ 693
Less accumulated depreciation {101) (102}
Property under operating leases - net $§ 593 $ 591

Total rental income under these operating leases for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2009 was as follows (in miliions):

2009 2008 2007
Minimum rentals $ 78 $ 82 $ 80
Contingent rentals (based on sales volume) 3 4 4
Total $ 81 $ B6 $ 84
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Future minimum rentals on non-cancelable leases at December 31, 2009 were as follows (in millions);

Operating
Leases

2010 $ 67
2011 57
2012 43
2013 33
2014 24
Thereafter 80
Total 3 304

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has funded single-employer defined benefit pension plans that cover substantially all non-
bargaining unit employees and certain bargaining unit employees. In addition, the Company has plans that provide
certain retiree health care and life insurance benefits to substantially all salaried and to certain hourly employees,
Employees are generally eligible for such benefits upon retirement and completion of a specified number of years of
credited service. The Company does not pre-fund these benefits and has the right to modify or terminate certain of
these plans in the future. Certain groups of retirees pay a portion of the benefit costs. :

Plan Administration, Investments and Asset Allocations: The Company has an Investment Committee that
meets regularly with investment advisors to establish investment policies, direct investments and select investment
options. The Investment Cowmnmittee is also responsible for appointing investment managers. The Company’s
investment policy permits investments in marketable equity securities, such as domestic and foreign stocks,
domestic and foreign bonds, venture capital, real estate investments, and cash equivalents. The Company’s
investment policy does not permit investment in certain types of assets, such as options, commodities, or real estate
mortgages, or the use of certain strategies, such as short selling or the purchase of securities on margin.

The Company's investment strategy for its pension plan assets is to achieve a diversified mix of
investments that provides for attractive long-term growth with an acceptable level of risk, but also to provide
sufficient liquidity to fund ongoing benefit payments. The Company has engaged a number of investment managers
to implement various investment strategies to achieve the desired assei class mix, liquidity and risk diversification
objectives. The Company’s weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2009 and 2008, and 2009 year-end
target allocation, by asset category, were as follows: '

Target 2009 2008

Domestic equity securities 60% 61% 20%
International equity securities 10% 11% 12%
Debt securities 15% 15% 9%
Real estate 15% 8% 16%
Other and cash : - 3% 13%
Total 100% 100% 100%

The Company's investments in equity securities primarily include domestic large-cap and mid-cap
companies, but also include an allocation to international equity securities. Equity investments in the defined benefit
plan assets do not include any direct holdings of the Company's stock but may include such holdings to the extent
that the stock is included as part of certain mutual fund holdings. Debt securities include investment-grade and high-
yield corporate bonds from diversified indusliries, mortgage-backed securities, and U.S. Treasuries. Other types of
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investments include private equity investments in commercial real estate assets, and o a lesser extent, private equity
investments in technology companies.

The expected return on plan assets is principally based on the Company’s historical returns combined with
the Company’s long-term future expeciations regarding asset class returns, the mix of plan assets, and inflation
assumptions. One-, three-, and five-year pension returns (losses) were 16.8 percent, (3.7) percent, and 3.0 percent,
respectively, and the long-term average return (since plan inception in 1989) has been approximately 8.3 percent.
Over the long-term, the actual returns have generally exceeded the benchmark returns used by the Company to
evaluate performance of its fund managers. Due to volatile market performance in recent years, the Company has
reduced its long-term rate of return assumption from 8.5% in 2009 to 8.25% in 2010 and believes that the change is

appropriate given the Company's investment portfolio’s historical performance and the Company's target asset
allocation.

The Company’s pension plan assets are held in a master trust and stated at estimated fair value, which is

based on the fair values of the underlying investments. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date

basis. Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis, Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a fair value hierarchy,
which requires the pension plans to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The hierarchy places the highest priority on unadjusted quoted market prices in
aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and assigns the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of inputs within the hierarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar

assets or Iiabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are obhservable or can
be corroborated by observable market data,

Level 3. Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the pension plans’ own assumptions about the
assumpiions that inarket participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

If the technique used to measure fair value includes inputs from multiple levels of the fair value hierarchy,
the lowest level of significant input determines the placement of the entire fair value measurement in the hierarchy.

Equity Securities: Domestic and international common stocks are valued by obtaining quoted prices on
recognized and highly liquid exchanges.

Fixed Income Securities: Corporate bonds and U.S. government treasury and agency securities are valued
based upon the closing price reported in the active market in which the security is traded. U.S. governmeut agency
and corporate asset-backed securities may utilize models, such as a matrix pricing model, that incorporates other

observable inputs such as cash fiow, security structure, or market information, when broker/dealer quotes are not
available.

Real Estate, Private Equity, and Insurance Contract Interests: The fair value of real estate, private equity,
and insurance contract interests are determined by the issuer based on the unit values of the funds. Unit values are
determined by dividing the fund’s net assets by the number of units outstanding at the valuation date. Fair value for
underlying investments in real estate is determined through independent property appraisals. Fair value of
underlying invesiments in private equity assets is determined based on information provided by the general partner
taking into consideration the purchase price of the underlying securities, developments concerning the invesiee
company subsequent to the acquisition of the investment, financial data and projections of the investee company
provided to the general partner, and such other factors as the general partner deemns relevant. Insurance coniracis are
principally invesied in real estate assets, which are valued based on independent appraisals.
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The fair values of the Company's pension plan assets at December 31, 2009, by asset category, are as
follows (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements as of
December 31, 2009

Quofed Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets  Observable Inputs Unobservable
Total {Level 1) {Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Asset Category
Cash $ 7 3 7 % - % -
Equity securities:
1.5, large-cap 121 121 - -
1.S. mid- and small-cap 36 36 - -
International large-cap 30 30 -~ -
Fixed income securities:
U.S. Treasuries 1 - 1 -~
Investment grade U.S. corporate bonds 2 - 2 -
High-yield U.S. corporate bonds 8 - 8 -
Mortgage-backed securities 28 - 28 -
Giher types of invesiments:
Real estate partnerships interests 23 - - 23
Private equily partnership interests (a) 3 -- e 3
Insurance contracts 1 - -- 1
Total $ 260 3 194 § 39 % 27

{a) This category represents private equity funds that invest principally in U.5. technology companies.

The table below presents a reconciliation of all pension plan investments measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) for the year ended December 31, 2009 {in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant
Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Real Private :
Estate Equity Insurance Total
Beginning balance, January 1, 2009 L3 38 % 14 % 1 % 43
Actual return on plan assefs:
Assets held at the reporting date (13) {1 - (14
Assets sold during the period -- - - -
Purchases, sales and settlements (2) - - (2)
Ending balance, December 31, 2009 $ 23 3§ 3 % 1 § 27

Contributions are determined annually for each plan by the Company's pension administrative committee,
based upon the actuarially determined minimum required contribution under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 (*ERISA"), as amended, the Pension Protection Act of 2006 {the "Act”), and the maximurm
deductible contribution allowed for tax purposes. For the plans covering employees who are members of collective
bargaining units, the benefit formulas are determined according to the collective bargaining agreements, either using
career average pay as the base or a flat dollar amount per year of service. The benefit formulas for the remaining
defined benefit plans are based on final average pay. The Comnpany did not make any contributions during 2009 or
2008 to its defined benefit pension plans. In 2010, the Company expects to make required contributions of
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approximately $0.5 million. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute cash to its pension plans so that it meets

at Jeast the minimum contribution requirements.

New employees earn retirement benefits based on a fixed percentage of their eligible compensation, plus
interest. The plan interest credit rate will vary from year-to-year based on the ten-year U.S. Treasury rate.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2008 are fully vested upon completion of three years of service.

Benefit Plan Assets and Obligations: The measurement date for the Company’s benefit plan disclosures is
December 31 of each year. The status of the funded defined benefit pension plan and the unfunded accumulated

post-retirement benefit plans at December 31, 2008 and 2008 are shown below (in millions):

Other Post-retirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 314 $ 303 (3 52 $ 48

Service cost 8 8 1 1

Interest cost 19 19 3 3
Plan participants’ contributions - - 2 2
Actuarial (gain) loss (3) (1) 1 2
Benefits paid an (16) (5) {5)
Seitlemenis -~ (1} - -
Amendments 1 2 - 1
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 322 $ 314 $ 54 $ 52
Change in Plan Assets

Fair-value of plan assets at beginning of year 244 379 - -
Actual return on plan assets 33 {118) - -
Settlements - (1) - -
Benefits paid {17 {16) — -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 260 $ 244 $ -- ) -
Funded Status and Recognized Liability $ {62) % 710 % (54) % (52)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Company’s qualified pension plans were $297 million and $284
million as of December 31, 2008 and 2008, respectively. Amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheets

and in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows {in millions):

Other Post-retireﬁlent

Pension Benefits Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008
Non-current assets $ 3 3 3 $ -~ % -
Current liahilities - - (3) (3)
Non-current liabilities {65) {73) {51) {49)
Total $ 62 § (00 $ (9 3§ (52
Net loss (gain) {net of taxes) $ 0 3% 87 % - 3 1
Unrecognized prior service cost (net of taxes) 3 3 - -
Total $ 73 § 90 3 - $ {H
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The information for qualified pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 is shown below (in millions):

2009 2008
Projecied benefit obligation $ 269 $ 248
Accumulated benefit obligation § 248 § 221
Fair value of plan assets $ 208 $§ 177

The estimated prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost in 2010 is $0.7 million. The estimated net loss
that will be recognized in net periodic pension cost for the defined benefit pension plans in 2010 is $8.3 million. The
estimated prior service cost and estimated net gain for the other defined benefit postretirement plans that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension benefit in 2010 is negligible.

Unrecognized gains and losses of the post-retirement henefit plans are amortized over five years. Although
current health costs are expected to increase, the Company atiempts to mitigate these increases by maintaining caps
on certain of its benefit plans, using lower cost health care plan options where possible, requiring that certain groups
of employees pay a portion of their benefit costs, self-insuring for certain insurance plans, encouraging wellness
programs for employees, and implementing measures to mitigate future benefit cost increases,

The Company has determined that its post-retirement prescription drug plans are actuarially equivalent to
Part D of the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, The 2009 post-retirement
obligations include the benefits of the Act’s subsidy. These amounts are not material.

Components of the net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive loss for
the defined benefit pension plans and the post-retirement health care and life insurance benefit plans during 2009,
2008, and 2007, are shown below {in millions): )

Pension Benefits Other Post-retirernent Benefils
2009 2(18 2007 2009 2008 2007

Components of Net Periodic
Benefit Cost/(Income)
Service cost $ 8 3 8 % 7 3 1 3 1 3 1
Interest cost 19 18 17 3
Expected retnrn on plan assets {20) {32) (28) - — --
Amortization of net'(gain) loss 12 - - -- 1) -
Amortizdtion of prior service cost 1 1 - - - -
Recognition of loss (gain) due to settlement -- 1 -- -- - (1)
Net periodic benefit cost/{income) 20 (4) (4} 4 3 3
Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit

Obligations Recognized in Other Comprehensive

Income (net of tax)
Net Joss (gain) 1)) 90 (12) 1 1 @
Amortization of unrecognized (loss) gain n - - - 1 -
Prior service cost 1 1 - - - -
Amortization of prior service cost (1) - - - - -
Total recognized in other comprehensive tncomne {17) 91 {12) 1 2 (2)
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and

other comprehensive income 3 3 % 87 3 (i6) % 5 3 5 § 1
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit information during 2009, 2008, and 2007,

were as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Post-retirement Benefits

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007
Weighted Average Assumpfions:
Discount rate 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% B.25% 6.25%
Expected return on plan assets B.50% 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Initial health care cost trend rate 9.00 9.00% 9.00%
Ultimate rate 5.00 5.00% 5.00%
Year ultimate rafe is reached 2014 2013 2012

As a result of a decline in the market value of the Company’s plan assets in 2008, the expected return on

plan assets had decreased in 2009 and the amortization of net loss had increased, resulting in a net periodic pension
cost of $20 million for 2009,

If the assumed health care cost trend rate were increased or decreased by one percentage point, the
accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation, as of December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 and the net periodic post-
retirement benefit cost for 2009, 2008 and 2007, would have increased or decreased as follows (in millions):

Other Post-retirement Benefits
One Percentage Point
Increase Decrease
2008 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Effect on total of service and interest

cost components 5 - % - 35 - & - % - s -
Effect on post-retirement benefit
obligation $ F %5 5 $ 5 %5 @ 3 @ $ @

Non-gualified Benefit Flans: The Company has non-qualified supplemental pension plans covering certain
employees and retirees, which provide for incremental pension payments from the Company's general funds so that
total pension benefits would be substantially equal to amounts that would have been payable from the Company’s
qualified pension plans if it were not for limitations imposed hy income tax regulations. The funded status, relating
to these unfunded plans, totaled $(34) million at December 31, 2009. A 5.0 percent discount rate was used to
determine the 2009 obligation. The expense associated with the non-qualified plans was $3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009 and $4 million in each year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. As of December 31,
2009, the amount recognized in accumulated other compreliensive income for unrecognized loss, net of tax, was
approximately $6 million, and the amount recognized as unrecognized prior service credit, net of tax, was
negligible. The estimaied net loss and prior service credit that will be recognized in net periodic pension cost in
2010 is negligible.
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Estimated Benefit Payments: The estimated future benefit payments for the next ten yeats are as follows
{in millions):

Pension Non-qualified Post-retirement

Year Benefits Plan Benefits Benefits

2010 $ 18 $ 23 $ 3

2011 i8 1 4

2012 19 1 4

2013 20 2 4

2014 21 1 4
2015-2019 118 9 21

Current liabilities of approximately $26 million, related to non-qualified plan and postretirement benefits,
are classified as accrued and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2009.

Muitiemployer Plans; Matson participates in 11 multiemployer plans and has an estimated withdrawal
obligation with respect to four of these plans that totals approximately $89 million. Management has no present
intention of withdrawing from and does not anticipate termination of any of these plans. Total contributions to the
multiemployer pension plans covering personnel in shoreside and seagoing bargaining units were $12 million in
2009, $13 million in 2008, and $12 million in 2007.

Union collective bargaining agreements provide that total employer contributions during the terms of the
agreements must be sufficient to meet the normal costs and amortization payments required to be funded during
those periods. Contributions are generally based on union labor paid or cargo volume. A portion of such
contributions is for unfunded accrued actuarial liabilities of the plans being funded over periods of 25 to 40 years,
which began between 1967 and 1976.

The multiemployer plans are subject to the plan termination insurance provisions of ERISA and are paying
premiums o the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation. (‘PRBGC"). The staiutes provide that an employer who
withdraws from, or significanfly reduces its contribution obligation to, a multiemployer plan generally will be
required to continue funding its proportional share of the plan’s unfunded vested benefits.

LUnder special rules approved by the PBGC and adopted by the Pacific Coast longshore plan in 1984,
Matson could cease Pacific Coast cargo-handling operations permanently and stop contributing to the plan without
any withdrawal liability, provided that the plan meets certain funding obligations as defined in the plan.
Accordingly, no withdrawal obligation for this plan is included in the total estimated withdrawal obligation.

Defined Contribution Plans: The Company sponsors defined contribution plans that qualify under Section
401(K) of the Internal Revenue Code and provides matching contributions of up to 4% of eligible employee
compensation. During 2009, the 401(k) matching contributions were suspended for all employees who are
participants in the Company’s defined benefit plan. The Company’s matching contributions expensed under these
plans totaled $1.4 million, $2.0 million, and $1.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively. The Company also maintains profit ‘sharing plans, and if a minimum threshold of Company
performance is achieved, provides contributions of 1 percent to 3 percent, depending upon Company performance
above the minimum threshold. In 2010, the profit sharing plan was suspended. The contribution expense for these
plans totaled $1 million and $2 inillion for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. There was no
profit sharing contribution expense recorded in 2009.
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10. INCOME TAXES

The income tax expense on income from continuing operations for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31, 2009 consisted of the following (in millions):

2009 2008 2007
Current:
Federat 5 26 $ 56 $ 55
State and Foreign 2 4 4
Current 28 60 59
Deferred {20) (8} -
Total continuing operations tax expense $ 8 $ 52 $ 59

Income tax expense for 2009, 2008, and 2007 differs from amounts computed by applying the statutory
federal raie to income from continuing operations before income taxes for the following reasons (in millions):

2009 2008 2007
Compuied federal income {ax expense $ 7 $ 49 $ 55
State income taxes 4 4 5
Tax effect of HS&TC consolidation ) - —
Other—net 1) (1} (1)
Income tax expense $ 8 $ 52 $ 59

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities at December 31 of each year are as follows (in millions):

2009 2008
Deferred tax asseis:
Capital loss carry-forward ] . $ 3
Benefit plans 70 75
Insurance reserves 10 9
Other 12 11
Total deferred tax assets 92 98
Deferred tax liabilities:
Basis differences for praperty and equipment 287 304
Tax-deferred pains on real estate {ransactions 197 181
Capital Construction Fund 3 5
Joint ventures and other investments 5 G
Other 22 17
Total deferred tax liabilities 514 513
Net deferred tax lLiahiljty $ 422 415
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The realization of the deferred tax assets related to the capital loss carryover is dependent upon the future
generation of capital gains. Management considers projected future transactions and tax planning strategies in

making this assessment. As of December 31, 2009, the federal capital loss carryover has been fully utilized, and the
Hawaii state capital loss carryover was not material.

86

i

i )



The Company also has California alternative minimum fax credit carryforwards of approximately $1
million at December 31, 2009 to reduce future California state income taxes over an indefinite period.

The Company's income taxes payable has been reduced by the tax benefits from share-based
compensation. The Company receives an income tax benefit for exercised stock options calculated as the difference
between the fair market value of the stock issued at the time of exercise and the option exercise price, tax effected.
The Company also receives an income tax benefit for non-vested stock and restricted stock units when they vest,
measured as the fair market value of the stack ai the time of vesting, tax effected. The net tax benefits from share-
based transactions were $1.3 million and $1.1 million for 2009 and 2008, respectively, and the portion of the tax
benefit related to the excess of the amount reporied as expense over the tax deduction was reflected as a reduction to
additional capital in the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity. ‘

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in
millions):

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 10
Additions for tax positions of prior years 3
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (2}
Reductions for lapse of statute of limitations )]
Ralance at December 31, 2007 . 10
Additions for tax positions of prior years -
Reductions for fax positions of prior years (1)
Reductions for lapse of statute of limitations (3
Balance at December 31, 2008 6
Additions for tax positions of prior years -
Additions for tax positions of current year 3
Reductions for tax positions of prior years -
Reductions for lapse of statute of limitations (I

Balance at December 31, 2009

-
- -]

Of the total unrecognized benefits, $8 million at December 31, 2009 and $6 millien at December 31, 2008,
represent the amount that, if recognized, would favorably affect the Company’s effective rate in future periods. The
Company does not expect a material change in gross unrecognized benefits in the next 12 months,

The Company recognizes potential accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense. To the extent interest and penalties are not ultimately assessed with respect to the settlement of
uncertain tax positions, amounts accrued will be reduced and reflected as a reduction of the overall income tax
provision. As of December 31, 2009 the amounts of accrued interest and penalty were not material.

The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax audits for years before 2005, The Interpal
Revenue Service may audit the Company's federal income tax returns for years subsequent to 2004. Additionally,
the Company is routinely involved in state and local income tax audits. Substantially all material income tax matters
have been concluded for years through 2004,

11. SHARE-BASED AWARDS

2007 Incentive Compensation Plan: The 2007 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “2007 Plan™) serves as a
successor to the 1998 Stock Option/Stock Incentive Plan, the 1998 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, the
Restricted Stock Bonus Plan and the Non-Employee Director Stock Retainer Plan (the “Predecessor Plans"). Under
the 2007 Plan, 2,215,000 shares of common stock were initially reserved for issuance. As of December 31, 2009,
826,480 shares of its common stock were reserved for future issuance of share-based awards under the 2007 Plan,
On January 28, 2010, the Board of Directors adopted an amended and restated 2007 Plan, subject to shareholder
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approval at the 2010 Annual Meefing of Shareholders, which, among other things, authorizes the issuance of an
additional 2,200,000 shares of A&B stock under the 2007 Plan.

The 2007 Plan consists of four separate incentive compensation programs: (i) the discretionary grant
program, (i) the stock issuance program, (iii) the incentive bonus program and (iv) the automatic grant program for
the non-empioyee members of the Company’s Board of Directors. Share-based compensation is generally awarded
under three of the four programs, as more fully described below.

Discretionary Grant Program - Under the Discretionary Grant Program, stock options may be granted with
an exercise price no less than 100 percent of the fair market value (defined as the closing market price) of the
Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. Options generally become exercisable ratably over three years
and have a maximum contractual term of 10 years. The Company estimates the grant-date fair value of its stock
options using a Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model.

Stock Issuance Program - Under the Stock Issuance Program, shares of common stock or restricted stock
units may be granted. Time-based equity awards vest ratably over three years. Provided certain performance targets
are achieved, performance-based equity awards (granted prior to December 31, 2008) vest after one year, and
performance-based equity awards granted after December 31, 2008 vest over three years.

Autornatic Grant Program ~ The Automatic Grant Program supersedes and replaces the Company’s 1998
Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan and the Non-Employee Director Stock Retainer Plan. At each annual
shareholder meeting, non-employee directors will receive an award of restricted stock units that entitle the holder to
an equivalent number of shares of common stock upon vesting. Awards of restricted stock units granted under the
program generally vest ratably over three years.

The shares of common stock authorized to be issuved under the 2007 Plan may be drawn from shares of the
Company’s authorized but unissued coinmon stack or from shares of its common stock that the Company acquires,
including shares purchased on the open market or in private transactions. '

Predecessor Plans: Adopted in 1998, the Company's 1998 Stock Option/Stock Incentive Plan (“1998
Plan”) provided for the issuance of non-qualified stock options and common stock to employees of the Company.
Under the 1998 Plan, option prices could not be less than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on
the dates of grant and the options became exercisable over periods determined, at the dates of grant, by the
Compensation Committee of the A&B Board of Directors that adiministers the plan. Generally, options vested
ratably over three years and expired ten years from the date of grant. Payments for options exercised may be made in
cash or in shares of the Company’s stock. If an option to purchase shares is exercised within five years of the date of
grant and if payment is made in shares of the Company's stock, the option holder may receive, under a reload
feature, a new stock option grant for such number of shares as is equal to the number surrendered, with an option
price not less than the greater of the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of exercise or one and
one-half times the original option price. The 1998 Plan also permitied the issuance of shares of the Company’s
common stock. Generally, grants of time-based, non-vested stock vests ratably over three years and performance-
based, non-vested stock vests m one year, provided that certain performance targets are achieved. The 1998 Plan
was superseded by the 2007 Plan and no further grants will be made under the 1998 Plan,

Director Stock Option Plans: The 1998 Director Stock Option Plan (“1998 Director Plan") was superseded
by the 2007 Plan. Under the 1998 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, each non-employee Director of the
Company, elected at an Annual Meeting of Shareholders, was automatically granted, on the date of each such
Annual Meeting, an option to purchase 8,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at the fair market valite of the

shares on the date of grant. Each option to purchase shares generally became exercisable ratably over three years
following the date granted.

The Company estimates the grant-date fair value of its stock optiens using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-
pricing mnodel.
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The weighted average grant-date fair values of the options granted during 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $2.79,
$7.88, and $10.91, respectively, per option, using the range of assumptions provided in the table below:

2009 2008 2007
Expected volatility 24.8% 19.5%-19.8% 19.0%-19.5%
Expected term {in years) 5.8 5.8 3.8-5.9
Risk-free interest rate 1.9% 3.1%-3.5% 4.8%-5.0%
Dividend yield 5.4% 2.6% 2.1%-2.2%

*  Expected volatility was primarily determined using the historical volatility of A&B common stock
over the expected term, but the Company may also consider future events and other factors that it
reasonably concludes marketplace participants might consider.

*  The expected term of the awards represents expectations of future employee. exercise and post-
vesting termination behavior and was primarily based on historical experience. The Company

analyzed various groups of employees and considers expected or unusual trends that would likely
affect this assurnption.

*  The risk free interest rate was based on U.S. Government treasury yields for periods equal to the
expecied term of the option on the grant date.

*  The expected dividend yield is based on the Company’s current and historical dividend policy.
Application of alternative assumptions could produce sipnificantly different estimates of the fair value of
share-based compensation and, consequently, significantly affect the related amounts recognized in the consolidated
statements of income.

The following iable summarizes 2009 stock option activity for the Company’s plans (in thousands, except
exercise price amounts):

Weighted Weighted

1998 1998 Averape Average Apgregate
2007 Employee Director Total Exercise Confractual  Intrinsic
Plan Plan Plan Shares Frice Life Value
Outstanding January 1, 2009 480 1,316 239 2,035 $39.71
Granted 478 - - 478  $23.33
Exercised - (11) - iy s26.24
Forfeited and expired - (14) (13) (57)  $29.77
Outstanding December 31, 2009 958 1,291 196 2,445 $36.80 5.5 35,367
Vested or expected to vest 948 1,278 194 2420  $36.80 5.5 $9.273
Exercisable December 31, 2009 161 1,199 196 1,556 33B.50 4.3 54,002
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The following table summarizes 2009 non-vested common stock and restricted stock unit activity (in
thousands, except weighted-average, grant-date fair value amounts):

Predecessor
2007 Plans
Plan Weighted Non-Vested Weighted
Restricted Average Common Average

Stock Grant-Date Stock Grant-Date

Units Fair Value Shares Fair Value
January 1, 2009 160 $46.68 94 $47.48
Granted 389 $23.59 - -
Vested {100) $44.70 {79) 47.34
Forfeited (22) $28.47 - -
Outstanding December 31, 2009 427 $27.06 15 48.19

A summary of the compensation cost and other measures related to share-based payments is as follows (in
millions):

2009 2008 2007

Share-based expense (net of estimated
forfeitures):

Stock options [ 4 $ 3 $ 3

Non-vested stock & restricted stock uniis 5 13

Total share-based expense 9 16

Total recognized tax benefit @ 3) (4)
Share-based expense (net of tax) [ 6 $ 8 § 12
Cash received upon option exercise $ - $ 2 $ 6
Intrinsic value of options exercised 5 - $ 1 $ 5
Tax benefit realized upon option exercise $ - $ 1 $ 2
Fair value of stock vested [ 3 $ 13 $ 7

As of December 31, 2009, there was $1.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested stock options. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 1.5
years. As of December 31, 2009, unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock and restricted stock
units was $4.8 million. The unrecognized cost for non-vested stock and restricted stock units is expected to be
recognized over a weighied average period of 1.4 years.

12. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies: Commitments and financial arrangements, excluding capital
lease commitments that are described in Note 8, included the following as of December 31, 2009 (in millions):

Standby letters of credit @ $ 10
Bonds (b $ 19
Benefit plan withdrawal obligations (c) $ 89

These amounts are not recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and it is not expected that
the Company or its subsidiaries will be called upon to advance funds under these commitments.
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(a) Consists of standby letters of credit, issued by the Company’s lenders under the Company’s
revolving credit facilities. Approximately $8 million of the letters of credit are required to
allow the Company to qualify as a self-insurer for state and federal workers’ compensation
liabilities. The balance includes approximately $2 million for insurance-related matiers,
principally in the Company's real esiate business. In the event the letters of credit are drawn
upon, the Company would be obligated to reimburse the issuer of the letter of credit. None of
the Jetters of credit has been drawn upon io date, and the Company believes it is unlikely that
any of these letters of credit will be drawn upon,

(b) Consists of approximately $1 million of construction bonds related to real estate projects in
Hawaii, approximately $16 million in U.S. customs bonds, and approximately $2 million
related fo iransportation and other matters. In the event the bonds are drawn upen, the
Company would be obligated to reimburse the surety that issued the bond. None of the bonds
has been drawn upon io date, and the Company believes it is unlikely that any of these bonds
will be drawn upon.

{c) Represents the withdrawal liabilities for multiemployer pension plans, in which Matson is a
participant. The withdrawal liability aggregated approximately $89 million as of the most
recent valuation date, Management has no present intention of withdrawing from and does not
anticipate termination of any of the aforementioned plans.

Indemnity Agreements: For certain real estate joint ventures, the Company may he obligated under bond
indemnities in order to complete construction of the real estate development if the joint venture does not perform.
These indemnities are designed to protect the surety. The Company recorded liabilities at fair value for three
indemnities it provided in connection with surety bonds issued to cover construction aclivities, such as project
amenilies, roads, utilities, and other infrastructure, at three of its Joint ventures. The recorded amount of the
liabilities were not material at December 31, 2008 and 2008. Under the indemnities, the Company and its joint
venture partners agreed to indemnify the surety bond issuer from all Joss and expense arising from the failure of the
joint venture to complete the specified bonded construction. The maximum potential amount of aggregate future
payments is a function of the amount covered by outstanding bonds at the time of default by the joint venture,
reduced by the amount of work completed to date. As of December 31, 2009, the maximum potential amount of
aggregate future payments under bonds outstanding was $67 million, computed as $166 million of bonds
outstanding, less the value of work completed, which totaled approximately $99 million. The:Company and its joint
venture partners also entered into mutual indemnification agreements under which each partner agrees to indemnify
the other partner for its share of the obligation under the bonds. Including amounts recoverable from the Coinpany's
Jomt venture partners under the mutual indemnification agreements, the Company's maximum ‘poiential amount of
aggregate future payments under indemnities at December 31, 2009 was approximately $37 million.

Completion Guarantees. For certain real estate joint ventures, the Company may be required to perform
work to complete consiruction if the joint venture fails to complete construction. These guaraniees are intended to
assure the joint venture’s lender that the project will be completed as represented to the lender. The Company
recorded liahilities at fair value for two completion guarantees it provided in connection with joint venture
development projects. The recorded amount of these liabilities were not material at December 31, 2008 and 2008,
Under the completion guarantees, the Company and its joint venture partners agree to complete development of
specified development work if the joint venture fails to complete developinent. The maximum potential amount of
aggregate future payments related to the Company's completion guarantees is a function of the work agreed to he
completed, reduced by the amount of work completed to date at the time of default by the joint venture. As of
December 31, 2009, the maximum potential amount of aggregate future payments under completion guarantees
outstanding was $3 million, computed as $15 million of project work guaranteed, less the value of work completed,
which totaled approximately $12 million. The Company’s share of the maximum potential amount of agpregate
future payments under indemnities at December 31, 2009 was approximately $2 million.

Other Obligations: Certain of the businesses in which the Company holds a non-controlling interest have
long-term debt obligations. In August 2009, a $12 million construction loan held by one of the Company's real
estate joint ventures matured. The joint venture is currently negotiating with the lender to extend the maturity date of
the loan. The lender has tentatively agreed to a 36-month extension of the loan, conditioned upon a $1.8 million
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payment from the joint venture, an agreement to convert the loan to a 25-year amortization schedule, and certain
other conditions. If the joint venture s not successful in consummating an extension of the loan and remains in
default, the Company may be obligated to pay approximately $2 million under a “re-margin” guarantee, under
which the joint venture must maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.3 to 1. As of December 31, 2009,
the Company had not paid any amounts under the re-margin guarantee, but a liability of $2 million was recorded
with a corresponding increase to the Company’s investment in the joint venture. In December 2009, a $16 million
construction loan held by one of the Company's real estate joint ventures matured. The Jjoint venture is currently
negotiating with the lender to extend the maturity date of the loan. If the joini venture is not successful in
consummating an extension of the loan and remains in default, the Company may be obligated to pay $1.8 million.
As of December 31, 2008, the Company had not paid any amounts to the lender, but a liability of $1.8 million was
recorded with a corresponding increase to the Company’s investment in the joint venture.

Other than obligations described above, investee obligations do not have recourse to the Company and the
Company's “at-risk” amounts are limited to its investment. These investments are more fully described in Note 4.

Environmental Matters: As with most transportation, industrial and land development companies of its
size, the Company’s shipping, real estate, and agricultural businesses have certain risks that could result in
expenditures for environmental remediation. It is the Company’s palicy, as part of its due diligence process for afl
acquisitions, to use third-party environmental comsultants to investigate the environmental risks and to require
disclosure from land sellers of known environmental risks. Despite these precautions, there can be no assurance that
the Company will avoid material liabilities relating to environmental matters affecting properties currently or
previously owned by the Company. No estimate of such potential liabilities can be made although the Company
may, from time to time, purchase property which requires modest environmental clean-up costs after appropriate due
diligence. In such instances, the Company takes steps prior to acquisition to gain assurance as to the precise scope of
wark required and costs associated with removal, site restoration and/or monitoring, using detaied investigations by
environmental consultants. The Company believes that based on all information available to it, the Company is in
compliance, in all material respects, with applicable environmental laws and regulations.

In late 2003, the Company paid $1.6 million to settle a claim for payment of environmental remediation
costs incurred by the current owner of a sugar refinery site in Hawali that previously was sald by the Company in
1994. In connection with this settlement, the Company assumed responsibility to remediate certain parcels of the site
and accrued an undiscounted obligation of approximately $2 million for the estimated remediation costs. The
commencement of environmental cleanup is dependent upon studies to be approved by the Department of Health of
the State of Hawaii, which has not-occusred as of December 31, 2009.

Other Contingencies: A&B owns 16,000 acres of watershed lands in East Maui that supply a significant
portion of the irrigation water used by HC&S. A&B also held four water licenses to another 30,000 acres owned by
the State of Hawaii in East Maui, which over the years has supplied approximately two-thirds of the irrigation water
used by HC&S. The last of these water license agreements expired in 1986, and all four agreements were then
extended as revocable permits that were renewed annually. In 2001, a request was made to the State Board of Land
and Natural Resources (the “BLNR") to replace these revocable permits with a long-term water lease. Pending the
conclusion by the BLNR of this contested case hearing on the request for the long-term lease, the BLNR has
renewed the existing permits on a holdover basis, If the Company is not permitted to divert stream waters from State
lands in East Maui for its use, it would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s sugar-growing operations.

In addition, on May 24, 2001, petitions were filed by a third party, requesting that the Commission on
Water Resource Management of the State of Hawaii (“Water Commission”) amend interim instream flow standards
(*IIFS”) in 27 East Maui streams that feed the Company’s irrigation system, On September 25, 2008, the Water
Commission took action on eight of the petitions, resulting in some quantity of water being returned to the streams
rather than being utilized for irrigation purposes. While the loss of the water as a result of the Water Commission’s
action on the eight petitions may not significantly impair the Company’s sugar-growing operations, similar losses of
water on the remaining 19 streams would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s sugar-growing
operations. In December 2009, the Water Commission conducted deliberations on the amendment of IIFS for the
remaining 19 East Maui streams, deferring action for at least a three month period. The Company, at this time, is
unable te determine what action the Water Commission will take with respect to all 27 streams.
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On June 25, 2004, two organizations filed with the Water Commission a petition to amend IIFS for four
streams in West Maui to increase the amount of water fo be returned to these streams. The West Maui irrigation
system provides approximately one-sixth of the irrigation water used by HC&S. The Water Commission's
deliberations on whether to amend the current TIFS for the West Maui streams are currently ongoing, and an adverse
decision could result in some quantity of water being returned o the streams, rather than being utilized for irrigation
purposes, which may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s sugar-growing operations. A decision by the
Water Commission is not expected until mid-2010,

On December 10, 2007, the Shipbuilders Council of America, Inc. and Pasha Hawait Transport Lines LLC
filed a complaint against the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, the U.S, Coast Guard and the National Vessel
Documentation Center in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia. The complaint sought review of
a certificate of documentation with a coastwise endorsement issued by the National Vessel Documentation Center
after concluding that Matson’s C9 vessel Mokihana had not been rebuilt abroad. Matson intervened in the action, On
December 4, 2009, the court granted summiary judgment in favor of the government and Matson, and dismissed the
plaintiffs” complaint with prejudice. The time to seek appellate review of this matter has expired,

On April 21, 2008, Matson was served with a grand jury subpoena from the U.S. District Court for the
Middle District of Florida for documents and information relating to water carriage in connection with the
Department of Justice's investigation into the pricing and other competitive practices of carriers operating in the
domnestic trades. Matson understands that while the investigation currently is focused on the Puerto Rico trade, it
also includes pricing and other competitive practices in connection with all domestic trades, including the Alaska,
Hawaii and Guam trades. Matson does not operate vessels in the Puerto Rico and Alaska trades. It does operate
vessels in the Hawaii and Guam trades. Matson has cooperated, and will continue to cooperate, fully with the
Department of justice. If the Department of Justice believes that any violations have occurred on the part of Matson
or the Company, it could seek civil or criminal sanctions, including monetary fines. The Company is unable to
predict, at this time, the outcome or financial impact, if any, of this investigation.

The Company and Matson were nawned as defendants in a consolidated civil lawsuit purporting to be a class
action in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Washington in Seattle. The lawsuit alleged violations of
the antitrust laws and also named as a defendant Horizon Lines, Inc., another domestic shipping carrier operating in
the Hawaii and Guam trades. On August 18, 2009, the court granted the defendants’ motion to disiniss the
complaint. The court granted the plaintiffs leave to amend the complaint by May 10, 2010 to allege claims
consistent with the court’s order. If the plaintiffs file an amended complaint, the Company and Matson will continue
to vigorously defend themselves in this lawsuit. The Company is unable to predict, at this tune, the outcome or
financial impact, if any, of this lawsuit if an amended complaint is filed.

In June 2006, Matson and its Long Beach terminal operator, SSAT LI.C, completed negotiations of an
amendment to the Preferential Assignment Agreement with the City of Long Beach that includes changes requested
by Matson to implement its new China Service as well as environmental covenants applicable to vessels which call
at Pier C. The environmental requirements are part of programs proposed by both the ports of Los Angeles and Long
Beach designed to reduce airborne emissions in the port area. Under the amendment, Matson is required to instal]
equipment on all its motor vessels to allow them to accept a shore-based elecirical power source instead of using the
vessel’s diesel generators while in port (“cold ironing”) and to phase out calls by its steamships by 2020. In
December 2008, the Office of Administrative Law approved regulations put forth by the California Air Resources
Board ("CARB") which mandate cold ironing of diesel powered container ships at major ports starting in 2014. The
CARB regulations put the responsibility for shoreside electrical infrastructure on the terminal operator. Matson’s
lease agreement commits the Port of Long Beach to providing the shoreside infrastructure and construction
commenced in 2009 and is expected to be completed in 2010. However, the Port of Oakland has not yet made a
commitment to provide the required infrastructure at the Company’s Oakland terminal and therefore, SSAT may be
held responsible for this cost. SSAT submitted the reguired terminal plan to CARB on July 1, 2008, but the plan has
not yet heen approved. The cost of the required infrastructure improvements has not been estimated. The
modifications to Matson's vessels to accommodate cold ironing will occur at each of their next scheduled out—of-
water drydockings. Two vessels have been retrofitted through 2009 and one is scheduled for 2010. The estimated
cosis of the modifications are projected at $13.7 nillion for the eight motor vessels including design and engineering
costs, and the cost for vessel stepdown transformers to accommodate the power provided at the dock. As of
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December 31, 2009, approximately $4.3 million has been incurred. The costs of the modifications have been
recorded as capital assets hecause they provide future economic benefits.

The Company is subject to possible climate change legislation, regulation and international accords.
Numerous bills related to climate change, such as limiting and reducing greenhouse gas emissions through a “cap
and trade” system of allowances and credits, have been infroduced in the U.S. Congress. If enacted, these
regulations could impose significant additional costs on the Company, including increased energy costs, higher
material prices, and costly mandatory vessel and equipment modifications. The Company is unable to predict, at this
time, the outcome or financial impact, if any, of future climate change related legislation,

The Company and certain subsidiaries are parties to other various legal actions and are contingently liable
in commection with claims and contracts arising in the normal course of business, the ouicome of which, in the
opinion of management after consultation with legal counsel, will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.

13. INDUSTRY SEGMENTS

Operating segments are components of an enterprise that engage in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available. The Company's chief operating decision maker is its Chief Executive

Officer. Based on the foregoing, the Company has five segments that operate in three industries: Transportation,
Real Estate and Agribusiness.

The Transportation Industry consists of two segments. Ocean Transportation carries freight between
various 1.5, Pacific Coast, major Hawaii ports, Guam, China and other Pacific ports and provides terminal,
stevedoring and container equipment management services in Hawaii. Logistics Services arranges domestic and
international rail intermodal service, long-haul and regional highway brokerage, specialized hauling, flat-bed and
project work, less-than-truckload, expedited freight services, and warehousing and distribution services.

The Real Estate Industry consists of two segments. The Real Estate Sales segrment generates its revenues
through the development and sale of land, commercial and residential properties. The Real Estate Leasing segment
owns, operates, and manages retail, office, and industrial properties. When property that was previously leased is
sold, the revenue and operating profit are included with the Real Estate Sales segment.

Agribusimess, which consists of one segment, grows sugar cane and coffee; produces bulk raw sugar,
specialty food-grade sugars, and molasses; produces, markets, and distributes roasted coffee, green coffee and
specialty food-grade sugars; provides general trucking services, mobile equipment mainienance and repair services,
and self-service storage in Hawaii; and generates and selfls, to the extent not used in the Company’s operations,
electricity.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are described in the summary of significant accounting

policies. Reportable segments are measured bhased on operating profit, exclusive of interest expense, general
corporate expenses, and income taxes.
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INDUSTRY SEGMENTS {CONTINUED)

Industry segment information for 2009, 2008, and 2007 is summarized below (in millions)

For the Year 2009 2008 2007
Revenue:
Transportation:
Ocean transportation $ B8&6 $ 10237 $ 1,0068.9
Logistics services 320.9 436.0 4335
Real Estate:
Leasing 103.2 107.8 1085
Sales 125.6 350.2 117.8
Less amounts reported in discontinued operations’ {124.2) (151.5) (130.2)
Apgribusiness® 107.0 124.3 123.7
Reconciling Items 2 (16.3) {10.7) (9.2)
Taotal revenue § 1,404.8 $ 1,879.8 § 1,651.0
Operating Profit:
Transportation:
Ocean transportation® $ 583 $ 1058 § 1265
Logistics services 6.7 185 21.8
Real Estate:
Leasing 43.2 47.8 51.8
Sales® KU A | 85.6 74.4
Less amounts reported in discontinued operatipns! (52.3) (69.3) (71.2)
Agribusiness® (27.8) (12.9) 0.2
Total operating profit 67.2 185.5 2033
Interest expense, net! ' (25.9) (23.7) (18.8)
General corporate expenses (21.8) (21.0) (27.3)
Income from continuing operations before income
taxes 195 140.8 157.2
Income taxes 7.6 51.5 59.3
Income from continuing operations 11.9 59.3 97.9
Disconlinued operations 323 43.1 44.3
Net income $ 44.2 § 1324 5 1422

Prior year amounts restated for amounts treated as discontinued operations, See Notes 1 and 2 for additional information.
Includes inter-segment revenue, inferest income, and other income classified as revenue for segment reporiing purposes.
The Ocean Transporiation segment inclndes approximately $6.2 miillion, $5.2 million, and $10.7 million of equify in earnings from its

investment in SSAT for 2008, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The Real Estate Sales segment includes approximately $9.0 million and $22.6

million in equity in earnings from its various real estate joint veniures For 2008 and 2007, respectively. Equity in eamings from joint veniures
in 2009 was negligible.

Includes Ocean Transporfation interest expense of $9.0 million for 2009, $11.6 million for 20108, and $13.8 million for 2007. Subsiantially all
other interest expense was at the parent company.

Includes a $5.4 million galn recorded vpon consolidation of HS&TC in 2009.
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INDUSTRY SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

As of December 31: 2009 2008 2007
Identifiable Assets:
Ocean transportation® $ 10052 $ 1,153.9 $ L2150
Logistics services 72.4 74.2 98.6
Real estate leasing 627.4 590.2 595.4
Real estate sales® 415.6 344.6 408.9
Agribusiness 156.8 172.2 174.6
Other 12.2 15.1 26.6
Total assets $ 2,379.6 $ 23502 $ 2,479.1
Capital Expenditures:
QOcean transportation 3 12.7 $ 35.5 $ 65.8
Logistics services’ 0.6 24 2.0
Real estate leasﬂ'ng8 108.8 100.2 1245
Real estate sales® 0.1 0.6 0.3
Agribusiness 34 15.2 20.5
Other 0.3 0.8 0.3
Total capital expenditures § 1259 $ 1547 $ 2134
Depreciation and Amortization:
Ocean fransportation $ 67.1 $ 66.1 5 63.2
Logislics services 3.5 23 1.5
Real estate leasing’ 18.5 179 15.7
Real estate sales 0.3 0.2 0.2
Agribusiness 11.9 115 10.7
Other 31 2.7 1.3

Total depreciation and amartization

3

105.4

5

100.7 3 92.6

The Ocean Transportation segment includes approximately $47.2 miltion, $44.6 million, and $48.6 million related to its investment in SSAT
as of December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The Real Estate Sales segment includes approximately $193.3 million, $162.1 million,
and $134.1 million related ie its investment in various real estate joint ventures as of December 33, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Excludes expenditures related to Matson Integrated Logistics” acquisitions, which are classified as Payments for Purchases of Investments in
Cash Flows from Investing Activities within the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Represents pross capital additions to the leasing portfolio, Including gross tax-deferred property purchases that are reflected as non-cash
transactions in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Excludes capital expenditures for real estate developments held for sale which are classified as Cash Flows from Operating Activities within
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Operating cash flows for capital expenditures related to real estate developments were $6 milijon,
$39 million, and $110 million for 2008, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
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14.  QUARTERLY INFORMATION (Unaudited)

Segment results by quarter for 2009 are listed below {in millions, except per-share amounts):

2009
01 Q2 Q3 Q4
Revenue:
Transportation;
Ocean fransporiation $ 2011 $ 2185 $ 2342 $ 2348
Logistics services 76.2 80.3 82.3 82.1
Real Estate:
Leasing 21.2 25.9 25.2 249
Sales 25.2 21.3 14.9 64.2
Less amounts reported in discontinued
operations ' (29.6) (20.8) (13.9) (60.4)
Agribusiness’ 17.7 29.2 32.5 27.6
Reconciling Items * (2.3) (2.8) {3.0) (8.2)
Total revenue $ 3155 $ 3516 $ 3727 $ 365.0
Operating Profit (Loss):
Transportation:
Ocean fransportation $§ (0.5 $ 211 $ 242 $ 135
Logistics services 15 1.8 2.2 12
Real Estate:
Leasing 12.0 11.0 10.2 10.0
Sales 5.6 9.6 3.5 204
Less amounis reported in discontinued
operations’ (11.3) (12.1) (5.5) (23.4)
Apgribusiness’ (1.9) (11.3) (13.8) {0.8)
Tatal operating profit 54 20.1 20.8 20.9
Interest Expense (5.6) {6.9) (6.7) {6.7)
General Corpaorate Expenses (6.1) {4.5) 4.9) {6.3)
Income From Continuing Operations before
Income Taxes 6.3 8.7 9.2 79
Income taxes (benefif) 2.3) 3.6 4.1 2.2
Income From Continuing Operations 4.0) 5.1 5.1 57
Discontinued Operations’ 7.0 75 3.4 14.4
Net Income $ 3.0 § 128 $ 85 $ 201
Earnings Per Share:
Basic $ 007 $ 0.31 $ 0.21 $ 049
Diluted $ 007 £ 031 $ o021 $ 049

See Note 2 for discussion of disconlinued aperations.
Includes a $5.4 million gain recorded upon consolidation of HS&TC in the fourth quarter of 20089.
Includes inter-segment revenue, interest income, and other income classified as revenue for segment Teporting purposes,
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Segment results by quarter for 2008 are listed below (in millions, except per-share amounts):

Revenue:
Transportation:
Ocean transportation
Logistics services
Real Estate:
Leasing
Sales
Less amaunts reported in discontinued
operations !
Agribusiness
Reconciling Items *
Total revenue
Operating Profit (Loss}):
Transportatian:
Ocean transpartation
Logistics services
Real Estate:
Leasing
Sales
Less amounts reported in discontinued
operations'
Apgribusiness
Total operating profit
Interest Expense
General Corporate Expenses

Income From Continuing Operations before
Income Taxes

Income taxes
Income From Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations’
Net Income

Earnimgs Per Share:
Basic
Diluted

See Note 2 for discussion of discontinued operations.
Includes inter-segment revenue, interest income, and other incame elassified as revenue for segment reparting purposes,
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2008
Q1 Qz Q3 Q4
$ 2430 _$ 2684 $ 2728 $ 2395
102.6 115.5 118.1 99.8
28.8 27.3 26.2 25.5
187.4 31.2 77.2 54.4
(8.3) (18.0) (75.9) (48.3)
22.5 36.2 37.5 28.1
(1.5) (2.6) (3.0) (3.6)
$ 5745 $ 4570 § 4529 3 3954
$ 159 $ 374 0§ 314 $ 211
47 46 5.1 41
13.9 12.6 11.1 10.2
41.4 9.1 25.8 19.3
(4.9) (10.8) (30.0) (23.5)
48 (4.9) ©6.7) 6.1)
75.8 48.0 36.7 25.0
(6.1) (5.6) (5.8) (6.2)
(5.7) (5.4) (5.3) (4.6)
64.0 37.0 25.6 14.2
25.1 14.1 7.4 49
38.9 22.9 18.2 9.3
3.2 6.7 18.6 14.6
21 $ 296 $§ 368 § 238
1.02 0.72 089 § 058
1.01 0.71 089 § 058
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15. PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Set forth below are the unconsolidated condensed financial statements of Alexander & Baldwin, Inc.
(“Parent Company”). The significant accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are
substantially the same as those used in the preparation of the consolidated financia! statements as described in Note
1, except that, for purposes of the tables presented in this footnote, subsidiaries are carried under the equity nethod.

The following table presents the Parent Company’s condensed balance sheets as of December 31, 2009 and
2008 (in millions):

2009 2008
ASSETS -
Current Assets: -
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1 $ --
Accounts and other recelvables, net 12 3
Inventories [ -
Real estate held for sale 7 -
Income tax receivable - 24
Section 1031 exchange proceeds - 23
Prepaid expenses and other 15 23
Total current assets 41 73
Investments:
Subsidiaries consolidated, at equity 1,210 1,131
Property, at Cost 455 432
Less accumalated depreciation and amortization 226 219
Property -- net 229 213
Other Assets 32 13
Total $ 1,512 $ 1,460
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ a0 3 28
Accounis payable 10 8
Income taxes payabie 24 -
Non-qualified benefit plans 17 4
Other 15 12
Total current liabilities 106 52
Long-term Debt 239 200
Employee Benefit Plans 22 49
Non-gualified Benefit Plans 8 17.
Other Long-term Liabilities 4 6
Deferred Income Taxes 42 30
Due to Subsidiaries 6 34
Sharehelders” Equity:
Capital stack 33 13
Additional capital 219 204
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {81} (96}
Retained earnings 934 942
Cost of treasury stock (11) (11)
Total shareholders® equity 1,085 1,072

Total 3 1,512 ¥ 1,460
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The following table presents the Parent Company's condensed statements of income for the years ended

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (in miflions):

Revenue:
Agribusiness
Real estate leasing
Rea] estate sales
Interest and other
Total revenue

Costs and Expenses:
Cost of agribusiness goods and services
Cost of real estate sales and leasing
Selling, general and administrative
Interest and other
Incorne tax benefit

Total costs and expenses
Loss from Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operations, net of income iaxes

Loss Before Equity in Income of Subsidiaries
Consolidated

Equity in Income from Continuing Operations of
Subsidiaries Consolidated

Equity in Income from Discontinued Operations of
Subsidiaries Consolidated

Net Income

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of income
taxes

Comprehenstve Income

100

2009

$ 73
22

J—
(=]
“hite oo

109
14
21

@D
139

(34)

(26)

46

24

44

2008

111

25

132

2007
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The following table presents the Parent Company's condensed statements of cash flows for the years ended

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (in millions):

Cash Flows from Operations (including dividends received
from subsidiaries)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from disposal of property and sale of investments
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Change in intercompany payables/receivables
Proceeds from (repayments of) long-term debt, net

Proceeds from issuance of capital stock, including tax
benefit

Repurchases of capital stack
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Net increase (decrease) for the year
Balance, beginning of year
Balance, end of year

Other Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid, net of refunds

Other Non-cash Information:
Depreciation expense
Tax-deferred property sales
Tax-deferred property purchases

General Information: The Parent Company is headquartered in Honolulu, Hawaii and is engaged in the operations

2009

$ 90

(6)
(986)
28

(79)

(13)
51

$ 17
$ 29
$ (40)

2008 2007
$ 144 $ 17
(16) (18)
(12) -

g 5

(19) (13)
) (15)
(16) - 85

2 8
(59) (33)
(51) {48)
{128) {3
3 1

3 2

5 - $ 3
$ (13) § (12)
5 (63) $ (55)
$ 15 $ 15
§ 60 § -
$ $ -

that are generally described in Note 13, "Industry Segments.” Additional information related to
is described in the foregoing notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Long-term Debt: At December 31, 2009 and 2008, long-term debt consisted of the following (in millions):

2009 2008
Revolving Credit loans (0.76% for 2008 and 1.12% for 2008) $ 24 $ 55
Term Loans:

6.90%, payable through 2020 100 -
5.53%, payable through 2016 : 50 50
5.55%, payable through 2017 50 50
5.56%, payable through 2016 25 25
4.10%, payable through 2012 25 30
7.42%, payable through 2010 3 6
6.20%, payable through 2013 2 3
7.55%, payable through 2009 -- 7
7.57%, payable through 2009 - 2
Total 279 228
Less current port{on (40) (28)
Long-term debt 3 239 $§ 200

Long-term Debt Maturities: At December 31, 2009, maturities of all long-term debt during the next five

years are $40 million n 2010, $16 million in 2011, $27 million in 2012, $21 million in 2013, $33 million in 2014,
and $142 million thereafier.

Revolving Credit Facilities: The Company has a revolving senior credit facility with six commercial banks
that expires in December 2011. The revolving credit facility provides for a commitment of $225 million. Amounts
drawn under the facility bear interest at London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a spread ranging from
0.225 percent to 0.475 percent based on the Company's S&P rating. The agreement contains certain restrictive
covenants, the most significant of which require the maintenance of minimum shareholders’ equity levels, minimum
unencumbered property investment values, and a maximum ratio of total debt to earmings before interest,
depreciation, amortization, and taxes. At December 31, 2009, $24 million was outstanding and classified as current,

$2 million in letters of credit had been issued against the facility, and $199 million remained available for
barrowing.

The Company has a replenishing $400 million three-year unsecured note purchase and private shelf
agreement with Prudential Investment Management, Inc. and its affiliates {(collectively, “Prudential”) under which
the Company may issue notes in an aggregate amount up to $400 million, less the sum of all principal.amounts then
outstanding on any notes issued by the Company or any of its subsidiaries to Prudential and the amount of any notes
that are committed under the note purchase agreement. The Prudential agreement contains certain restrictive
covenants that are substantially the same as the covenants contained in the aggregate $325 million revolving senior
credit facilities. The ability to draw additional amounts under the Prudential facility expires on April 19, 2012 and
borrowings under the shelf facility bear interest at rates that are determined at the time of the borrowing. At
December 31, 2009, $71 million was available under the facility.

Real Estate Secured Term Debt: In June 2005, the Company, together with its real-estate subsidiaries,
purchased an office building in Phoenix, Arizona, and assumed $11 million of mortgage-secured debt. A&B awns
approximately 24 percent of the Phoenix office building. At December 31, 2009, approximately $2 million of the

$11 million was recorded on the parent company’s books, consistent with ownership of the property. The property is
jointly and severally owned by three subsidiaries of the Company. -

Dividends from Subsidiaries: The Company received dividends from Matson totaling $60 million for each
of the Iast three years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.
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